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Haier Electronics Group Co., Ltd.

BHEREBERLQ T

Corporate Profile
BEB[N

Haier Electronics Group Co., Ltd. (Stock code: 01169) (the
“Company”), a subsidiary of Haier Group, is listed on the Main
Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. The
Company and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) are principally
engaged in the research, development, manufacture and sale of
washing machines and water heaters in the PRC under the brand
name of “Haier”. The Group is also engaged in the integrated
channel services business for other home electric appliance
products such as refrigerators, televisions and air-conditioners,
of both “Haier” and “non-Haier” brands, substantially broadening
its sources of revenue and driving its profit growth.

Founded in 1984, Haier Group is headquartered in Qingdao,
Shandong Province, the PRC and is today one of the world’s
leading white goods home electric appliance manufacturers
engaging in the research, development, production and sale of
a wide variety of household electric appliances (including the
white goods) and electronic consumer goods in the PRC. The
products of Haier Group are now sold in over 100 countries.
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Simplified Business Structure
EERRBE

Haier Electronics Group Co., Ltd.
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Washing Machine Integrated Channel Water Heater
Business Services Business Business
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After-sale Service
Logistics Business Business E-commerce Business
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Corporate Information
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Executive Director

Mr. ZHOU Yun Jie (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)

Non-executive Directors

Mr. LIANG Hai Shan

Ms. TAN Li Xia

Ms. Janine Junyuan FENG
Dr. WANG Han Hua

Mr. ZHANG Yong

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. YU Hon To, David
Dr. LIU Xiao Feng
Mrs. Eva CHENG LI Kam Fun

Alternate Director

Mr. GUI Zhaoyu (alternate to Ms. Janine Junyuan FENG)

PRINCIPAL BOARD COMMITTEES
Audit Committee

Mr. YU Hon To, David (Committee Chairman)
Dr. LIU Xiao Feng
Mrs. Eva CHENG LI Kam Fun

Remuneration Committee

Mrs. Eva CHENG LI Kam Fun (Committee Chairman)

Dr. LIU Xiao Feng

Mr. YU Hon To, David

Mr. ZHOU Yun Jie

Ms. Janine Junyuan FENG and Mr. GUI Zhaoyu
(alternate to Ms. Janine Junyuan FENG)
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Nomination Committee

Mr. YU Hon To, David (Committee Chairman)

Mrs. Eva CHENG LI Kam Fun

Dr. LIU Xiao Feng

Mr. ZHOU Yun Jie

Ms. Janine Junyuan FENG and Mr. GUI Zhaoyu
(alternate to Ms. Janine Junyuan FENG)

Strategic Committee

Mr. ZHOU Yun Jie (Committee Chairman)

Dr. LIU Xiao Feng

Ms. Janine Junyuan FENG and Mr. GUI Zhaoyu
(alternate to Ms. Janine Junyuan FENG)

Dr. WANG Han Hua (Observer)

COMPANY SECRETARY
Mr. NG Chi Yin

LEGAL ADVISORS
As to Hong Kong Law

DLA Piper Hong Kong

As to Bermuda Law

Conyers Dill & Pearman

PRINCIPAL BANKER IN HONG KONG

Industrial and Commercial Bank of China (Asia) Limited

PRINCIPAL BANKER IN THE PRC

China Construction Bank Corporation

AUDITORS

Ernst & Young
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Corporate Information (continued)
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FINANCIAL CALENDAR

30 June
31 December

Six-month interim period end
Financial year end

REGISTERED OFFICE

Clarendon House
2 Church Street
Hamilton HM 11
Bermuda

HEAD OFFICE AND PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS
IN HONG KONG

Unit 3513

35/F., The Center

99 Queen’s Road Central
Hong Kong

PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS IN THE PRC

Haier Industrial Park
No. 1, Haier Road
Qingdao, the PRC

PRINCIPAL SHARE REGISTRAR AND TRANSFER OFFICE

Codan Services Limited
Clarendon House

2 Church Street
Hamilton HM 11
Bermuda
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BRANCH SHARE REGISTRAR AND TRANSFER OFFICE
IN HONG KONG

Tricor Tengis Limited
Level 22 Hopewell Centre
183 Queen’s Road East
Hong Kong

TELEPHONE NUMBER

+852 2169 0000

FAX NUMBER

+852 2169 0880

STOCK CODE

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited:
01169

WEBSITE

www.haier-elec.com.hk

INVESTOR RELATIONS CONTACT

Porda Havas International Finance Communications Group
Units 2009-2018, 20/F, Shui On Centre

6-8 Harbour Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong

(852) 3150 6788

(852) 3150 6728
haier-elec@pordahavas.com

Telephone Number
Fax Number
E-mail Address
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Chairman’s Letter
FFER Y

1. OVERVIEW

Last year was apparently a fruitful year for Haier
Electronics. In 2013, we delivered record financial results
and realized record market capitalization, along with
higher dividends and increasing earnings per share,
drove remarkable value creation for our shareholders.
Looking ahead, we are well aware that the technological
advances and internet will reshape the industry landscape
rapidly, and if we cannot continue to innovate and create
customer delight, our existing competitive edges will
elapse quickly. To achieve sustainable quality growth in
the future, in year 2014 we will balance our short term
earning and longer-term needs, strengthen investment
and design growth initiatives with the current cash flow,
while our execution capability will be developed and
proved during the critical course of transformation.

Revenue
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FINANCIAL AND BUSINESS PERFORMANCE

In 2013, profit attributable to owners of the Company rose
by 20.2% year-on-year to RMB2,037 million. The Group’s
revenue amounted to RMB62,263 million, representing an
increase of 12.0% as compared to last year. Operating
profit and cash flows from operations increased by 18.3%
and 27.0% respectively, amounting to RMB2,770 million
and RMB2,210 million. In the past year, stock price of
Haier Electronics rallied again with an increase of 99.7%,
leading amongst peers and significantly surpassing Hang
Seng Index.

Regarding the three operating segments, Haier washing
machines ranked first in the world in terms of single-
brand sales volume for the fifth consecutive year with
a global market share of 13.3%. Operating margin of
washing machine business grew further to 8.7%. Haier
water heaters’ domestic market share reached 18.3%,
maintaining its number one position in China. The
Group continuously strengthened its market positions
for washing machines and water heaters in the 3rd and
4th-tier markets of China. Apart from traditional category
products, sales of newly developed product lines, such
as high-end front loading washing machine, gas water
heater and heat pump water heater grew rapidly.

Integrated channel service business was the main
growth engine for the Company, with segment revenue
accounting for 75.6% of the Company’s overall gross
revenue (before inter-segment elimination) and segment
operating profit accounting for 37.9% of the overall
operating profit. The sales growth of third-party brand
products is a major source of growth of the integrated
channel service business. In 2013, we expanded sales
of small home appliance with high growth potential, such
as water purification equipment. Logistics, installation
and after-sales services have also achieved considerable
growth.
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FINANCIAL AND BUSINESS PERFORMANCE
(continued)

In 2013, we made several crucial progresses in forming
strategic alliance and acquisitions, and which we expect
will build up a solid growth platform for the development
of the integrated channel services business. In December
2013, the Group announced its strategic cooperation with
Alibaba Group (“Alibaba”). The partnership will leverage
the Group’s competitive advantages in end-to-end
logistic services and Alibaba’s e-commerce ecosystem
resources, to create industry-leading service standards
for the logistics, distribution, installation and services of
household appliances and other large items open to the
whole society. Under the strategic cooperation, Alibaba
invested a total of HK$2,822 million in the Group, of
which HK$1,857 million was invested in Goodaymart
Logistics, a subsidiary of the Company, and HK$965
million was invested in subscription of equity shares of
Haier Electronics. This strategic alliance will significantly
accelerate the development of the Company’s third-party
logistics and supply chain management services.

In addition, the Group acquired Shanghai Boyol New
Brothers Logistics Services Company (“Shanghai Boyol”)
through controlling interests in Shanghai Boyol in January
2014. Shanghai Boyol is one of the leading last mile
logistic service providers for furniture and sanitary ware
in China. This acquisition has rapidly strengthened our
“last mile” logistics service capabilities for furniture and
sanitary ware.
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FINANCIAL AND BUSINESS PERFORMANCE
(continued)

The Company continued to develop new operation
models and launch new product categories. We provided
a wider range of distribution and value-added services
to existing franchise stores, such as supply chain
management and franchise store expansion. The benefit
of these services to the Group includes relatively lower
customer acquisition cost and strengthened relationship
between the company and the franchisee stores. We also
introduced new revenue model to new service offerings,
in which we charge service fee based on value creation
for customers rather than implementing a mere whole sale
mode. In addition, we expanded our services to large
household items such as furniture, by leveraging our
core-capabilities in home appliances industries. This will
significantly bring new growth horizon for the Company’s
business development.

NEW TRENDS

Personalized home appliances and Smart Home
Solution. In the past few years, competition in home
appliance industry has been shifting from pricing war
to customer value creation. Customers will not choose
product just for competitive pricing. To maintain
competitiveness, home appliance producer need to offer
quality products that exceed consumers’ expectation,
from all aspects of design, product innovation, features
and functional performance. Enterprises have to
endeavor to research and development, introducing
user-friendly smart appliances that respond to human
preference and needs, which create a more comfortable
and convenient living environment. To offer superior
smart home appliances solutions, brand owners should
have profound understanding of consumers’ expectation
on smart life, effectively interact with customers and
establish integrated supply chain capabilities.
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Chairman’s Letter (continued)
EERMY (&

NEW TRENDS (continued)

Robust growth for lifestyle appliances. The penetration
rate of traditional large home appliances rose significantly
in the past few years driven by government subsidies.
However, the penetration of lifestyle appliances remains
much lower than that of large home appliances with
far less categories than developed countries. After the
basic needs for home appliances are satisfied, the
increasing consumption power will boost customer
needs of home appliances that can optimize their living
quality. Moreover, consumers’ rising concerns towards
environmental pollution have triggered the demands for
health related small home appliances. In the coming few
years, lifestyle appliance is expected to undergo rapid
development.

Mobile internet. In 2013, we see rapid evolution in
distribution and retail model of home appliance. The
internet’'s impact on home appliance industry merely
emerged five years ago, yet we could expect that it will
be a dominant force in the next five years.

Nowadays, consumers not only use PCs but also smart
phones to search the prices and function parameters
of home appliance. The era of price transparency is
coming in real time. Enterprises can no longer influence
customer’s purchasing decision merely through marketing
campaigns and treat consumers as passive audiences.
Furthermore, users can use mobile payment tools to
settle the payment without the limitation of location. In
the era of mobile internet, we need to address how to
make a physical store not just a showroom, but also a
place to engage and guide customers to purchase, which
means we shall leverage the irreplaceable advantages of
physical stores in terms of in-store experience, delivery
and service.
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NEW TRENDS (continued)

The market for large-format products is to be
consolidated and the trends of outsourcing to
third-party logistics players is emerging. One of the
bottlenecks that restrain further growth of large items’
online sales is lack of high quality logistics service
providers who can provide one-stop services. Problems
such as delayed delivery, unavailable installation service,
poor return procedures and low service standard all affect
user experience. Some e-commerce companies may
opt to build their in-house delivery networks. However,
we believe major e-commerce players will choose to
outsource to professional third-party logistics companies
who can provide highly efficient end-to-end service,
especially companies with national-wide footprint. There
shall be increasing consolidation for regional logistics
networks for home appliance, thereby creating nationwide
third-party logistics service providers.

Higher proportion of online sales for large items such
as furniture. When customers purchase personalized
large items such as furniture, they usually need “touch
and feel” experiences in physical stores. The decision-
making cycle in relation to large items is relatively long.
And the customer’s experience during the entire shopping
journey, including timely delivery and good installation
service are crucial. In the future, the integration of mobile
internet and traditional offline model will create more
innovative business models. For instance, through 020
integration, customers are able to enjoy the interactions
during the whole process, beginning from demand
cultivation and product concept to manufacturing, and
lastly the purchase, delivery and after-sale service. More
importantly, thanks to the application of technology,
the entire shopping process could be shortened, the
visibility and timeliness during shopping journey could
be enhanced and the cost of channel service could be
reduced significantly.
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Chairman’s Letter (continued)
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DEVELOPMENT STRATEGY IN 2014

Washing machine business is still the largest profit
contributor for the Company. The major challenges that
we face in 2014 will be sluggish export business and the
price war in low- end markets. Water heater business
would achieve a double digits revenue growth in 2013,
if excluding the impact of the business restructure and
adjustment. There is ample room for growth in gas water
heater, solar water heater and heat pump water heater
segments.

We are committed to growing our washing machine and
water heater business with sustainable profitability. There
are three areas in which we need to focus on, namely
first class product offerings, expansion in right channel
with high growth potential and ongoing cost-productivity
enhancement. We have developed well-established layout
in the 3rd and 4th-tier markets in the past decade,
and achieved great operating efficiency leveraging our
economy of scale and powerful supply chain platform.
Our strategic focus in 2014 will be optimize the use of our
profound insights in smart home appliance, to build an
open platform that attracts customers to make interaction,
to offer industry-leading products that exceed customer’s
expectation.

Integrated channel services business will continue to be a
major engine of the Group’s growth in 2014 and logistics
platform, lifestyle appliances and furniture services will be
key growth drivers. We will exert all our strength to partner
with Alibaba, actively invest in logistics warehouse and
last mile delivery, and develop Goodaymart logistics
into a leading end-to-end large item logistics service
provider in China. We will build up our end-to-end core
capabilities with different methods, including exploring
joint ventures and strategic alliances. End-to-end core
service capabilities include integration of last-mile
network, warehousing and inventory management and the
third-party logistics information technology management,
etc.
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DEVELOPMENT STRATEGY IN 2014 (continued) P+ Z—Z—ERREERE (&)

Besides, centering on our “smart home” strategy, we EAREMBEENIR] AR 00K
will establish platforms for new product categories with B O ERERBNERNTMET
ample growth potential, including water purifier, furniture B IEFEKRE REAEREREEMLR
and household products, and value-added community Iﬁk c RERFTMET AR RBIEE

services. To achieve breakthrough and development
in newly expanded categories, we need to address the
following issues:

o Firstly, to focus on business model innovation,
integrate our nationwide distribution network with
internet technologies and build up a effective 020
model that address customers’ painpoints. We
believe the simple sharing of information between
online and offline channels and organizing joint-
marketing for the two channels are only the primary
020 model. In the future, 020 model needs
to incorporate supply chain management and
effectively address customer’'s whole process
needs, including sales forecasts, orders collection,
mass customization and inventory management,
fast delivery etc.

o Secondly, to reinvent existing processes and
transform organizational structure. It is more
difficult for a large, well-rooted corporation than
a start-up to innovate, because of organizational
inertia and existing procedure. We are well aware
of that, and we need to make sure that business
unit can effectively utilize the group’s resources
as well as maintain being innovative. In 2014, | will
put great emphasis on innovation management,
including self-driven “co-inherent interest body”
and afterwards, startup incubation mechanism for
entrepreneurs within and outside of the Company,
which | believe are the key to take the Company
to the next level.
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Chairman’s Letter (continued)
EERMY (&

4.

DEVELOPMENT STRATEGY IN 2014 (continued)

° Thirdly, to design open talent recruitment
mechanism and make investment in talents. We
will be more open-minded and diversified on the
board level and senior management level, and
attract more consumer internet professionals
and entrepreneurs. They will bring in valuable
contribution to offer perspectives of the external
landscape and thus conducive to make high-
quality strategic decisions.

PROSPECTS

2014 will be a year with both challenges and
opportunities. Looking ahead from macroscopic view,
the prospects of home appliance face more headwinds,
such as the slowdown of traditional large home appliance,
in particular refrigerators, washing machines and air-
conditioners, and industry competition is still fierce.
However, | want to point out that, we are embracing
tremendous opportunities than we ever had. While the
overall industry is experiencing a slower growth, our
innovative customization in online channel, integrated
omnichannel models will turn out to be competitive. There
has been increasing outsourcing of logistic services
to reduce the management cost of supply chain. Our
open third-party logistics platform, e-commerce business,
integrated channel services business for third-party
branded products and new categories will all generate
promising growth opportunities.
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PROSPECTS (continued)

In 2014, we will make more strategic bets and explore
growth option fast and frugally. We endeavor to learn
from startup entrepreneurs and draw on their customer-
driven innovation methods, and are committed to manage
a large company into smaller and innovative units,
cultivate a culture that encourages entrepreneurship
and challenging conventional mindset. Our nimble and
delayered organization structure should allow us to
implement our innovation culture of “Everyone to be a
Maker”, and enable business unit become energetic and
innovative.

It is my honor to walk together with everyone to where
we are now. | would like to express my heartfelt thanks to
all shareholders for their continuous trusts and supports.
2014 will be an important year during our transformation.
I'm confident that company’s most exciting days remain
ahead.
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BHEREBERLQ T

Directors and Senior Management
EENRSREEE

The directors and senior management of the Group during the
year are as follows:

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Ms. YANG Mian Mian, aged 72, has served as the Chairman
and an Executive Director of the Company since January 2005.
Ms. Yang is responsible for determining corporate strategies
and overall management of the Group. She graduated from
Shandong Industrial Institute, which is now known as Shandong
University, the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”) in
1963. As one of the founders of the Haier Group, she has
been in charge of the overall management of the white goods
business since 1984. She is currently the president of Haier
Group Corporation (“Haier Corp”) and the chairman of Qingdao
Haier Co., Ltd. (a company listed on the Shanghai Stock
Exchange (the “A-Share Company”)).

Ms. Yang is also a director of the following Group’s subsidiaries:
Beijing Haier Logistics Co., Ltd., Chongging Haier Washing
Machine Co., Ltd., Chongging Haier Water Heater Co., Ltd.,
Foshan Shunde Haier Electric Co., Ltd., Foshan Shunde Haier
Intelligent Electronics Co., Ltd., Haier Holdings (BVI) Limited,
Hefei Haier Washing Machine Co., Ltd., Qingdao Economy and
Technology Development Zone Haier Water Heater Co., Ltd.,
Qingdao Haier Drum Washing Machine Co. Ltd., Qingdao
Goodaymart Lejia Trading Co., Ltd., Qingdao Goodaymart Supply
Chains Co., Ltd., Qingdao Haier Washing Machine Co., Ltd.,
Qingdao Jiaonan Haier Washing Machine Co., Ltd., Qingdao
New Goodaymart Logistics Service Co. Ltd. and Wuhan Haier
Water Heater Co., Ltd.

Ms. Yang has retired as an Executive Director and the Chairman
of the Company with effect from 25 June 2013 as she has
reached the age of retirement. After her retirement, Ms. Yang
has been appointed as a Senior Advisor of the Company.
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS (continued)

Mr. ZHOU Yun Jie, aged 47, has been serving as an Executive
Director and general manager of the Company since 12
November 2009. He has been appointed as Chief Executive
Officer of the Company since 18 March 2013 and he has also
been appointed as the Chairman of the Company with effect
from 25 June 2013. He is also a member of the remuneration
committee, nomination committee and strategic committee
of the Company. Mr. Zhou graduated from the Huazhong
University of Science and Technology, the PRC with a Bachelor’s
degree in Engineering in 1988. He has a Master’s degree in
corporate management from the Ocean University of China, the
PRC and has completed his Doctoral courses with a diploma
in Management from the Xian Jiaotong University, the PRC.
He joined the Haier Group in 1988 and has over 20 years
of experience in the areas of sales management, enterprise
management and international business. Currently, he is an
Alternative President and Deputy Chairman of the board of Haier
Group, and also he is a deputy to the 12th National People’s
Congress of China.

Mr. Zhou is also a director of the following Group’s subsidiaries:
Chongging Hairi Logistics Co., Ltd., Chongging New Goodaymart
Electronics Sales Co., Ltd., Goodaymart (Shanghai) Investment
Co., Ltd., Haier Electronics Sales (Hefei) Co., Ltd., Haier
Electronics Sales (HK) Co., Ltd., Hefei Goodaymart Logistics Co.,
Ltd., Qingdao Goodaymart Supply Chains Co., Ltd., Qingdao
Haier Logistics Co., Ltd, Qingdao Lejia Electric Appliances
Co., Ltd., SHC International (HK) Ltd., Ocean Vast Enterprises
Ltd., Haier Group E-commerce Co., Ltd., Qingdao Goodaymart
Electronics Service Co., Ltd., Qingdao Haier Electronics Sales
Service Co., Ltd., Qingdao Goodaymart Lejia Jiaju Trading
Co., Ltd., Jiangsu Goodaymart Huadong Logistic Co., Ltd.,
HH Retail Limited, Haier International Business Corporation
Ltd., Haier Electrical Appliances Fourth Holdings (BVI) Limited,
Haier Washing Machines Holdings (BVI) Ltd., Haier Water
Heaters Holdings (BVI) Ltd., Haier Holdings (BVI) Ltd., Sunlit
Enterprise International Ltd., Crown Smooth Limited, Partner
Century Holdings Limited,and Heroic Plan Global Limited.
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Directors and Senior Management (continued)
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BHEREBERLQ T

Directors and Senior Management (continued)
ESREREEE (B)

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS (continued)

Mr. LI Hua Gang, aged 44, has served as a Chief Operation
Officer of the Company since 12 November 2009, and has
served as an Executive Director since 19 April 2010. Mr.
Li, graduated from the Huazhong University of Science and
Technology, the PRC in 1991 with a Bachelor’s degree in
Economics. He joined the Haier Group in 1991 and has since
held a number of senior positions in the sales and marketing
functions with his expertise in the sales management in the 3rd
and 4th tier markets of the PRC.

Mr. Li is also a director of the following Group’s subsidiaries:
Chengdu Haixin Goodaymart Electric Appliance Co., Ltd.,
Ltd., Chongging New
Goodaymart Electronics Sales Co., Ltd., Fujian Goodaymart

Chongging Hairi Logistics Co.,
Electric Appliance Co., Ltd., Goodaymart (Shanghai) Investment
Co., Ltd., Haier Electronics Sales (Hefei) Co., Ltd., Haier
Electronics Sales (HK) Co., Ltd., Hefei Goodaymart Logistics
Co., Ltd., Hunan Goodaymart Electric Appliance Co., Ltd.,
Qingdao Haier Logistics Co., Ltd, Shandong Goodaymart
Electric Appliance Co., Ltd., Xuchang Goodaymart Electric
Appliance Co., Ltd., Yantai Goodaymart Electric Appliance Co.,
Ltd., Hefei Goodaymart Electric Appliance Co., Ltd., Suzhou
Goodaymart Electric Appliance Co., Ltd., Liaoning Goodaymart
Trading Co., Ltd., Xinjiang Goodaymart Electric Appliance Co.,
Ltd., Jiangsu Subei Goodaymart Electric Appliance Co., Ltd.,
Tangshan Goodaymart Electric Appliance Co., Ltd., Wuhan
Goodaymart Electric Appliance Co., Ltd., Shanxi Goodaymart
Electric Appliance Co., Ltd., Nanchang Goodaymart Electric
Appliance Co., Ltd., Wenzhou Goodaymart Electric Appliance
Co., Ltd., Qingdao Yatai Goodaymart Electric Appliance Co.,
Ltd., Changshu Suchang Electric Appliance Sales Co., Ltd.,
HH Retail Limited, Foreland Agents Limited, Coreland Limited,
Impressive Holdings Limited, Haier Washing Machines Holdings
(BVI) Limited.

Mr. Li has resigned as an Executive Director of the Company
with effect from 26 March 2014.
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NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. LIANG Hai Shan, aged 47, has served as an Executive
Director of the Company since December 2001 and has been
re-designated as Non- executive Director with effect from 12
November 2009. Mr. Liang was previously mainly responsible
for strategic procurement and overall quality control of products
of the Group. He is currently responsible for identifying
market opportunities and white goods business strategies
formulation of the Company. He received a Bachelor's degree
of Industry from the Xian Jiaotong University, the PRC and
has 25 years of experience in the manufacture of household
electrical appliances, particularly in raw material procurement
function and white goods business. He is also an Executive Vice
President of Haier Corp, the General Manager and Chairman of
Qingdao Haier Co., Ltd. and a director of the following Group’s
subsidiaries: Beijing Haier Logistics Co., Ltd., Qingdao Economy
and Technology Development Zone Haier Water Heater Co.,
Ltd., Chongqging Haier Drum Washing Machine Co., Ltd., Foshan
Haier Drum Washing Machine Co., Ltd., Qingdao Haier New
Energy Electronics Co., Ltd. and Qingdao Haier Investment and
Development Holdings (BVI) Limited.

Ms. TAN Lixia, aged 43, has served as an Non-executive
Director of the Company since 18 November 2013. Ms. Tan
graduated from Central University of Finance and Economics, the
PRC and has a master degree in Business Administration from
the China Europe International Business School upon completion
of the EMBA program. She is a Fellow of the Chartered Institute
of Management Accountants and has been designated as a
Chartered Global Management Accountant (CGMA). She joined
Haier Group in 1992 and had held the positions as the Head of
Department of Overseas Market Development of Haier Group
and Head of Department of Financial Management of Haier
Group. Currently, she is the Senior Vice President and the Chief
Financial Officer of Haier Group. Ms. Tan also holds positions of
Deputy Chairman of the Board of directors of Qingdao Haier Co.,
Ltd., director of Bank of Qingdao Co., Ltd, the PRC, and director
of Fisher & Paykel Appliances Holdings Limited. Ms. Tan was
awarded titles such as Model Worker of Shandong Province (14
HE B H)KE), Outstanding Entrepreneur of Shandong Province
(LLEREEFDER), the China CFO of the Year (FEAETRIEE
A#)) and China Top Ten Women in Economic Area (1 Bl K4
SEEFE AYD). Ms. Tan is also a member of the 11th executive
committee of the All-China Women's Federation.
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BHEREBERLQ T

Directors and Senior Management (continued)
ESREREEE (B)

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS (continued)

Ms. Janine Junyuan FENG, aged 45, has been appointed as a
Non- executive Director of the Company since 24 August 2011.
She is also a member of the remuneration committee, nomination
committee and strategic committee of the Company. Ms. Feng
joined the Carlyle Group in 1998, she is currently a Managing
Director of the Carlyle Group. Ms. Feng has been involved in
many direct investments by the Carlyle Group in consumer,
financial and industrial companies in the PRC. Prior to joining the
Carlyle Group, Ms. Feng worked for Credit Suisse First Boston’s
New York office, engaging in investment banking business. Ms.
Feng is currently serving as a non-executive director of Natural
Beauty Bio- Technology Limited, a company listed on the Stock
Exchange (stock code:157), since November 2009. Ms. Feng
received an MBA degree from Harvard Business School in 1996.

Dr. WANG Han Hua, aged 49, has served as an Non-Executive
Director of the Company since 1 June 2013. Dr. Wang obtained
his Doctor of Philosophy degree from the University of Nebraska
of the United States in 1994. He is the China Managing Director
of Sonos Inc, a US based, world leading wireless HiFi producer
since April 2014. Prior to this, he took position as the chief
executive officer of Allyes Information Technology (Shanghai)
Co., Lid. ({F BB B85 (L)) BRAF), an internet company
providing full digital marketing solutions of data, technology
and product to its customers, in December 2012. Prior to
this, Dr. Wang had been the president of Amazon (China)
Holding Company Limited from May 2005 until November
2012 and was responsible for the sale, marketing, cooperation
and the construction of B2C E-commerce ecological chain
of Amazon in China. Prior to joining Amazon (China) Holding
Company Limited, Dr. Wang served a number of positions with
Motorola Mobility Technologies (China) Company Limited Beijing
branch company (BEFfEZ& BB F T (R E) BRARILRD A A])
between 1998 and 2005 including as marketing director, director
of strategy and corporate planning, vice president of the Asia
Pacific region and general manager of the mobile telephone
operations of China.
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ALTERNATE DIRECTOR

Mr. GUI Zhaoyu, aged 42, has been appointed as the alternate
Director to Ms. Janine Junyuan Feng since 24 August 2011. Mr.
Gui is a director of the Carlyle Group and is focused on Asia
buyout opportunities with a particular focus on opportunities in
the PRC. Mr. Gui is primarily based in Beijing. Prior to joining the
Carlyle Group, Mr. Gui was a Vice President of the Investment
Banking Department at China International Capital Corporation
in Beijing, and a Vice President of J.P. Morgan Securities (Asia
Pacific) Limited in Hong Kong. He also has working experience
at the Special Investment Department of CIC and two state-
owned companies, and had founded his own logistics company.
Mr. Gui received his MBA degree from Massachusetts Institute
of Technology Sloan School of Management.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. WU Yinong, aged 51, has served as an Independent Non-
executive Director of the Company since January 2005. Mr. Wu
graduated from Portland State University in the United States of
America with a Master’'s degree in Business Administration in
1994. He is currently the Managing Director of China Investment
Securities (Hong Kong) Financial Holdings Limited. He has been
in the investment banking industry for more than 17 years. Mr.
Wu has retired as an Independent Non-executive Director of the
Company with effect from 28 May 2013.
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BHEREBERLQ T

Directors and Senior Management (continued)
ESREREEE (B)

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS (continued)

Mr. YU Hon To, David, aged 66, was appointed as an
Independent Non- executive Director of the Company on 21 June
2007. Mr. Yu is a fellow member of the Institute of Chartered
Accountants in England and Wales and an associate member
of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
He was formerly a partner of an international accounting firm
with extensive experience in corporate finance. Mr. Yu is
the Chairman of MCL Financial Group Ltd, a Hong Kong
based financial advisory and investment firm. He serves as an
independent non-executive director of several other companies
listed on the Stock Exchange, namely Great China Holdings
Limited, China Renewable Energy Investment Limited, Media
Chinese International Limited, One Media Group Limited,
Playmates Holdings Limited, Sateri Holdings Limited, Synergis
Holdings Limited, VXL Capital Limited, China Resources Gas
Group Limited, Keck Seng Investments (Hong Kong) Limited,
and New Century Asset Management Limited (the manager of
New Century Real Estate Investment Trust).

Dr. LIU Xiao Feng, aged 51, was appointed as an Independent
Non- executive Director of the Company on 21 June 2007. He
is currently the Managing Director of China Resources Capital
Holdings Co., Ltd.. He has worked in various international
financial institutions since 1993, including N. M. Rothschild &
Sons, JP Morgan and DBS. He has many years of experience
in corporate finance. Dr. Liu has a Ph.D and Master degrees
from the Faculty of Economics, University of Cambridge and
a Bachelor's degree in Economics from Sichuan Institute of
Finance and Economics, China. Dr. Liu is currently also an
independent non-executive director of Kunlun Energy Company
Limited and Honghua Group Limited, both of which are publicly
listed companies on the Stock Exchange.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS (continued)

Mrs. Eva CHENG LI Kam Fun, aged 61, was appointed as
an Independent Non-executive Director of the Company on 1
June 2013. Mrs. Cheng graduated from the University of Hong
Kong with Bachelor of Arts (Hons) and Master of Business
Administration degrees. Mrs. Cheng began her career with
Amway Hong Kong in 1977. In 2011, she retired from her
positions as executive vice president of Amway Corporation
and executive chairman of Amway China Co. Ltd. During her 34
years with Amway, Mrs. Cheng’s area of responsibilities covered
markets in the Greater China and Southeast Asia regions.

Mrs. Cheng’s leadership was well recognized in the business
community. She was twice named the “World’s 100 Most
Powerful Women” by Forbes Magazine in 2008 and 2009.
CNBC awarded Mrs. Cheng with the “China Talent Management
Award” in its 2007 China Business Leaders Awards. Mrs. Cheng
is currently an independent non-executive director of Esprit
Holdings Limited and Trinity Limited, companies listed on the
Main Board of the Stock Exchange, and The Link Management
Limited (the manager of The Link REIT which is listed on the
Hong Kong Stock Exchange), and Amway (Malaysia) Holdings
Berhad, a company listed on the main market of Bursa Malaysia
Securities Berhad. Mrs. Cheng is also a director of Nestle
S.A. which is listed on the SIX Swiss Exchange. In the areas
of public and community service, Mrs. Cheng is the founding/
honorary chairman of the Amway Charity Foundation. In Mainland
China, Mrs. Cheng is a member of the executive committee of
the All-China Women’s Federation, executive director of the
Spring Sprout Special Fund under the China Next Generation
Education Foundation and member of the Chinese People’s
Political Consultative Conference — Guangdong Commission.
In Hong Kong, Mrs. Cheng is honorary president of the All-
China Women’s Federation Hong Kong Delegates Association,
honorary president of the Hong Kong Federation of Women, and
permanent honorary committee member of The Chinese General
Chamber of Commerce.

Annual Report 2013 F &3

Directors and Senior Management (continued)

ESkEREERE (&)

BYFHTES (&)

BFRIzL 61 R_T—=F ARk
RERARRRFUIATES - BRITEXNE
BRE BXBETREBLSMNTHERRLS
e BZER—NELFMALHN (FE) - —F
— —FRRA IR B LA RIAIT R B K F
(FE) BERBBRAFRRITER - EERLZ IR
NEBAFEES BT AT EBRBRTERRE
DM 2 TG o

BZ+FHNERENEEAETEE TR
ZENFRZZEENFWELBXBForbes (1@
mEH) FHEN2RENRAFEHNLE] X
BEHCNBCHEN TS+ FEPREESEM
BIHESGEASTEERER]  BLTHRBERAHR
FrER LA BRIRIKIZERBIR AR RF =
REBRARZBIIFNTEERBEEEERA
A (BABRHTEMARBEZEERA) 2B
HERITES  URBERALELFRHAERLET
ZRF (BRAE) ERBMR AR 2B IERNT
EE BT HARLIELSS G T 2EER
RARIZES - RAKRMEARFEES - B+
REEMAmEcenNEle ZEXE - RPERA
o B+t RIPEEARFBLBESHATEZESE
B HET-AYEELSELZBEESHUITE
E -HFEARBAGECEEREEZEGEE -
RES BT RHPE2RHFEZHESBEHH
REBEEEESR  AESARABEHES
FEERRBEBFELHSKERESE -

27




28

Haier Electronics Group Co., Ltd.

BHREREEBRLA

Directors and Senior Management (continued)

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. XIE Ju Zhi, aged 48, graduated from Shandong Economics
College in July 1989 specialised in Economics and Management.
He has held senior positions in Electrothermal Product division
and East China division of Marketing and Promotion Division
of the Haier Group, and served as the general manager of the
Customer Service Operation Company of the Haier Group since
August 2002. He has over 10 years of experience in service
management. Currently, he is mainly responsible for the Group’s
customer service and channel business expansion of community
stores in the 1st and 2nd tier markets. He also serves as the vice
chairman of the Subcommittee on Household Electric Appliances
Service of National Technical Committee on Household Electric
Appliances of Standardization Administration of China, and the
vice chairman of the presidium of the China National Household
Electric Appliances Service & Maintenance Association.

Mr. DIAO Yun Feng, aged 42, graduated from the Southeast
University, the PRC in 1995. He joined the Haier Group in
1995 and has held a number of senior positions including
the director of overseas marketing management of the Haier
Group and the general manager of Haier International Business
Corporation Limited. He has experience in managing domestic
small home electric appliances business, particularly has
19 years of experience in overseas market expansion and
overseas corporate management. He is currently the director
of small home electric appliances division of the Group, and
is responsible for the global small home electric appliances
segment of the integrated channel services business.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT (continued)

Mr. HUANG Xiao Wu, aged 36, was appointed as Deputy
General Manager of the Company in November 2009. Mr.
Huang holds a Master's degree in Business Administration
from the University of Hong Kong and a Bachelor’s degree in
Engineering from the University of Chong Qing. Mr. Huang is
responsible for assisting the General Manager in implementing
the Group’s corporate development strategy. Mr. Huang has
16 years of extensive experience in banking, investment and
corporate finance. Prior to joining the Group, he had worked
with a commercial bank and several investment banking firms.

Mr. TAO Jun, age 49, has been appointed as Chief Financial
Officer of the Company since 1 March 2013. Mr. Tao has a
Master degree in Business Administration from the Murdoch
University in Australia and his Bachelor degree in Economics
from Zhongnan University of Finance and Law in China. Prior
to joining the Haier Group, Mr. Tao was an executive director
of a household electrical appliance company listed in Hong
Kong, a financial director of a joined venture owned by a large
state-owned company and a blue chip Hong Kong property
company. Mr. Tao has over 20 years of financial management
experience in retail, distribution and household electrical
appliance business. Mr. Tao also has extensive experience in
merger and acquisition business as he has worked in investment
field over 10 years. Mr. Tao did not act as the Chief Financial
Officer of the Company since November 2013 due to internal
reallocation of appointments.

Mr. ZHAN Bo, aged 34, has been appointed as the General
Manager of the finance department of the Company since 12
November 2013. Mr. Zhan graduated from Tianjin University
of Finance and Economics, the PRC, with a Bachelor’s degree
in Economics. He joined the Haier Group in 2002, and has
since held a number of senior financial positions in Haier
Group finance department, Haier Europe trading company,
Haier Group telecommunication business and Haier Global
Marketing department. He has extensive experience in financial
management.
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Directors and Senior Management (continued)

SENIOR MANAGEMENT (continued)

Mr. SHU Hai, aged 47, has served as the General Manager of
washing machine product division of the Company since June
2009. Mr. Shu has a Master’s degree in International Trade from
Ocean University of China, the PRC. He joined the Haier Group
in 1995 and has since held a number of senior positions in the
washing machine business. He is currently responsible for the
sales, research and development and production management
of the washing machine business of the Group.

Mr. SUN Jing Yan, aged 43, has served as an Executive Director
of the Company until August 2011 due to the reallocation of
appointments within the Haier Group. Mr. Sun has been the
General Manager of the Haier Group’s Electrothermal Product
Division since 2005 and is mainly responsible for the operation
of the Group’s water heater business. Mr. Sun graduated from
Shandong Institute of Light Industry, the PRC in 1993 with a
Bachelor in Engineering in Machine Design and Manufacture. He
joined the Haier Group in 1993 and has since held a number of
senior positions in the Electrothermal Appliance Department of
the Haier Group. He has over 20 years of extensive experience
in water heater business.

Mr. WANG Zheng Gang, aged 41, has served as the General
Manager of Qingdao Haier Logistics Co., Ltd., since March 2003,
and has currently served as the director of logistics division of
the Group. Mr. Wang graduated from Tianjin University in 1995.
He also graduated from the Xian Jiaotong University, the PRC
with a Master’s degree in Logistics Engineering in 2007. He
has 18 years of experience in the manufacture of household
electrical appliances, particularly in raw material procurement
function and logistics business. He is currently responsible
for developing the logistics business of the Company and
identifying related market opportunities.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT (continued)

Mr. REN Xian Cun, aged 40, graduated from Jilin Industrial
University in 1997, and obtained his Executive Master of
(EMBA) from the University of
International Business and Economics, the PRC in 2005. He

Business Administration

joined the Haier Group in 1997 and has held senior positions
such as the general manager of Haier Air-conditioning in the
PRC and the general manager of various regional centers of
Haier. He has 18 years of experience in market planning and
marketing management in the home electric appliances industry,
particularly has professional experience in the operation and
management of the home electric appliances channels. He is
currently the director of Haier products of the Group, and is
mainly responsible for Haier products segment of the integrated
channel services business.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. NG Chi Yin, aged 48, joined the Company on 18 March
2009 as Company Secretary. Mr. Ng graduated from the Faculty
of Business Administration of the Chinese University of Hong
Kong with a Bachelor's degree in business administration.
He is also a fellow member of the Association of Chartered
Certified Accountants, and a member of the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants and the Institute of Chartered
Accountants in England and Wales. He has over 25 years of
experience in auditing, finance and company secretarial matters.
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Business Review
¥ b B

In 2013, the Group continued to deliver record results, achieving

quality growth in overall revenue and robust earnings growth,

which drove significant value for shareholders. Profit attributable

to owners of the Company increased by 20.2% year-on-year to
a new record high of RMB2,037 million and diluted earnings per
share rose by 18.1% year-on-year to RMB78.14 cents per share.

During the period:

The Group’s revenue grew significantly by 12.0% to
RMB62,263 million from RMB55,615 million in 2012,
mainly attributable to a year-on-year increase of revenue
from integrated channel business service by 13.4% to
RMB57,568 million;

The Group’s operating profit rose 18.3% year-on-year
to RMB2,770 million, as operating profit margin of the
integrated channel business increased by 0.4 percentage
points to 1.8% as compared with last year, while the
operating profit recorded a substantial year-on-year
increase of 42.8% to RMB1,050 million; and operating
profit from the white goods manufacturing business
increased by 7.1% to RMB1,720 million;

Cash flow continued to improve. Net operating cash
flow grew 27.0% year-on-year to RMB2,210 million and
accounting for 108.5% of net profit attributable to owners
of the Company.
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INDUSTRY OVERVIEW

In 2013, exports from Chinese home appliance enterprises
showed a modest increase due to the recovery of overseas
demand for home appliances. The growth rate of each overseas
market varied given the diverging pace of economic recovery and
exchange rate movements. Driven by recovery in the economy
and real estate transaction volumes, the U.S. performed relatively
well amongst major export markets. Demand for home appliances
in the Asia-Pacific markets maintained a stable growth, however,
exports from Chinese enterprises were affected as the Japanese
brands became more competitive with the depreciating Yen.
Furthermore, as a result of the slow economic recovery economy
of European markets, as well as the currency fluctuation in
emerging markets such as South American countries, Chinese
exports to these regions have been slowing down.

At the beginning of last year, domestic demand for home
appliances grew moderately due to recovery in the property
transactions and the government’s energy-saving subsidies.
The growth rate of overall demand for home appliances has
been slowing since the energy-saving subsidies ended on 31
May. According to data from the Ministry of Commerce tracking
sales of three thousand major retail enterprises, sales of home
appliances recorded a year-on-year increase of 11.1% in 2013.
Although the growth in overall demand has been gradually
slowing as sales were increasingly driven by replacement
demand, consumers continued to trade up to higher-end home
appliance products, which drove continuous product mix
enhancement for the overall industry. Consumers were paying
more attention to products quality. High-end home appliance
products, such as energy-efficient, environmental-friendly and
smart home appliance were becoming more popular. As for the
washing machine market, the sales of front-loading washing
machines in the domestic market significantly outgrew top-
loading washing machines, and domestic market share of front-
loading washing machines by sales volume increased to 30%
from 26% in 2012. As for the water heater market, the high-end
and high volume water heaters also gained market shares. On
the other hand, thanks to the energy saving subsidy program
and increasing demand for water heaters with instant-heat
function, the sales growth of gas water heaters outpaced that
of other categories.
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INDUSTRY OVERVIEW (continued)

Online shopping developed rapidly in 2013. The average
spending of online transactions has been gradually increasing
as the online shopper became older and wealthier. Increasingly,
internet users care more about product quality than price.
According to research by iResearch Consulting Group in 2013,
33% of internet users indicated that product quality is the main
factor to consider when shopping online, while only 19% of
internet users considered price as the most important factor.
Online shopping has been penetrating rapidly into the 3rd
and 4th-tier markets, as a result of continuous urbanization,
fast income growth of consumers in the 3rd and 4th-tier cities,
as well as improving logistics and delivery services in these
markets. Meanwhile, along with the increasing popularity of
mobile devices such as smart phones and mobile payment, it is
forecasted that more purchases will be made on mobile devices
in the future and customers will be able to search, browse, make
price comparisons and payments using mobile devices.

With the rapid development of online shopping, e-commerce
platforms and merchants operators are seeking for professional
and high-quality logistics services. On one hand, online sales
demonstrate strong seasonal pattern, the surge in sales during
peak periods, such as “November 11th Shopping Festival”,
puts enormous pressure on inventory management and delivery
services providers. While delivery service is critical to the
customer experience, logistical services in China is insufficient
and lags behind developed countries, considering the lack
of modern, highly efficient warehousing facilities, as well as
logistics delivery service with consistent quality. Domestic
e-commerce platforms began to build its own warehousing and
delivery network, with a focus on the “last mile” delivery services
aiming to improve logistics and delivery service standards.
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BUSINESS SEGMENT REVIEW panziE b AE)
The breakdown of revenue and profit by segment for 2013 are —ZE—Z=ZF2F D BIKRA R EE K L F
set out as below: ™
Segment revenue Segment results
PEBRABRLHIE PEEBERLHIE
Washing Machine Integrated Channel Services Washing Machine Integrated Channel Services
i 18.7% KA RYE 75.6% Wk 44.8% RiBHARE 37.9%
Water Heater Water Heater
#7keE 5.7% #keE 17.3%

Note: The proportion of the above pie charts is presented in it :  _FHtEEEEKH OIEZRE D FRAREEE
accordance with the aggregate amounts of segment revenue and FTEST + KREBKRARZEASHEEH -

results, without taking into account inter-segment eliminations of

revenue and results.

Washing Machine Business PR

During the period, the Group’s washing machine business REIR @ NEBERXEEEEIRBQIAZE AR
recorded revenue of RMB14,222 million, representing an year- 142.22{8 750 8 EFE R IN71% (T ——
on-year increase of 7.1% (2012: RMB13,277 million). The growth % : ARM132.7787T) BT — —FHIE &
rate in 2013 was slower than the 8.7% year-on-year increase 8.7% 8P N% « IR+ BRH OEBE NFAT
recorded in 2012, mainly attributed to the significant decrease  F/£ - REF AT IS E R EZEAREE129.71
in export sales. Domestic sales of washing machines amounted 87T * Rt EA10.83% c ZE—=FHOEHKF
to RMB12,971 million for the year, representing a year-on-year 2| AREFE R FIINTISE R REHNT L LA
growth of 10.3%. Export sales revenue declined 17.8% year- T8 « SEERHE L OGINEE R L TR
on-year, attributed mainly to Renminbi appreciation and weak  17.8% °

overseas demand.
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BUSINESS SEGMENT REVIEW (continued)
Washing Machine Business (continued)

Amongst the Group’s major export markets, sales to Europe
decreased substantially, as home appliance demand remain
weak amid slow economic recovery. The Japanese brands
became more competitive in export markets due to the
depreciation of the Yen, which affected the Group’s export sales.
Influenced by currency fluctuation in South American markets,
export sales recorded a significant decline.

According to global home appliance market research published
by Euromonitor, Haier’'s washing machines ranked first in the
world in 2013 in terms of single-brand sales volume for the fifth
consecutive year, accounting for 13.3% of the global market
share. According to China Market Monitor, the Group’s washing
machines continued to rank the first in China in terms of sales
volume, with a market share of 28.1%, down by 3.1 percentage
points year-on-year. Based on our analysis, we believe that
the decline in market share was because some competitors
gained significant market share in top-loading washing machine
segment in last year. On the other hand, the samples data
gathered by China Market Monitor monitored market information
from appliances retailers in 846 cities and counties, which
may not match the Group’s geographical market distribution.
During the period, sales of washing machine through the
Group’s integrated channel services business unit amounted to
RMB9,417 million, representing 66.2% of the total sales revenue,
up from 60.9% in 2012.

The Group operated under multi-brands and launched products
with various positioning to address the demands in different
segments. While maintaining continuous development of the
“Haier” brand, our “Casarte” brand captured the consumption
upgrade trend and consumers’ demand for superior product.
“Leader” brand, with its modular production, addressed the
demand for product customization in the age of internet, which
helped to boost the Group’s sales in emerging sales channels.
During the period, the sales of washing machines under the
“Leader” brand increased by over 50%.
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BUSINESS SEGMENT REVIEW (continued)
Washing Machine Business (continued)

To tackle the challenges such as rising labor costs and
fluctuating raw materials prices, the Group reduced production
costs with modular production and enhancing efficiency through
automated production. Leveraging on parent company Haier
Group’s advanced technology in five overseas research centers,
we expanded profit margin of the washing machine products with
industry-leading products and product portfolio optimization.
During the period, the Group introduced the second generation
of Crystal Series, with new features of auto detergent dispense
based on hardness of water and quantity of clothes, in addition
to its speedy-clean and quiet-wash features.

The Group has gained recognition in both domestic and overseas
markets thanks to its sophisticated design and excellent product
features. In March 2013, Haier Mini washer and Haier Cloud
Power washer won the “iF Product Design Award”, which is
also reputed as the “Design Oscar”. The Group’s washing
machines won three awards, namely “2013 World’s Leading
Innovative Washing Machine Brand”, “2013 Leading Inverter
Technology Product in the Global Washing Machine Industry”
and “2013 World’s Leading Professional Dryer Product”, in the
third China Washing Machine Industry Summit Forum jointly held
by the State Information Center and China Household Electrical
Appliances Association.

Water Heater Business

The Group’s water heater business recorded revenue of
RMB4,358 million, representing a decrease of 2.9% when
compared to 2012 (2012: RMB4,489 million). The decline was
mainly attributed to the business adjustment and restructure
done during the year, which involved the transfer of network
development function for the 3rd and 4th-tier markets from
water heater business unit to the integrated channel business
unit. Excluding the effect of the business structure adjustment,
comparable revenue of water heaters would grow approximately
11% during the period, according to our analysis.
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BUSINESS SEGMENT REVIEW (continued)
Water Heater Business (continued)

According to China Market Monitor data, Haier water heater
remained as the number one brand in China in terms of
sales volume, with a market share of 18.3%, representing a
decrease of 1.6 percentage points as compared with last year.
According to our analysis, the decline of market share of water
heaters was because when the energy-saving subsidy was
still in effect, consumers preferred the subsidized gas water
heaters and solar water heaters. This has adversely affected
the growth of unsubsidized electronic water heaters which
contributed the largest portion of the Group’s water hater sales.
On the other hand, the samples data gathered by China Market
Monitor monitored market information from appliances retailers
in 846 cites and counties, which may not match the Group’s
geographical market distribution.

During the period, excluding the effects of business structure
adjustment, sales of water heaters through the integrated
channel business unit would account for more than 80% of the
total sales, higher than that of last year.

During the period, the Group has introduced new products in
response to the customers’ growing interest in with instant-heat
electronic water heaters, and gas water heaters that delivers
constant hot water supply and addresses safety concerns. The
ECO-SMART feature of our water heater can record the bathing
pattern of users for up to one month, then carrying out an auto
analysis to pre-heat the water automatically according to the user’s
profile. This shortens the waiting time and reduces energy wasted
due to re-heating. In addition, Haier “Safeguard” gas water heater
monitors the leak of carbon monoxide and methane to ensure the
safety of users. It also solves the problem of unstable hot water
supply by designing and installing a constant temperature module.

In March 2013, Haier Air pump water heater and M-series gas
water heater won the “iF Product Design Award” for its stunning
design and product features, the award is also known as the
“Design Oscar”.
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BUSINESS SEGMENT REVIEW (continued)
Integrated Channel Service Business

The Group’s integrated channel service business developed
rapidly during the year, recording revenue of RMB57,568 million,
representing an increase of 13.4% over 2012 (2012: RMB50,769
million). The growth of the integrated channel business was mainly
contributed from rapid growth of third-party products’ sales.

In 2013, we focused on developing new products categories
with great growth potential, such as water purifiers and lifestyle
appliance. Logistics, installation after-sales services business
were further enhanced subsequent to the newly developed
e-commerce clients and large format household products
clients. The e-commerce business achieved significant year-
on-year increase in sales by over 300% last year, thanks to the
Group’s customer-centric strategy, product customization and
highly integrated supply chain.

Distribution Unit

To increase customer stickiness in an increasing omnichannel
world, during the period, the Group worked closely with R&D
team for product optimization, and expanded franchisee store
network in 3rd and 4th tier markets.

By implementing standardized store management programs,
the Group assisted the franchisees to create a better shopping
experience and thereby
enhancing their profitability. Our on-site supervisors provided

improve operational efficiency,
various professional retail management support services for the
franchisees, which included: (1) advising on store format design
and assortment strategy, in order to improve the area efficiency
of the store; (2) providing training for store managers and store
associates to enhance their product knowledge and interaction
skills, especially on how to use the mobile internet to engage
potential customers; (3) designing incentive programs for store
managers and associates to improve store management and
employee’s motivation and so on. During the year, we provided
retail management services for approximate 1,200 retail stores,
and 900 store managers were trained.
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BUSINESS SEGMENT REVIEW (continued)
Distribution Unit (continued)

In 2013, the operating efficiency was improved significantly,
while administrative expense ratio declined, mainly due to
the following measures: (1) promoting interactive activities
with customers to replace advertisement marketing via media;
(2) introducing profit sharing incentive mechanism to make
the district channel management and marketing department
responsible for expenditure and efficiency, in order to
enhance the efficiency of organization and operation of district

subdivisions.

As for categories of products, on the basis of continuing to
deepen cooperation with existing brand vendors, especially with
those of turnkey subcontracting, the Group was also committed
to the development of new categories of products for customer’s
growing awareness of healthcare, such as water purifiers in
order to meet customer’s raising awareness about health.

As at the end of the period, there were more than eight thousand
Haier stores and nearly a thousand Goodaymart franchise stores
selling multi-brand appliances in the county- level markets while
there were a total of more than 30,000 points of sales at all levels
of markets around the country.

Logistics Unit

In the past year, the improvement of the logistics segment
focused on the following aspects, optimization of its business
structure to increase profit margin; integration of external
resources in order to strengthen the Group’s “last mile” service
capabilities; introduction of strategic partners to help the
company accelerate the expansion of its large-format items
service platform business.
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BUSINESS SEGMENT REVIEW (continued)
Logistics Unit (continued)

During the period, the gross profit margin of the logistics
segment increased from 7.7% in 2012 to 8.1% in 2013, mainly
attributable to the optimization and streamline of the logistics
business by the Group that provided tailor-made logistics
services for more customers in accordance with their business
requirements, such as end-to-end logistics and transport
services, one-stop solutions with inventory management services
and warehousing and distribution.

The Group announced jointly with Alibaba Group (“Alibaba”)
their strategic cooperation in December 2013. On the basis
of strengthened existing cooperation with Tmall, a subsidiary
of Alibaba, the Group will build on its capabilities in retailing
and nation-wide distribution network, especially in the vast 3rd
and 4th-tier markets, to accelerate the expansion of service
platform of large-sized goods, such as home appliances,
furniture and bathroom products, to develop innovative supply
chain management solutions and products to satisfy customer
demand, as well as to create more business opportunities for
the franchise network of the Company throughout the country.

The Group entered into a joint venture agreement with Shanghai
Boyol New Brothers Logistics Company Limited (“Shanghai
Boyol”) this year, pursuant to which, the company holds 60%
equity interest in the joint venture. Shanghai Boyol is one of the
leading third-party logistics providers of furniture and bathroom
accessories distribution service in PRC. Shanghai Boyol has
extensive experience in large-format goods transportation and
“last mile” service and its partners include famous enterprises
including IKEA and Kohler. Apart from realizing resources
integration, through the joint venture agreement, the Group will
be able to enhance its competitiveness in “last mile” logistics
services for the bathroom accessories industry and to set up an
open platform for home appliance logistics.
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BUSINESS SEGMENT REVIEW (continued)
After-sales Service Unit

During the period, the after-sales service unit developed
extended warranty and value-added products business rapidly,
and sales revenue soared nearly 40%. The Group further
expanded service capabilities to provide after-sales service to
large format items, such as furniture. By integrating upstream
and downstream resources, applying relatively mature service
standards for home appliance, the Group aims to build the
largest third-party professional furniture installation services
platform in China.

During the period, the group further developed its service
network, and had nearly 20,000 service providers throughout
the nation as at the end of 2013. Haier after-sales service
was honored the first place in the “Customer Satisfaction
Evaluation in China” conducted by China National Institute of
Standardization, and was honored as one of the Top Ten After-
sales Service Providers in China by China General Chamber of
Commerce.

E-commerce Unit

Revenue of E-commerce unit recorded significantly growth,
soared 304.9% year-on-year to RMB1,758 million in 2013.
With its nationwide logistic and services network, the Group
differentiated itself with integrated delivery and installation
services, speedy delivery within 24 hours that tailored for the
customers’ schedule. At the “November 11th Shopping Festival”
on Tmall.com, Haier was the champion of home appliance
industry with sales of RMB180 million.
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BUSINESS SEGMENT REVIEW (continued)
E-commerce Unit (continued)

With our focus on product customization, the Group actively
interacted with users on online platforms and mobile devices to
understand the needs of consumers. Leveraging on the Group’s
competitive supply chain, the Group has been promoting
product customization to expand its sales in emerging channels
such as internet sales platform. In mid 2013, the Group launched
face-panel customization campaign for Leader air-conditioner,
significantly boosting the sales of Leader air-conditioner on

e-Haier and other e-commerce platforms.

The Group has followed closely the trend in consumer preference
towards quality products when they shop online thanks to its
active interaction with users, and realized higher proportionate
sale of high-end products. The Group launched Tianzun series
Air-conditioners on e-Haier in December 2013 with an average
selling price of close to RMB20,000. Consumers can control
Tianzhu A/C with their mobile devices and use Tianzhun to filter
small particles, such PM2.5.
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The Group achieved stable financial performance in 2013.
The Group’s revenue amounted to RMB62,263,162,000,
representing an increase of 12.0% from RMB55,615,047,000
in 2012. The profit attributable to owners of the Company was
RMB2,036,882,000, representing an increase of 20.2% from
RMB1,695,122,000 in 2012. The basic earnings per share
attributable to ordinary equity holders of the Company was
RMB80.15 cents, representing an increase of 13.3% from
RMB70.73 cents in 2012.

1. ANALYSIS OF REVENUE AND PROFIT
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2013 2012 Change%
—=—= —E——fF B %
ltems RMB’000 RMB’000
1HH AR¥TR ARBT T
Revenue PN
Washing machine business BEAR TS 14,221,925 13,277,283 +7.1%
Water heater business EOKZRETE 4,357,657 4,489,460 -2.9%
Integrated channel services RBIRE R
business 57,567,787 50,768,583 +13.4%
Inter-segment elimination A EBHE 8 (13,884,207) (12,920,279) +7.5%
Consolidated revenue A HUA 62,263,162 55,615,047 +12.0%
EBITDA EBITDA 2,755,703 2,384,332 +15.6%
Profit attributable to owners of  ZN/2 &) B R fE1f )i F)
the Company 2,036,882 1,695,122 +20.2%
Earnings per share attributable 22 7] &AL E
to ordinary equity holders of R EREAT
the Company
Basic (RMB cents) R (AR¥S) 80.15 70.73 +13.3%
Diluted (RMB cents) e (AR%ED) 78.14 66.18 +18.1%
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ANALYSIS OF REVENUE AND PROFIT (continued)

The revenue of the Group for 2013 continued to achieve
steady growth, increasing by 12.0% to RMB62,263,162,000,
as compared to RMB55,615,047,000 in 2012. During the
year, the increase of revenue was mainly attributed to the
rapid growth of the integrated channel services business,
supplemented by the steady growth from the washing
machine business. Revenue from the washing machine
business amounted to RMB14,221,925,000, representing
an increase of 7.1% as compared to RMB13,277,283,000
in 2012. Revenue from water heater business amounted
to RMB4,357,657,000, representing a decrease of 2.9%
as compared to RMB4,489,460,000 in 2012. Excluding
the transfer of certain network development function for
the 3rd and 4th tier markets from water heater business to
integrated channel services business, the revenue of the
water heater business would increase by approximately
11% as compared to prior year. The faster growth of the
integrated channel services business made a substantial
contribution to the revenue of the Group during the year.
The revenue from the integrated channel services business
amounted to RMB57,567,787,000 in 2013, representing an
increase of 13.4% as compared to RMB50,768,583,000
in 2012.

The revenue increase in the integrated channel services
business was, on one hand, primarily derived from the
Group’ improved management of the distribution network
in the 3rd and 4th tier home appliance markets of China
and its unique integration of the physical distribution
network with internet technologies, which has increased
our market share steadily in the 3rd and 4th tier markets;
on the other hand, the Group achieved faster growth in
the third party products sales, after-sale services and
e-commerce businesses. In 2013, the Group’s e-Haier
business made contributions to the integrated channel
services business with revenue of RMB1,757,922,000,
representing an increase of 304.9% as compared to
RMB434,165,000 in 2012.

1.
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Financial Review (continued)
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ANALYSIS OF REVENUE AND PROFIT (continued)
Profit attributable to owners of the Company

In 2013, the profit attributable to owners of the Company
was RMB2,036,882,000, representing an increase of
20.2% from RMB1,695,122,000 in 2012. The basic
earnings per share attributable to ordinary equity
holders of the Company was RMB80.15 cents in 2013,
representing an increase of 13.3% from RMB70.73
cents in 2012. In 2013, the Group’s EBITDA (earnings
before interest, tax, depreciation and amortisation) was
RMB2,755,703,000, representing an increase of 15.6%
from RMB2,384,332,000 in 2012.

Gross Profit Margins

In 2013, the gross profit margin of the washing machine
business was 27.3%, decreased by 0.5 percentage
points compared with 27.8% in 2012, which is mainly
due to the increase in the raw material cost and the
decreased gross profit margin of the export business.
The gross profit margin of the water heater business
was 35.5%, decreased by 7.5 percentage points as
compared with 43.0% in 2012. The decrease in the
gross profit margin of the water heater business was
mainly due to the transfer of certain network development
function to integrated channel services business during
the year. This arrangement led to the above decrease
in gross profit margin for this segment, as well as the
corresponding decrease in the selling and distribution
costs ratio.

In 2013, the Group’s overall gross profit margin of the
integrated channel services business was 8.2%, which is
in line with that of 2012. The Group’s overall gross profit
margin was 14.7% in 2013, representing a decrease of
1.4 percentage points from 16.1% in 2012. Except for the
decrease in gross profit margin of the washing machine
and water heater businesses as discussed above, the
decrease was mainly due to the increase in proportion of
integrated channel services business which had a lower
profit margin as compared to the manufacturing business.
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ANALYSIS OF REVENUE AND PROFIT (continued)
Selling and Distribution Expenses

The ratio of selling and distribution expenses of the
Group’s washing machine and water heater businesses
to its segment revenue declined by 2.9 percentage
points from 17.2% in 2012 to 14.3% in 2013. On the one
hand, that was mainly attributable to the change in the
group marketing strategy from traditional marketing to
precise marketing, on the other hand, certain network
development function of water heater business was
transferred to integrated channel services business, as
a result, the ratio of selling and distribution expenses of
the water heater business dropped significantly.

The ratio of selling and distribution expenses of the
integrated channel services business to its segment
revenue was 4.7%, which is in line with that of last year.
Excluding the transfer of the certain network development
function from water heater business to integrated channel
services business, the selling and distribution expenses of
the integrated channel services business would decrease
by approximately 1% as compared to prior year, which
was mainly due to the enhanced marketing efficiency
because of the precise marketing strategy.

Administrative Expenses

During the year, the ratio of administrative expenses of the
Group’s washing machine and water heater businesses to
its segment revenue was 6.2%, representing an increase of
0.4 percentage points from 5.8% in 2012, which was mainly
due to the imposed taxes on appliances for future disposal
and higher research and development expenses incurred in
the current year. The ratio of administrative expenses of the
integrated channel services business to its segment revenue
was 1.8%, representing a decrease of 0.2 percentage points
from 2.0% in 2012. That was mainly due to the one-off
administration and liquidation expenses incurred in the prior
year by the joint venture established by the Group and Home
Retail Group (UK). Excluding that one-off factor, the ratio
of the administrative expenses of the integrated channel
services business would drop by 0.1 percentage points as
compared to prior year, which was mainly attributed to the
enhanced administrative expenses efficiency.

1.
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2. FINANCIAL POSITION 2. B AR R
2013 2012
—E-=F —E——4F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TR ARBFIT
Items IEH

Non-current assets EREEE 2,851,266 2,172,657
Current assets TMENVE E 19,029,897 16,040,609
Current liabilities mENBE 12,431,096 10,921,309
Non-current liabilities FmBAE 1,392,403 1,451,729
Net assets BEFE 8,057,664 5,840,228

Cash and Cash Equivalents ReNBEELEEEE

In 2013, the Group maintained a healthy financial position.
The cash and cash equivalents balance increased by
27.1% from RMB5,368,308,000 as at 31 December
2012 to RMB6,824,322,000. The increase was mainly
attributable to the growth in net cash flows from operating
activities during the year, representing an increase of
27.0% as compared to last year.

Net assets

In 2013, the Group’s net assets increased by 38.0%
from RMB5,840,228,000 as at 31 December 2012 to
RMB8,057,664,000 as at 31 December 2013.

ZE-ZFAREERFTRENGB
K RekReEEBEBBLEHRZ
TE—-——_F+-_A=Z+—BZAR®K
5,368,308,0007T & F27.1%% A R ¥
6,824,322,0007L c N FEREETEBmMN
FRELFEFHRSANEA  BAFIE
£27.0% °

BEFE
TE=FAREEZEEFEN T —=
FH+ A =+—H2Z AR®5,840,228,000
JT - EIB8.0%E—E—=FF+_-_A=+
—Hz AR¥8,057,664,0007T °



FINANCIAL POSITION (continued)
Working Capital
Trade and Bills Receivables Turnover Days

The bills receivables turnover days of the Group’s
washing machine and water heater businesses was 60
days at the end of 2013, representing a considerable
decrease of 31 days as compared with the corresponding
period of last year, which was mainly due to the increase
in the cash settlement proportion for the washing machine
and water heater businesses by the integrated channel
services business as a result of the centralized cash
management of the group. This arrangement had also led
to the corresponding increase in bills receivables turnover
days of the integrated channel services business. The
trade receivables turnover days of the Group’s washing
machine and water heater businesses was 16 days, which
was in line with that of last year. The proportion of the
bills receivables to the total trade and bills receivables
was 78.4% (31 December 2012: 85.2%), most of which
were bank’s acceptance bills with minimal risk of default.

In the integrated channel services business, the majority
of customers in the 3rd and 4th tier markets are relatively
small customers, and the sales are generally under
a payment term of cash on delivery. Our business
model aims at reducing the customers’ working capital
requirements and facilitating the cash-settled payment
method. The bills receivables turnover days increased
from 4 days at the end of 2012 to 13 days, which was
mainly due to the change of internal settlement method
as discussed above. The trade receivables turnover days
increased from 8 days at the end of 2012 to 11 days,
which is mainly attributable to the substantial growth of
the small home appliances business with relatively longer
working capital cycle during the year.
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FINANCIAL POSITION (continued)
Working Capital (continued)
Inventory Turnover Days

Under the Group’s Just-In-Time policy, the Group has
implemented a series of measurements including rolling
order forecasts, made-to-order and procured-to-order
productions, which helped maintain a relatively low
inventory level. At the end of 2013, the inventory turnover
days of the washing machine and water heater businesses
was 22 days, decreased by 1 day as compared to the
end of 2012.

In 2013, inventory turnover days of the Group’s integrated
channel services business was 16 days, representing an
increase of 1 day as compared to prior year. That was
mainly attributed to the increased inventory level of the
distribution network for preparing sales in the Spring
Festival, which was one week earlier than prior year.

Trade Payables Turnover Days

The trade payables turnover days of the Group’s washing
machine and water heater businesses was 25 days at the
end of 2013.

The trade payables turnover days of the integrated
channel services business was 14 days, maintaining a
relatively low level.

BEARR (&)
BEES (B)
FEHABXE

AEBE [EFHECEETHRNFANMH]
RET EBERTRBTERL - BE4L
E - RERES - R NERELMRE
BIERETF - X RBKBEERE T —
—EFRNEFBEREA2K  B-F
——FFRTEIK -

AEE T -=FREFARBEBNE
FBEBXH /16K BEBE MK =
ZMREHRFABREN—&  HEREH
BIRINFTE -

FE(T BRI B BXH

AREFRREEBKBER T —=—FF
REER RFUAE KRB A25K °

REEARBEBNRNRIEBRER
14K REFEBIEKF -



Annual Report 2013 & &E3§

Financial Review (continued)
B E R (48)

CASH FLOW ANALYSIS REERADH
2013 2012
—E-=F —E——4F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T ARET T

ltems BH

Net cash flows from operating activities #&&EH RS REFHE 2,210,030 1,740,167
Net cash flows used in investing activities &&/EFH 2B &R EFHE (1,654,029) (649,083)
Net cash flows from financing activites  B&EEB 2R E RS H5E 73,200 114,925
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents R& NKIBSHEEE 28 HFEE 629,201 1,206,009

The Group’s net cash inflow from operating activities
increased by 27.0% in 2013 as compared with 2012,
which was mainly due to the growth in net cash flows
from the profit of the operating activities during the year.

The Group’s net cash outflow from investing activities
increased by 154.8% as compared with that of 2012,
which was mainly due to the increase of RMB847,000,000
in time deposits with original maturity over three months
at the end of the year. The major items of capital
expenditure consist of the construction of additional
logistics warehouse, the purchase of plant and equipment
for capacity expansion and the cash outflow for other
investment projects.

Net cash inflow from financing activities was
RMB73,200,000 during the year, which mainly included
inflows upon exercise of warrants and share options
(RMB172,518,000), investment from minority shareholders
(RMB5,500,000) and additional net borrowings for the
year (RMB111,994,000). Cash outflow from financing
activities mainly included dividends (RMB180,042,000),
interest payment of convertible bonds (RMB25,375,000)
and shares purchased for Restricted Share Incentive
Scheme (RMB7,863,000).

TEZHFAREEZEEH IBERAF
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LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

The Group focuses on cash flow management and has been able
to maintain a healthy financial and liquidity position. The Group
recorded a current ratio of 153.1% as at 31 December 2013,
representing an increase of 6.2 percentage points compared
with 146.9% in 2012. As at 31 December 2013, the Group’s cash
and cash equivalents balance amounted to RMB6,824,322,000
(31 December 2012: RMB5,368,308,000). Bank and other
borrowings amounted to RMB174,633,000 (31 December
2012: RMB39,800,000). Shareholder’s borrowings amounted to
RMB24,301,000 (31 December 2012: RMB59,537,000) and the
liabilities portion of the convertible bonds were RMB716,835,000
(31 December 2012: RMB699,643,000), respectively. As a
result, the Group’s net cash balance (cash and cash equivalents
balance, net of bank and other borrowings, shareholder’s
borrowings and the liabilities portion of the convertible bonds)
as at 31 December 2013 amounted to RMB5,908,553,000 (31
December 2012: RMB4,569,328,000), representing an increase
of 29.3% over last year.

The Group will maintain strong operating cash flows and sources
of liquidity in 2014 that are adequate to meet its working capital
requirements for the next year, construction of the e-commerce
platform and logistics network, as well as to maintain financial
flexibility for future strategic investment opportunities.

CAPITAL EXPENDITURE

The Company assesses its capital expenditure and investments
in the businesses of the washing machine, water heater and
integrated channel services from time to time. The capital
expenditure during the year was RMB577,788,000, which was
mainly used for the investments of the Company in developing
the integrated channel services, including the construction of
logistics warehouse as well as factory equipment modifications
for washing machines and water heaters.
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GEARING RATIO

As at 31 December 2013, the Group’s gearing ratio (defined as
total borrowings (including the liabilities portions of convertible
bonds) over net assets) was 11.4% (31 December 2012: 13.7%).

TREASURY POLICIES

The Group adopts a prudent approach in its cash management
and risk control. Most of the Group’s revenues and expenses are
denominated in Renminbi. Cash is generally placed in short term
deposits denominated either in Renminbi or Hong Kong dollars.
Foreign currency risk is largely, though not fully, mitigated, as
liabilities in Renminbi will be substantially offset by the Group’s
revenue, most of which are derived from domestic sales in
China and denominated in Renminbi. Only approximately 6.0%
of the Group’s revenue is derived from export sales and is
denominated in other currencies. The Group does not have
any significant interest rate risk as it has an overall net cash
balance. The Group does not have any financial instrument for
hedging purposes.

CAPITAL COMMITMENT

The Group’s capital commitments contracted but not yet
provided for amounted to RMB258,342,000 as at 31 December
2013 (31 December 2012: RMB106,883,000), which were mainly
related to the purchase of machinery for the Group’s businesses
capacity expansion as well as construction of warehouse for
the logistics business. Capital commitments authorised but
not yet contracted amounted to RMB20,766,000 (31 December
2012: RMB179,008,000) which mainly related to the warehouse
construction for the logistics business in 2014.
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CHARGE OF ASSETS

The Group’s short-term bank loans as at 31 December 2013
were secured by floating charges over the Group’s inventories
totaling RMB61,540,000 (31 December 2012: RMB76,740,000).

Further, as at 31 December 2013, certain of the Group’s
bills payables were secured by the pledge of the Group’s
bank deposits of RMB220,350,000 (31 December 2012:
RMB61,804,000) and the Group’s bills receivables of
RMB76,842,000 (31 December 2012: RMB122,809,000).

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

At the end of the reporting period, neither the Group nor the
Company had any significant contingent liabilities.

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICY

The total number of employees of the Group decreased by
approximately 4.6% to 16,506 as at 31 December 2013 from
17,304 as at 31 December 2012. The Group ensures that the
remuneration packages for its employees remain competitive,
and its employees are generally remunerated with fixed monthly
salaries, which are reviewed annually, along with discretionary
performance bonuses.
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DIVIDENDS

The Board has proposed a final dividend of HK10 cents per
share in cash to shareholders whose names appear on the
register of members of the Company on Wednesday, 18 June
2014 for the year ended 31 December 2013. All the dividends
will be paid upon approval by shareholders at the Company’s
forthcoming annual general meeting. The final dividend will be
paid on around Friday, 18 July 2014.

This dividend represented approximately 10% of the profit
attributable to the owners of the Company for the year, and
will be distributed out of the contributed surplus account of the
Company. The Group shall retain sufficient cash for maintaining
a strong financial position for capturing strategic investments
when opportunities arise, and in particular, achieving the
financial flexibility in relation to investments in the integrated
channel services business. The Company will review the payout
ratio in the coming period and will increase that ratio should the
financial situation allow.
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TRERKRE

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The board (the “Board”) of directors (the “Directors”) and the
management (the “Management”) of Haier Electronics Group Co.,
Ltd. (the “Company”) recognise that sound corporate practices
are crucial to the efficient operation of the Company and its
subsidiaries (collectively the “Group”) and the safeguarding of
our shareholders’ interests. In this regard, the Board attaches
great priority to reinforce the Company’s corporate governance
standards with emphasis on transparency, accountability and
independence in order to enhance our long-term shareholders’
value.

The Company has complied with the applicable code provisions
(the “Code Provision(s)”) and principles under the Corporate
Governance Code (the “Code”) as set out in Appendix 14 to the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities (the “Listing Rules”)
on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”) during the year except for certain deviations as
described below. The Board shall review its code from time
to time to ensure its continuous compliance with the Code.
This report describes the Company’s corporate governance
practices, explains its applications of and deviations from the
Code, together with considered reasons for such deviations.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Composition

As at 31 December 2013, the Board currently comprises two
Executive Directors, four Non-executive Directors and three
Independent Non-executive Directors (the “INED(s)”).

The Board has at least one-third in number of its members
comprising INEDs throughout the year with the exception that
following the retirement of Mr. Wu Yinong as an independent
on 28 May 2013,
independent non-executive Directors and the members of

non-executive Director, the number of
the audit committee had fallen below the minimum number
required under Rules 3.10(1) and 3.21 of the Listing Rules
and the required composition of the remuneration committee
and nomination committee had fallen below the requirements
under Rule 3.25 of the Listing Rules and Code Provision
A.5.1, respectively. Following the effective commencement of
appointment of Mrs. Eva Cheng Li Kam Fun as an independent
non-executive Director on 1 June 2013, the Company has
fulfilled the requirements of minimum number of independent
non-executive directors under the Listing Rules. The Company
has also fulfilled the requirements of the composition of the
Company’s audit committee, remuneration committee and the
nomination committee under the Listing Rules.

At least one of the INEDs possesses appropriate professional
qualifications or accounting or related financial management
expertise under Rule 3.10 of the Listing Rules. The Directors are
well-versed in respective areas such as legal, accounting and
finance, business management and industry knowledge and the
Board as a whole has achieved an appropriate balance of skills
and experience. The Directors’ biographical details, by category
of Directors, are set out on pages 20 to 27 of this annual report.

To the best of the Company’s knowledge, there is no financial
or family relationship among the Board members. All of them
are free to exercise their independent judgment on all matters
concerning the Company.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)
Composition (continued)

Under Code Provision A.4.1, non-executive directors should be
appointed for specific terms, subject to re-election. Currently,
all non-executive directors of the Company are not appointed
for a specific term but are subject to retirement by rotation and
re-election at the annual general meeting of the Company (the
“AGM”) in accordance with the Company’s Bye-laws and their
appointment will be reviewed when they are due for re-election.

The Bye-laws have stated clearly the procedures for the
appointment of new directors, re-election and removal of
directors. Under the Bye-laws, the Board may from time to time
appoint a director either to fill a casual vacancy or as an addition
to the Board. Any such new director shall hold office until the
next following general meeting of the Company or until the next
following AGM and shall then be eligible for re-election at the
same general meeting.

Board diversity policy

The Company has adopted the board diversity policy during the
year. The Company recognizes and embraces the benefits of
having a diverse Board to enhance the quality of its performance
and as an essential element in maintaining strategic objectives
and sustainable development. The Company hopes to increase
the level of board diversity when refreshing and renewing board
membership. All Board appointment will be based on merits
against objective criteria and with due regards for benefits
and balance of diversity on the Board. Board diversity will
be considered in terms of, among other things age, gender,
educational and cultural background, expertise, industry
experience and independence, in order to complement and
extend the skills, know-how and experience of the Board.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)
Board diversity policy (continued)

As at 31 December 2013, the Board comprises 9 directors. Six
directors are male and three are female. Six directors are under
the age group of 41 to 50; one is under the age group of 51 to
60; and two are under the age group of 61 to 70. Six directors
have served the Board below 5 years; two have served the
Board between 5 to 10 years; and one has served the Board
between 11 to 15 years.

Delegation by the Board

The Directors are collectively responsible for setting the Group’s
strategies, providing leadership and guidance to put them
into effect, reviewing and monitoring the performance of the
Group and are accountable to the Company’s shareholders. To
maximise the effectiveness of the Group’s operations, the Board
has delegated management and administration of the Group’s
daily operations to the Executive Directors and the Management
while reserving several important matters for its approval. To this
end, the Board has adopted written guidelines (the “Guidelines”)
laying down the division of functions between the Board and the
Management (including the Executive Directors for the purpose
of the Guidelines).
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)
Delegation by the Board (continued)

Pursuant to the Guidelines, the major functions of the Board and
the Management are summarized as follows:

The Board is principally responsible for:

1. determining the overall strategy;
2. reviewing all significant policies of the Group;
3. monitoring the performance of the Management to ensure

that the business operations of the Group are properly
planned and undertaken;

4. approving interim and annual results of the Group based
on recommendations made by the audit committee of the
Company;

5. approving material contracts and transactions for which

the Management is required to obtain the Board’s prior
approval; and

6. subject to the requirements of the Listing Rules, approving
transactions in which connected person(s) (as defined in
the Listing Rules) of the Group is/are considered having
a material conflict of interests.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued) g (&)

Delegation by the Board (continued) ESSCRE (&)

The Management is principally responsible for: EREXZRE

1. exercising all such other powers and perform all such BREZSR NESSHRIEZE S8

other acts as may be exercised and performed by the
Directors, save and except for those that may specifically
be reserved by the Board and/or the committees set up
by the Board for decision and implementation; or those
that may only be exercised by the Board pursuant to
The Companies Act of Bermuda, the Bye-laws of the
Company (the “Bye-laws”), the Listing Rules and/or the
Hong Kong Codes on Takeovers and Mergers and Share

Repurchases;

2. formulating and implementing policies for business
activities, internal controls and administration of the
Company;

3. planning and deciding the Company’s strategies on its

business activities; and

4. keeping proper written records of its decisions taken
which may be inspected by any members of the Board
or the Board committees upon request.

The Board reviews those arrangements and the Guidelines on
a periodic basis to ensure that they remain appropriate to the
needs of the Group.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer (“CEO”)

Under Code Provision A.2.1, the roles of chairman and chief
executive officer (“CEQ”) should be separated and should
not be performed by the same individual. Prior to the effective
commencement date of her retirement as an executive Director
and chairman of the Company on 25 June 2013, Ms. Yang Mian
Mian had served as the chairman of the Company whilst also
performing the functions of CEO until the appointment of Mr.
Zhou Yun Jie (“Mr.Zhou”), an executive Director, as CEO on
18 March 2013. The Board has met regularly to consider major
matters affecting the business and operations of the Group. The
Board believes that through the supervision of the Board and
its independent non-executive Directors, checks and balances
exist so that the interests of the shareholders are adequately
and fairly represented. With the appointment of Mr. Zhou as
CEO on 18 March 2013, there was compliance with the terms
of Code Provision A.2.1 with effect from 18 March 2013 until the
appointment of Mr. Zhou as also the chairman of the Company
on 25 June 2013 such that following such appointment, Mr. Zhou
had performed both the roles of a chairman and CEO. After
evaluation of the current situation of the Company and taking
into account the experience and past performance of Mr. Zhou,
the Board is of the opinion that it is appropriate and in the best
interests of the Group at the present stage for Mr. Zhou to hold
both positions as the chairman and CEO of the Company as it
helps to maintain the continuity of the policies and the stability of
the operations of the Group. It also helps to promote the efficient
formulation and implementation of the Company’s strategies
which will enable the Group to seize business opportunities
efficiently and promptly. The Board comprising a vast majority
of non-executive Directors also meets regularly on a quarterly
basis to review the operations of the Group and to consider other
major matters affecting the business of the Group. Accordingly,
the Board believes that this arrangement will not have negative
influence on the balance of power and authorizations between
the Board and the management of the Company. In addition,
through the continuing supervision of the Board and its
independent non-executive Directors, checks and balances
continue to exist so that the interests of the shareholders are
continued to be adequately and fairly represented.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)
INEDs

The INEDs have the same duties of care and skill and fiduciary
duties as the Executive Directors. They are expressly identified
as such in all corporate communications that disclose the names
of the Directors.

The INEDs are experienced professionals with expertise in areas
of accounting and finance. With their professional knowledge and
experience, the INEDs advise the Company on its operation and
management; provide independent opinion on the Company’s
connected/continuing connected transactions; participate in the
Company’s audit committee meetings, remuneration committee
meetings and nomination committee meetings. The INEDs also
contribute to provide adequate checks and balance to protect
the interests of the Company and the Company’s shareholders
as a whole, and to promote the development of the Company.
The Company has received an annual confirmation of
independence from each of the INEDs pursuant to Rule 3.13 of
the Listing Rules and considers that all INEDs to be independent
as the date of this report.

Supply of and access to information

Newly appointed Directors will receive induction packages
containing the duties and responsibilities of directors under the
Listing Rules and other applicable rules and regulations.

All the Directors are briefed and updated from time to time on
the latest legislative and regulatory developments to ensure that
they are fully aware of their responsibilities under the Listing
Rules, applicable legal and regulatory requirements.

In order to ensure that their duties can be properly discharged,
the Directors are entitled to seek advice from independent
professional advisers whenever deemed necessary by them at
the Company’s expense.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)
Professional development

The Company encourages the Directors to attend any relevant
programme to enhance their knowledge so as to discharge their
duties and responsibilities more effectively. During the year, all
Directors have attended various relevant training programmes
which include:

(a) Participation in conferences and seminars organized by
various external organizations relevant to the business
or directors’ duties, and for update on corporate
governance. Ms. Yang Mian Mian, Mr. Zhou Yun Jie, Mr.
Li Hua Gang, Mr. Liang Hai Shan, Ms. Tan Li Xia, Ms.
Janine Junyuan Feng, Dr. Wang Han Hua, Mr. Yu Hon To,
David, Dr. Liu Xiao Feng, Mrs. Eva Cheng Li Kam Fun,
Mr. Wu Yinong and Mr. Gui Zhaoyu have attended the
relevant conferences and seminars.

(b) Private study of materials relevant to the director’s duties
and responsibilities. Ms. Yang Mian Mian, Mr. Zhou Yun
Jie, Mr. Li Hua Gang, Mr. Liang Hai Shan, Ms. Tan Li Xia,
Ms. Janine Junyuan Feng, Dr. Wang Han Hua, Mr. Yu Hon
To, David, Dr. Liu Xiao Feng, Mrs. Eva Cheng Li Kam Fun,
Mr. Wu Yinong and Mr. Gui Zhaoyu have undertaken the
private study.

The Company Secretary of the Company, who is a full-time
employee of the Company, has taken no less than 15 hours of
relevant professional training.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)
Board Meetings

During the year ended 31 December 2013, apart from the
adhoc meetings and consents obtained by means of written
resolutions of all the Board members, the Board had held four
scheduled meetings at approximately quarterly intervals and one
additional meeting to review and approve, among other things,
the 2012 annual results and 2013 interim results, the overall
Group’s strategy, discloseable and connected transactions and
continuing connected transactions of the Group. The Company’s
board meetings (the “Board Meeting(s)”) are permitted to
be held by means of telephone or other means of electronic
communication under the Bye-laws.

Sufficient notices are served and comprehensive information
is provided to the Board members in advance of all the Board
Meetings in order to enable them to make informed decisions
on all matters transacted at the Board Meetings.

The proceedings of the Board Meetings are conducted by
the Chairman of the Board or another Executive Director who
ensures that sufficient time is allowed for discussion among
the Directors and equal opportunities are being given to the
Directors to express their views and share their concerns.

The Company Secretary attends the Board Meetings to advise
Directors on corporate governance practices, and statutory
compliance, accounting and financial issues whenever deemed
necessary by the Board.

The Company Secretary is responsible for preparing minutes
recording all matters transacted and resolved at the Board
Meetings. All the Board minutes are kept by the Company
Secretary and are open for inspection by the Directors.
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Board Meetings (continued) EEgEE (B

The following table shows the attendance of the Directors atthe TEXABRE - T—ZF+_A=Z+—BILFE
scheduled Board Meetings during the year ended 31 December W EZRTFTHESS SR 2HESR .

2013:
No. of the
scheduled
Board Meetings
attended/held
bE BTz
EHEEY
BERE
Executive Directors: HTES.:
Ms. Yang Mian Mian (Chairman) Gt (£/E) 3/3
(retired on 25 June 2013) (R=ZFE—=F N NH=—+HHRT)
Mr. Zhou Yun Jie BAEREE 5/5
Mr. Li Hua Gang FEEM| A 5/5
Non-Executive Directors: FHITES !
Mr. Liang Hai Shan 205k A 1/5
Ms. Tan Li Xia BEERTL 0/0
(appointed on 18 November 2013) (R=ZF—=F+—A+/HEZF)
Ms. Janine Junyuan Feng BETZ L 5/5
Dr. Wang Han Hua FEEEL 2/2
(appointed on 1 June 2013) (R=ZF—=FNA—HEZ(T)
INEDs: BYFHTES :
Mr. Wu Yinong RIMBERE 1/2
(retired on 28 May 2013) (R=ZF—=FnH=+/HREF)
Mr. Yu Hon To, David ANEE L 5/5
Dr. Liu Xiao Feng e iE A+ 5/5
Mrs. Eva Cheng Li Kam Fun B RS 4 2/2
(appointed on 1 June 2013) (R=ZF—=FNA—HEZT)
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)
Board Meetings (continued)

It is challenging to arrange the Board Meeting that fits in with
the tight and busy schedules of all the Directors. In particular,
as certain of the Non- executive Directors devote considerable
time and efforts to the management and operation of the Group’s
business, they were only able to attend some of the Board
Meetings in person and their attendance rate at the Board
Meetings were relatively low during the year. To enable all the
Directors to keep abreast of the Group’s latest development
and to discharge their duties properly, the Company Secretary
briefed the Directors on those matters transacted at the Board
Meetings that they were unable to attend. In addition, draft and
final versions of the Board minutes were sent to all Directors for
their comments and records.

Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors

The Company has adopted a Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors (the “Haier Electronics Model Code”)
on no less exacting terms than the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers set out in Appendix 10
to the Listing Rules. Upon enquiry by the Company, all directors
of the Company have confirmed that they have complied with
the required standard as set out in the Haier Electronics Model
Code throughout the year ended 31 December 2013.

In addition, the Board has adopted written guidelines (the
“Employees’ Guidelines for Securities Transactions”) for
securities transactions by employees (the “Relevant Employees”)
who are likely to be in possession of unpublished price sensitive
information of the Company on no less exacting terms than the
Haier Electronics Model Code. Having made specific enquiries
of all the Relevant Employees, the Company confirmed that
all the Relevant Employees had complied with the required
standard as set out in the Employees’ Guidelines for Securities
Transactions throughout the year ended 31 December 2013.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)
Board Committees

The Board has established an Audit Committee (the “Audit
Committee”), a Remuneration Committee (the “Remuneration
' (the “Nomination
Committee”) and a Strategic Committee (the

Committee”), a Nomination Committee
“Strategic
Committee”) (collectively the “Committees”) to oversee specific
aspects of the Company’s affairs. The Committees report to
the Board regularly, and have been provided with sufficient
resources to discharge their respective duties. To reinforce
independence, the chairman of the Committees other than the
Strategic Committee is an INED. Each of the Committees has
adopted specific terms of reference covering its duties, powers
and functions which will be reviewed by the Board from time
to time. The Company Secretary also acts as secretary of the
Committees. The Committees adopt as far as practicable, the
procedures and arrangement of the Board Meeting in relation
to the conduct of meetings, notice of meetings and recording
of minutes. Further particulars of each of the Committees are
set out below:

(1)  Audit Committee

The Audit Committee currently comprises all three INEDs
and is chaired by Mr. Yu Hon To, David. Mr. Yu is a
professional accountant and was formerly a partner of
an international accounting firm. The terms of reference
(revised) of the Audit Committee are available on the
respective websites of the Company and the Stock
Exchange.

The primary duties of the Audit Committee are to ensure
the objectivity and credibility of financial reporting, to
make recommendation to the Board on the appointment,
reappointment and removal of the Group’s external
auditors and review of the Company’s financial controls,
internal control and risk management systems. Each
member of the Audit Committee has unrestricted access
to the Group’s external auditors and the Management.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)

Board Committees (continued)

(1)

Audit Committee (continued)

During the year ended 31 December 2013, the Audit
Committee held three meetings to review the management
and accounting principles and practices adopted by the
Group and to discuss financial reporting matters including
the review of 2012 annual results and 2013 interim
results of the Group, review the adequacy of resources,
accounting staff qualifications and experience, training
programmes and budget of the Company’s accounting
and financial reporting function, review of the internal
control procedures and the connected transactions and
other related issues.

There is no disagreement between the Board and the
Audit Committee regarding the selection, appointment,
resignation or dismissal of external auditors. The Audit
Committee also met the external auditors at least twice
without the presence of the Executive Directors.

The annual results for the year ended 31 December 2013
were also reviewed by the Audit Committee.

The Board also has adopted the arrangement for
employees of the Company to raise genuine concerns
about possible improprieties in financial reporting,
internal control or other matters in the Company and its
subsidiaries. The Audit Committee monitors the execution
of this arrangement.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued) BExg (&)
Board Committees (continued) EEEZEYg (&)
(1)  Audit Committee (continued) (7) BRZEEE (&)
The following table shows the attendance of members of TRABHZE-_E-—=F+-HA=+—H1Lt
the Audit Committee during the year ended 31 December FEA BREZEEXREZEREREE
2013:
No. of Audit
Committee
Meetings
attended/held
HE BTz
ERZEEY
BERE
INEDs: BYFYITES :
Mr. Wu Yinong RITEEAE 11
(retired on 28 May 2013) (R=ZFE—=FAHH=+/VHLF)
Mr. Yu Hon To, David BNEE LA 3/3
Dr. Liu Xiao Feng Gl 3/3
Mrs. Eva Cheng Li Kam Fun BB S L+ 2/2
(appointed on 1 June 2013) (R-ZE—=ZFNH—HEZT)
(2)  Remuneration Committee 2) FHWES
The Remuneration Committee currently comprises five SEZECRERARKEER  BIE—
members including one Executive Director, namely BHTESHERNSLE  —BIERTES
Mr. Zhou Yun Jie, one Non-executive Director namely, BETXLT (HETEEAERFLLE)
Ms. Janine Junyuan Feng (with Mr. Gui Zhaoyu as her NREE=EBIIIFNTES - TIEER
alternate director) and all three INEDs. Dr. WANG Han THMERBRE - HiNEEemB I
Hua has also acted as the observer. The Remuneration T‘Ié%ﬁ[{?f% SHLTHREERE - FEE
Committee is chaired by Mrs. Eva Cheng Li Kam Z“WI%TH&%%BIE’\ZISQT& B X P&
Fun, an INED. The terms of reference (revised) of the EZ%@MH'J% °

Remuneration Committee are available on the respective
websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)

Board Committees (continued)

(2)

Remuneration Committee (continued)

The primary duties of the Remuneration Committee are
to make recommendations to the Board on policy and
structure of all remuneration of the Directors and senior
management. Each of the Directors has not involved
in the determination of his/her own remuneration. The
Remuneration Committee meets at least once a year.

During the vyear, the Remuneration Committee has
held four meetings. At the meetings, members of
the Remuneration Committee reviewed and made
recommendations to the Board the remuneration proposal
of the Directors and senior management by taking
into account factors such as remuneration packages
and benefits offered by comparable companies, the
respective contribution of each of the Directors and senior
management to the Group and the business objectives of
the Group. The Remuneration Committee also considered
the performance-based structure of the remuneration of
Executive Directors and senior management.

The Remuneration Committee has adopted the model
that it will review the proposals made by the management
on the remuneration of Executive Directors and senior
management, and make recommendations to the Board.
The Board will have final authority to approve the
recommendations made by the Remuneration Committee.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)
Board Committees (continued)

(2) Remuneration Committee (continued)

The following table shows the attendance of members of

the Remuneration Committee during the year ended 31

December 2013:

g8 (#)
Exez8e (B
2) HMEEE (&)

TeagzE—=—=#+-—A=+—01t
FEAN - FHEZEEXNEZERHFE

No. of
Remuneration
Committee
Meetings
attended/held
HiE BTz
FMEES
SRRE
Executive Director: BITES
Mr. Zhou Yun Jie AERNEE 4l4
Non-executive Director: FHITES !
Ms. Janine Junyuan Feng BEITL T 3/4
Mr. Gui Zhaoyu ERFLEE 4/4
(alternate to Ms. Janine Junyuan Feng) (GETXZEZEMEN)
INEDs: BYFYITES :
Mr. Wu Yinong RIPREA 11
(retired on 28 May 2013) (R-—FE—=F7H =+ /VHRF)
Mrs. Eva Cheng Li Kam Fun BFRF 2+ 1/1
(appointed on 1 June 2013) (R-FE—=FNH—HEZF)
Mr. Yu Hon To, David ANEE LA 4/4
Dr. Liu Xiao Feng e iE+ 4/4




BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)

Board Committees (continued)

(3)

Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee was formed on 19 September
2008 and currently comprises five members including one
Executive Director, namely, Mr. Zhou Yun Jie, one Non-
executive Director namely, Ms. Janine Junyuan Feng (with
Mr. Gui Zhaoyu as her alternate director) and all three
INEDs. The Nomination Committee is chaired by Mr. Yu
Hon To David, an INED. The Nomination Committee meets
at least once a year. The terms of reference (revised) of
the Nomination Committee are available on the respective
websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange.

The Nomination Committee is responsible for formulating
nomination policy and making recommendations to the
Board on nomination and appointment of Directors and
Board succession. It also develops selection procedures
of candidates for nomination, reviews the structure,
size and composition of the Board and assesses the
independence of the INEDs.

Nomination procedures include identification and
acknowledgement of qualified individuals by the
Nomination Committee and review and approval of such
nomination by the Board. The Nomination Committee is
to evaluate potential candidates by considering factors
such as professional expertise, relevant experience,
personal ethics and integrity. It also advises the Board
in considering the suitability of the re-election of the
Directors who are subject to the retirement by rotation at
the AGM in accordance with the Bye-laws.

The Nomination Committee monitors the execution of the
Board diversity policy of the Company. Selection will be
based on a range of diversity perspectives, including but
not limited to, professional experience, business insight,
skills, know-how, gender, age, cultural and educational
background, ethnic and length of services. It will review
the Board diversity policy as appropriate and recommend
any revisions to the policy to the Board for consideration
and approval as required.
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)
tEERERE (&)

BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued) BExg (#)

Board Committees (continued) EEEZEYg (&)

(3)  Nomination Committee (continued) 3) EBEZEEE (&)
During the year, the Nomination Committee has held four REZEGORFARITNAGE - IBE
meetings. At the meetings, members of the Nomination ZEEKEES FRETNESSHEM
Committee have identified and recommended qualified AZTREZCLEERAE RIESFE
individual to the Board for the appointment of directors, ZHRERE  MRESARRAEFAE L
reviewed the composition of the Board, and advised the L /mLT?EEUE EETNBEYEMESZR
Board on the suitability of the retirement and re-election HER -

of the Directors at the annual general meeting.

The following table shows the attendance of members TRAEHEZE_Z—=F+-_A=+—H1t
of the Nomination Committee during the year ended 31 FERN BREZEBEXE2ERHER
December 2013:

No. of
Nomination
Committee
Meetings
attended/held
bE BTz
REZEE®
SERE
Executive Directors: BITES
Mr. Zhou Yun Jie FAEREE 4/4
Non-executive Directors: FHITES !
Ms. Janine Junyuan Feng BETA L 3/4
Mr. Gui Zhaoyu HRRFEE 4/4
(alternate to Ms. Janine Junyuan Feng) (GETLFZEITA)
INEDs: BYFYITES :
Mr. Wu Yinong RIFREAE 11
(retired on 28 May 2013) (R=ZFE—=FAaAH=F/VHRF)
Mr. Yu Hon To, David ANEE LA 4/4
Dr. Liu Xiao Feng s 4/4
/6 Mrs. Eva Cheng Li Kam Fun S Pe S 1/2

(appointed on 1 June 2013) (R-ZE—=FNHA—HAEZT)




BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)

Board Committees (continued)

(4)

Strategic Committee

The Strategic Committee was formed on 18 October
2011 and currently comprises three members including
Zhou Yun Jie,
Liu Xiao Feng and one Non-

one Executive Director, namely, Mr.
one INED, namely, Dr.
executive Director (unconnected with the Company, Haier
Group Corporation, Qingdao Haier Co., Ltd., Qingdao
Haier Investment and Development Co., Ltd. and their
respective subsidiaries), namely Ms. Janine Junyuan
Feng (with Mr. Gui Zhaoyu as her alternate director). Dr.
WANG Han Hua has also acted as the observer. The
Strategic Committee is chaired by Mr. Zhou Yun Jie. The

Strategic Committee shall meet four times a year.

The purpose of the Strategy Committee shall be to
prepare recommendations for the Board in fulfilling
its responsibilities relating to (a) the development,
articulation, and execution of the Company’s long term
strategic plan, and (b) the review, evaluation, and
approval of certain strategic transactions, including
but not limited to acquisitions, mergers, divestitures,

financings, capital structure and joint ventures.

The primary duties of the Strategic Committee are to
review the major long term strategic proposals of the
Group, review the issue, offer or sale of shares or other
equity securities of the Company for the purposes
of funding acquisitions or investments made or new
businesses undertaken by the Group, review the proposed
initial or follow-on equity investment by the Company
through the establishment of a new business or venture or
other means, review and comment on the annual budgets
of the Group taken as a whole, and thereafter recommend
to the Board for its consideration and approval.
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)
tEERERE (&)

BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued) BExg (#

Board Committees (continued) EEgZEYg (&

(4)  Strategic Committee (continued) 4) HBRZEEE (&
During the year, the Strategic Committee has held four ﬁﬁ%%@é@Eﬁ/‘iW;@ﬁ@/’ﬂguﬁ Bl
meetings. At the meeting, members of the Strategic CEENEEG LmBHMERBHEEER
Committee have discussed the strategies on and the ZERRBREE  THESSEHER
development plans of the integrated channel business B REE LA - SOFERE
and made recommendations to the Board. The Strategic 5 °
transactions, such as the mergers and acquisitions, were
reviewed.
The following table shows the attendance of members TRABZE_E—=F1+-_HA=+—H1L
of the Strategic Committee during the year ended 31 FERN BREEENE2ERHEE

December 2013:

No. of
Strategic
Committee
Meetings
attended/held
HE BTz
BREES
BEXH
Executive Directors: BITES
Mr. Zhou Yun Jie FAEREE 4/4
Non-executive Director: FHITES !
Ms. Janine Junyuan Feng BETA L 4/4
INEDs: BYFYITES :
Dr. Liu Xiao Feng £l 3/4

/8



BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)
Corporate Governance Function

In fulfilling the requirement of Listing Rules which became
effective on 1 April 2012, the Board delegated the corporate
governance duties to the Audit Committee and Nomination
Committee.

The primary corporate governance duties are to develop and
review the Company’s policies and practices on corporate
governance and make recommendations to the Board; to
review and monitor the training and continuous professional
development of Directors and senior management; to review and
monitor the Company’s policies and practices on compliance
with legal and regulatory requirements; to develop, review
and monitor the code of conduct and compliance manual (if
any) applicable to employees and Directors; and to review the
Company’s compliance with the code and disclosure in the
Corporate Governance Report.

During the year, the Board and the board committees have
developed and reviewed the Company’s corporate governance
practices, including the set up of board diversity policy and
providing guideline on the charter of internal audit for its
enhancement.
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tEERERE (&)

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS AND
INVESTOR RELATIONS

A shareholder’'s communication policy was established in March
2012. The Company has maintained different communication
channels with its shareholders through the publication of
annual and interim reports, circulars and announcements. Such
information is also available on the Company’s website.

It is the Company’s practice to provide an explanation of the
details of the procedures for voting by poll in the general
meetings to shareholders in accordance with the Bye-laws and
the Listing Rules. The poll results of the general meetings are
also published on the websites of the Stock Exchange and of
the Company. The Board regards general meetings as one of
the principal channels of communications with our shareholders
and the Directors provide detailed and complete answers to
questions raised by the shareholders in the general meetings.

During the year, the Company has held two general meetings,
including the annual general meeting and a special general
meeting in which various resolutions were passed.
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COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS AND

INVESTOR RELATIONS (continued)

The following table shows the attendance of the Directors at
the general meetings held during the year ended 31 December
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TEERERE (&)

ERRZBERREERR (&)

TREREF2NEBE-_T—=FF+=A=1+—
AILLFESRTZERAG ZHFE

2013:
No. of
the General
Meetings
attended/held
HE BTz
BRAE
BEXE
Executive Directors: BITES:
Ms. Yang Mian Mian (Chairman) BiRmat (F/E) 2/2
(retired on 25 June 2013) (R=ZF—=ZF A =-+FHHARE)
Mr. Zhou Yun Jie AERNEE 2/2
Mr. Li Hua Gang FEM LA 2/2
Non-Executive Directors: FHITES !
Mr. Liang Hai Shan gt 0/2
Ms. Tan Li Xia BEERL 0/0
(appointed on 18 November 2013) (R=ZF—=F+—A+/NHEZF)
Ms. Janine Junyuan Feng HEITZ T 0/2
(with Mr. Gui Zhaoyu as her alternate director) (AEHFEELIERFELE)
Dr. Wang Han Hua FEEEL 0/0
(appointed on 1 June 2013) (R=ZF—=F~NH—HEZH)
INEDs: BYFHTES
Mr. Wu Yinong RIFREAE 0/2
(retired on 28 May 2013) (R=—=F—=F A H=+/VHREE)
Mr. Yu Hon To, David BRERAE 2/2
Dr. Liu Xiao Feng =y 0/2
Mrs. Eva Cheng Li Kam Fun BBzt 0/0
(appointed on 1 June 2013) (R=ZF—=FNH—HEZ)

During the year, there have been no changes in the Company’s

constitutional documents.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

Procedures by which Shareholders may convene a special
general meeting

Pursuant to Section 74(1) of the Bermuda Companies Act
and the bye-law 62 of the Bye-laws of the Company, the
shareholder(s) of the Company holding at the date of the deposit
of the requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid-up capital
of the Company as at the date of the deposit carries the right
of voting at general meetings of the Company may request the
Board to convene a special general meeting.

The requisition must state the purposes of the meeting, and must
be signed by the requisitionists and deposited at the registered
office of the Company at Clarendon House, 2 Church Street,
Hamilton HM 11,
place of business of the Company in Hong Kong at Unit 3513,
35/F., The Center, 99 Queen’s Road Central, Hong Kong, for
the attention of the Company Secretary and may consist of

Bermuda and the head office and principal

several documents in like form each signed by one or more
requisitionists.

If the Directors do not within twenty-one days from the date of
the deposit of the requisition proceed duly to convene a meeting,
the requisitionists, or any of them representing more than one
half of the total voting rights of all of them, may themselves
convene a meeting, but any meeting so convened shall not be
held after the expiration of three months from the said date.

Procedures by which enquiries may be put to the Board

Shareholders may put forward enquiries to the Board through the
Company Secretary who will direct the enquiries to the Board for
handling. Such enquiries can be made by the following means:

Mail: ~ Company Secretary
Haier Electronics Group Co., Ltd.
Unit 3513, 35/F., The Centre,
99 Queen’s Road Central, Hong Kong
E-mail: IR@haier-elec.com.hk
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS (continued)

Procedures for putting forward proposals at a Shareholders’
meeting

On the requisition in writing of (i) either any number of
Shareholders representing not less than one-twentieth of the
total voting rights of all the Shareholders having at the date
of the requisition a right to vote at the meeting to which the
requisition relates, or (ii) not less than 100 Shareholders, the
Company shall be under a duty to:

(a) give to Shareholders entitled to receive notice of the next
AGM notice of any resolution which may properly be
moved and is intended to be moved at that meeting; and

(b) circulate to Shareholders entitled to have notice of any
general meeting sent to them any statement of not more
than 1,000 words with respect to the matter referred to in
any proposed resolution or the business to be dealt with
at that meeting.

The written request/statements must be signed by the

shareholder(s) concerned and deposited at the Company’s

registered office in Bermuda at Clarendon House, 2 Church

Street, Hamilton HM11, Bermuda and head office and principal

place of business of the Company in Hong Kong at Unit 3513,

35/F., The Center, 99 Queen’s Road Central, Hong Kong, for

the attention of the Company Secretary, not less than six weeks

before the AGM in the case of a requisition requiring notice
of a resolution and not less than one week before the general
meeting in the case of any other requisition.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS (continued)

Procedures for putting forward proposals at a Shareholders’
meeting (continued)

If the written request is in order, the Company Secretary will
ask the Board (i) to include the resolution in the agenda for the
AGM; or (ii) to circulate the statement for the general meeting,
provided that the shareholder(s) concerned have deposited a
sum of money reasonably determined by the Board sufficient
to meet the Company’s expenses in serving the notice of the
resolution and/or circulating the statement submitted by the
shareholder(s) concerned in accordance with the statutory
requirements to all the registered shareholders. On the contrary,
if the requisition is invalid or the shareholder(s) concerned
have failed to deposit sufficient money to meet the Company’s
expenses for the said purposes, the shareholder(s) concerned
will be advised of this outcome and accordingly, the proposed
resolution will not be included in the agenda for the AGM; or the
statement will not be circulated for the general meeting.

Procedures for Shareholders to propose a person for
election as a Director

If a Shareholder wishes to nominate a person to stand for
election as a Director at a general meeting, notice in writing of
his intention to propose such person for election as a Director
and the notice in writing executed by the nominee of his
willingness to be elected must be validly served at the principal
place of business in Hong Kong of the Company. The minimum
length of the period during which such notices are given shall
be at least 7 days and the period for lodgement of such notices
shall commence no earlier than the day after the dispatch of
the notice of the general meeting appointed for such election
and end no later than 7 days prior to the date of such general
meeting.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS (continued)

Procedures for Shareholders to propose a person for election
as a Director (continued)

To enable shareholders to make an informed decision on their
election at a general meeting, the names of all candidates
submitted for election or re- election as a Director together with
his/her biographical details as set out in Rule 13.51(2) of the
Listing Rules (including other directorships held in listed public
companies in the past 3 years and other major appointments)
are to be set out in a circular or supplementary circular to be
sent to shareholders prior to the meeting in accordance with
the Listing Rules.

INSURANCE

The Group has arranged appropriate directors’ and officers’
liability insurance to indemnify the Directors and senior staff
of the Group for their potential liabilities incurred by them in
discharging their duties. The Group reviews the insurance
coverage for the Directors and the Group’s senior staff on an
annual basis.

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing
financial statements of the Group in accordance with relevant
statutory requirements and generally accepted accounting
principles in Hong Kong and ensuring that the financial
statements give a true and fair view of the Group’s financial
position. In preparing the financial statements of the Group for
the year ended 31 December 2013, the Directors have adopted
suitable accounting policies and applied them consistently;
made judgments and estimates that are prudent and reasonable;
and prepared the financial statements on a going concern basis.

The responsibilities of the external auditor with respect to the
financial reporting are set out in the Independent Auditor’s
Report of this Annual Report.
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ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT (continued)

The Board aims to present a comprehensive, balanced and
understandable assessment of the Group’s development and
prospects in all corporate communications, including but
not limited to annual and interim reports, any price sensitive
announcements and financial disclosures required under
the Listing Rules, any reports to regulators as well as to
information required to be disclosed pursuant to other statutory

requirements.

INTERNAL CONTROL AND RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group is committed to implementing effective internal
controls and risk management procedures to identify and
manage the risks that may be faced by the Group, as well as
to safeguard the interests of the Group and our shareholders
as a whole.

The Board is responsible for maintaining adequate internal
controls and risk management procedures in the Group, and for
reviewing their effectiveness on an on-going basis. The Board
has clearly defined the authorities and key responsibilities of
each business and operational unit to ensure adequate checks
and balances. The Board has delegated to the Management
the implementation of the Group’s internal controls covering
financial, operational and compliance aspects, as well as risk
management procedures.

The Board is also responsible for ensuring that the management
has discharged its duty to have an effective internal control
system including the adequacy of resources, qualification and
experience of staff of the Company’s accounting and financial
reporting function, and their training programme and budget.
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INTERNAL CONTROL AND RISK MANAGEMENT
(continued)

The Company establishes an annual internal control review
plan to cover its major internal control systems covering areas
including operational control, financial control and compliance
control. The review tasks on various internal controls are
prioritized in accordance with the risk level assessed. During the
year, the Company has conducted a review of the effectiveness
of Group’s internal control systems and risk management
procedures on the major business and operational processes,
particularly on those divisions of the integrated channel services
business which were newly set up. Recommendations for further
improvements have been reported to the Audit Committee and
the Audit Committee has, in turn, reported the same to the
Board together with its assessment and recommendations.
Such recommendations have been or are being followed up
by management. The Company is committed to maintaining
an effective internal control system and will make sure that
adequate resources and management attention will be devoted
to strengthen its internal controls and risk management

procedures.

In response to the broadening of the Company’s scope of
business activities and the increase in geographical locations
in which it operates, the Company recognizes the importance
of internal controls and risk management procedures, and
continues to strengthen the internal audit department and to
seek the assistance of external independent professionals
in establishing internal audit procedures and in provision of
appropriate training to the relevant staff. This ensures the
effectiveness of the Group’s daily operations, that the Group’s
operations are in accordance with the corporate objectives,
strategies.
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tEERERE (&)

REMUNERATION OF EXTERNAL AUDITORS

The Group’s independent external auditors are Ernst & Young,
Certified Public Accountants. During the year, the annual
audit fees and non-audit fees payable/paid by the Group to
Ernst & Young were RMB7,000,000 and RMB3,390,000,
respectively. The non-audit services included the performance
of agreed-upon procedures in respect of the Group’s quarterly
and interim financial information (RMB1,200,000), review of the
connected transactions (RMB120,000), and the financial due
diligence and special audits and other services in relation to
proposed merger and acquisition transactions (RMB2,070,000).
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The directors of the Company present their report and the
audited financial statements of the Company and the Group for
the year ended 31 December 2013.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding.

During the year, the Group’s subsidiaries continued to be
engaged in the manufacture and sale of washing machines
and water heaters, as well as the provision of integrated
channel services which comprised the provision of logistics
services, after-sale services, on-line sales and distribution
of home electric appliances and other products. There were
no significant changes in the nature of the Group’s principal
activities during the year.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The Group’s profit for the year ended 31 December 2013 and the
state of affairs of the Company and the Group at that date are
set out in the financial statements on pages 112 to 287.

The directors of the Company recommend the payment of a final
dividend for the year ended 31 December 2013 of HK10 cents
per share (2012: HK8 cents per share).

SUMMARY FINANCIAL INFORMATION

A summary of the results and assets, liabilities and non-
controlling interests of the Group for the last five financial years
is set out on page 288. This summary does not form part of the
audited financial statements.
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EEEREE (A)

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND INVESTMENT
PROPERTIES

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment, and
investment properties of the Group during the year are set out in
notes 15 and 16 to the financial statements, respectively.

SHARE CAPITAL, SHARE OPTIONS, WARRANTS AND
CONVERTIBLE BONDS

Details of movements in the Company’s share capital, share
options, warrants and convertible bonds during the year are set
out in notes 35, 37 and 32 to the financial statements.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
Company'’s bye-laws or the laws of Bermuda which would oblige
the Company to offer new shares on a pro rata basis to existing
shareholders.

PURCHASE, REDEMPTION OR SALE OF LISTED
SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

Save for the purchase of 801,000 shares of the Company on the
open market for an aggregate consideration of HK$9,936,000
pursuant to the Company’s Restricted Share Incentive Scheme
as announced by the Company on 9 August 2012, neither the
Company, nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, redeemed
or sold any of the Company’s listed securities during the year
ended 31 December 2013.

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Company and the
Group during the year are set out in note 38(b) to the financial
statements and in the consolidated statement of changes in
equity, respectively.
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DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

At 31 December 2013, the Company’s reserves available for
distribution, calculated in accordance with the provisions of the
Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as amended), amounted to
RMB251,573,000.
account, in the amount of RMB2,224,521,000, may be capitalised

In addition, the Company’s share premium

and distributed to members in the form of fully paid bonus
shares.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

In the year under review, sales to the Group’s five largest
customers accounted for less than 30% of the total sales for
the year. Purchases from the Group’s five largest suppliers
accounted for 76% of the total purchases for the year and
purchases from the largest supplier included therein amounted

to 45%.

During the year, Haier Group Corporation (“Haier Corp”) and
Qingdao Haier Investment and Development Co., Ltd. (“Haier
Investment”) (collectively referred to as “Haier Group”), the
substantial shareholders of the Company, had beneficial
interests in all of the Group’s five largest suppliers.

Save as disclosed above, none of the directors or any of their
associates or any shareholders of the Company (which, to the
best knowledge of the directors, owns more than 5% of the
Company’s issued share capital) had any beneficial interest in
the Group’s five largest customers or suppliers.
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DIRECTORS

The directors of the Company during the year were:

Executive directors:

Ms. Yang Mian Mian (retired on 25 June 2013)
Mr. Zhou Yun Jie
Mr. Li Hua Gang

Non-executive directors:

Mr. Liang Hai Shan

Ms. Tan Li Xia (appointed on 18 November 2013)
Ms. Janine Junyuan Feng

Dr. Wang Han Hua (appointed on 1 June 2013)

Alternate director:

Mr. Gui Zhaoyu (alternate Director to Ms. Janine Junyuan Feng)

Independent non-executive directors:

Mr. Wu Yinong (retired on 28 May 2013)

Mr. Yu Hon To, David

Dr. Liu Xiao Feng

Mrs. Eva Cheng Li Kam Fun (appointed on 1 June 2013)

Subsequent to the balance sheet date, on 25 March 2014,
Mr. Zhang Yong was appointed as a non-executive director of
the Company.
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DIRECTORS (continued)

In accordance with the bye-laws of the Company, Mr. Zhou Yun
Jie, and Dr. Liu Xiao Feng are subject to retirement by rotation
at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company
(*AGM”), and Ms. Tan Li Xia and Mr. Zhang Yong will hold office
until the AGM. All these directors are eligible for re-election at
the AGM.

Dr. Liu Xiao Feng has tendered notice to the Company that
he will retire as an independent non-executive director of the
Company with effect from the conclusion of the annual general
meeting of the Company and has decided not to offer himself
for re-election. Further details regarding the retirement of Dr.
Liu Xiao Feng as an independent non-executive director of the
Company will be set out in a separate announcement.

The independent non-executive directors of the Company are not
appointed for any specific terms and are subject to retirement
by rotation and re-election at the annual general meeting of the
Company in accordance with the bye-laws of the Company.
The Company has received an annual confirmation of
independence from each of Mr. Yu Hon To, David, Dr. Liu Xiao
Feng and Mrs. Eva Cheng Li Kam Fun, and, on the basis of such
confirmations, considers them to be independent as at the date
of this report.
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DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S BIOGRAPHIES

Biographical details of the directors of the Company and the
senior management of the Group are set out on pages 20 to 31
of the annual report.

CHANGES OF INFORMATION OF DIRECTORS

Below are the changes of directors’ information required to be
disclosed pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules since
the interim report:

Up to the balance sheet date, Mr. Zhou Yun Jie, the executive
director of the Company was appointed as a director of Partner
Century Holdings Limited and Heroic Plan Global Limited,
subsidiaries of the Group, and

Mr. Liang Hai Shan, the non-executive director of the Company
was appointed as a director of Qingdao Haier New Energy
Electronics Co., Ltd., a subsidiary of the Group.

Mr. Yu Hon To, David has retired as an independent non-
executive director of TeleEye Holdings Limited, a company
publicly listed in Hong Kong.

Subsequent to the balance sheet date, Mr. Zhou Yun Jie and
Mr. Li Hua Gang have resigned as directors of Hong Kong
Bolang Housewares Trading Company Limited, a subsidiary of
the Group, and

Mrs. Eva Cheng Li Kam Fun has been appointed the independent
non-executive director of The Link Management Limited (the
manager of The Link REIT which is listed on the Hong Kong
Stock Exchange (stock code 823)) on 24 February 2014.
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DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

During the year, no director had a service contract with the
Company which is not determinable by the Company within
one year without payment of compensation, other than statutory
compensation.

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION

The directors’ fees are subject to shareholders’ approval at
general meetings. Other emoluments are determined by the
Company'’s board of directors with reference to directors’ duties,
responsibilities and performance and the results of the Group.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

No director had a material interest, either directly or indirectly, in
any contract of significance to the business of the Group to which
the Company, or any of its holding companies, subsidiaries or
fellow subsidiaries was a party during the year.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES

At 31 December 2013, the interests and short positions of the
directors in the share capital and underlying shares (“Share(s)”)
of the Company or its associated corporations (within the
meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the
“SFQ")), as recorded in the register required to be kept by the
Company pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise
notified to the Company and The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) pursuant to the Model Code for
Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers, were as
follows:
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN EERROREBEROZEZRAE (&)
SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES (continued)

Long positions in Shares of the Company: /NI 35 S =N

Number of Shares

directly (personal) Approximate %

beneficially owned of issued Shares

BHE (EA) HEBRTRMOZ

Name 4 EBEEROHE BHABE D
Mr. Zhou Yun Jie AEREE 5,180,000 0.20
Mr. Li Hua Gang FEMIL A 230,000 0.01

Long positions in underlying Shares of the Company pursuant g3 Rr kA A N BIMRBIAN () 2 17 &
to share options:

Approximate % of
Number of issued Shares upon

share options exercise of
granted and not share options
yet exercised TEERER
EREEMKRITE HEBRTRMOZ

Name ®E ZBREHE BHABES T

Mr. Li Hua Gang* FEME 600,000 0.02

Mr. Yu Hon To, David* BEE LAY 360,000 0.01

Mrs. Eva Cheng Li Kam Fun**  BfZ{g25 4 +** 500,000 0.02

Dr. Wang Han Hua** FrEEH 450,000 0.02

Note: HiaE -

* The exercise price of the above share options is HK$1.70 for * LAABREAITTIENE B —R1.70/87T ° 77
subscription of one Share. The exercisable period is from 18 B -—F—FFAA+AZ=-F—HFA
September 2010 to 17 September 2014. A++H -

# The exercise price of the above share options is HK$8.67 for * LB IR BEBITTIE B 3 AR5 —R8.67)ETT © 1T
subscription of one Share. The exercisable period is from 16 EHE —F——FA AT NAE=F—MAF+
June 2012 to 15 December 2014. ZATHA -

>k

The exercise price of each of the above share options is ™~ B LA IEAITTIE(E B350 — 1216787
96 HK$12.16 for subscription of one Share. The exercisable period TRHE —E—WFENA— A NAZE-_FE—+
is from 26 June 2014 to 25 June 2017. EXNAZFAA -
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN ESAROREBROZERZRAXE (&)

SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES (continued)

RARBIEREESSARNERAA ([FE8E
) 2k RkBERkNZHR

Long positions in shares and underlying shares of Qingdao Haier
Co., Ltd (“Qingdao Haier”), the Company’s shareholder:

Approximate %

of total
registered share
Approximate % Number of share capital upon
of total options granted exercise of
registered and not yet share option
Number of share capital exercised BREETER
Name shares held L#ZMKRAZ BREBHRTE ZBEMBA  Capacity and interest
e FREE BABEDL ZEREZR ZBAEAE SORESENEE
Mr. Liang Hai Shan 3,239,920 0.12 - - Directly (personal)
ZBIEE beneficially owned
B (AAN) ExlER
Ms. Tan Li Xia 1,246,680 0.05 - Directly (personal)
BEELL beneficially owned
BEZ (EA) ExHES »
Mr. Zhou Yun Jie 98,298 0.0036 - Directly (personal) 1;,
BEAREE beneficially owned i
BE (EA) BE5HESR
Notes: maz -
Ms. Yang Mian Mian who retired on 25 June 2013, directly and RZFE—=F A+ AARFEZHEHEZLRRITH

beneficially owned 2,822,672 shares of Qingdao Haier and 1,800,000
options to subscribe for 1,800,000 shares of Qingdao Haier at RMB4.7

per share at the date of retirement.

Save as disclosed above, no directors or chief executive had
any interests or short positions in the shares or underlying
shares of the Company or its associated corporation (within
the meaning of Part XV of the SFO), as recorded in the register
required to be kept by the Company pursuant to Section 352
of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the Company and The
Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers.

HEEERHE2 822672 &8 8B X 1,800,000
(DB RR1E X IR A R 4. 77T 3308 & S8 85 1,800,0004%
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B EXPEREEN  BBEEFIHZSTRAER
ARFHEAEEE (EEREFRREEIE
XVER) 2B in kBRI o - HACEN AR A
RIEEF LG RAIEIS2G6RERITFEZ B
MRz EEESIAR KRB LEHHITAES
ETREF R ZNRETRANG AR E MR
ZAETHERSORR ©

97




Haier Electronics Group Co., Ltd.

BHEREERARLA

Report of the Directors (continued)
ExgRsE (@

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES IN OR EEBEAATIRMIEEE 2R
DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY

Share option scheme R E

The Company operates a share option scheme (the “Share  ANARIRS B E ([EERETE)) - BME
Option Scheme”) for the purpose of providing incentives and REYAREBEXNELEIER B2 A EK2HEE
reward to eligible participants who contribute to the success IEtHREI M EH o BARER S c HMFBEER
of the Group’s operations. Further details of the Share Option  BAFETRZKMIFEI7 »

Scheme are disclosed in note 37 to the financial statements.

The following table discloses movements in the Company’s FERBBEARARFERRTEEREZEZEHE

share options outstanding during the year: o
Number of share options
EREHE
Date of Exercise price
At At grant of of share options
1 January Granted Exercised Cancelled Lapsed 31 December  share options (note 2)
2013 during the during the during the during the 2013 (note 1) per share HKS
Name or category I year year year year R BRE  Exercise period of BREMKE
of participant “5-cZf RER RER RER RER -E-cE REAH  share options (Hi2)
HEGSREER -A-H R % b= %% tZR=1-8 (i)  RREGES Bhin
Executive directors
HirEz
Mr. Zhou Yun Jie 5,610,000 - 5,610,000 - - - 18/09/2009  18/09/2010-17/09/2014 17
Mr. Li Hua Gang 2,001,000 - 1,401,000 - - 600,000 18/09/2009  18/09/2010-17/09/2014 17
FElxE
7,611,000 - 7,011,000 - - 600,000
Independent Non-executive
directors
BUFHTES
Mr. Yu Hon To, David 360,000 - - - - 360,000 16/12/2011  16/06/2012-15/12/2014 8.67
AEERE
Mr. Wu Yinong 320,000 - 320,000 - - - 16/12/2011  16/06/2012-15/12/2014 8.67
(retired on 28 May 2013)
RITRTE
(R-E-ZERF-1/1HEH)
Dr. Liu Xiao Feng 320,000 - 320,000 - - - 16/12/2011  16/06/2012-15/12/2014 8.67
HRIERL
Mrs. Eva Cheng Li Kam Fun - 500,000 - - - 500,000 26/06/2013  26/06/2014-25/06/2017 12.16
LISy o

1,000,000 500,000 640,000 - - 860,000

98



Annual Report 2013 & &E3§

Report of the Directors (continued)
EEEREE (A

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES IN OR EEBEAATRNMIEEE 2R (&)
DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY (continued)

Share option scheme (continued) BRAESE (&)
Number of share options
ERE"A
Date of Exercise price
At At grant of of share options
1 January Granted Exercised Cancelled Lapsed 31 December  share options (note 2)
2013 during the during the during the during the 2013 (note 1) per share HK$
Name or category R year year year year R BRE  Exercise period of BREMEE
of participant “E-cF RER RER RER RER -5-Zf RHAH  share options (H#2)
EERSREER -A-8 R il v A% tZA=t-H (W) BREGES shin
Non-executive directors
FUNES
Dr. Wang Han Hua - 450,000 - - - 450,000 26/06/2013  26/06/2014-25/06/2017 12.16
TEEET
External consultants
SHPER
In aggregate 11,192,000 - 11,192,000 - - - 18/09/2009  18/09/2010-17/09/2013 1.7
@
In aggregate 2,200,000 - 1,130,000 - - 1,070,000 16/12/2011  16/12/2012-15/12/2014 758
@
13,392,000 - 12,322,000 - - 1,070,000
Other employees
EftEs
In aggregate 20,801,000 - 12,746,000 176,000 560,000 7,319,000 18/09/2009  18/09/2010-17/09/2014 1.7
@
In aggregate 16,095,800 - 10,869,200 568,600 400,000 4,258,000 18/05/2010  18/05/2011-17/05/2014 482
@t
In aggregate 15,580,000 - 6,867,000 1,317,000 630,000 6,766,000 16/12/2011  16/12/2012-15/12/2014 7.58
@t
52,476,800 - 30,482,200 2,061,600 1,590,000 18,343,000
74,479,800 950,000 50,455,200 2,061,600 1,590,000 21,323,000
Notes: Btat -
1. The vesting period of the share options is from the date of grant 1. BRI BRI 5 B K AR 2 T AR 18
until the commencement of the exercise period. HAEIE °
2. The exercise price of the share options is subject to adjustment(s) 2. T 7T (AR B FEATAT IR S K R A R AN B E
in the case of rights or bonus share issues, or other similar FEEE) - RIBRIESTTEBE T 5 -
changes in the share capital of the Company.
3. The weighted average closing price of the Company’s shares 3. REZBRETIE AR Z 2 al R 17 IHEF 99
immediately before the exercise dates of the share options was IR TTE 717 14.95/8 T °

HK$14.95 per share.
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DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES IN OR
DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY (continued)

Share option scheme (continued)

The directors have estimated the values of the share options
granted during the year, calculated using the binomial pricing
model as at the date of grant of the options, to be RMB3,521,000.

The binomial option pricing model is a generally accepted method
of valuing options. The significant assumptions used in the
calculation of the values of the share options were dividend yield,
historical volatility, risk-free rate, contractual life of options and
exercise multiple. The measurement dates used in the valuation
calculations were the dates on which the options were granted.

The values of share options calculated using the binomial
model are subject to certain fundamental limitations, due to
the subjective nature of and uncertainty relating to a number
of assumptions of the expected future performance input to
the model, and certain inherent limitations of the model itself.
The value of an option varies with different variables of certain
subjective assumptions. Any change to the variables used may
materially affect the estimation of the fair value of an option.

Save as the options granted to the director, at no time during the
year were rights to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition
of shares in or debentures of the Company granted to any
director or their respective spouses or minor children, or were
any such rights exercised by them; or was the Company, its
holding company, or any of its subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries
a party to any arrangement to enable the directors to acquire
such rights in any other body corporate.

CONTRACT OF SIGNIFICANCE

The Group has contracts with Haier Group and their subsidiaries
and/or associates (collectively referred to as “Haier Affiliates”)
for the purchase of products and materials. Further details of
the transactions undertaken in connection with these contracts
during the year are included in the section “CONNECTED
TRANSACTIONS”.
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EEEREE (A

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS IN FERFRRBRORERERGz2ER
SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES

At 31 December 2013, the following shareholders interested R=—F—=F+ZA=+—0 U THBARF
in 5% or more of the issued share capital and share options ERITIA R BIRAES% 3 A L1 2 BRR TR0 ex
of the Company were recorded in the register of substantial ~RARBRIRE S kBRI L3361KRERT
shareholders required to be kept by the Company pursuant to BEZTBRRAM

Section 336 of the SFO:

Long positions: e
Approximate
percentage of
the Company’s
Number of issued share capital
Name of shareholder Notes Shares interested {HARQAFERHITHRA
REERE Hfat BEREZZROHE ZHHNBE DL
Qingdao Haier Collective 1, 4 1,5670,346,592 61.06

Asset Management Association
(“Haier Collective Asset Management”)
SEEREREEEERS ([(EREBEEER])
Haier Corp 2.4 1,570,346,592 61.06
BREBENRNF
Haier Investment 3, 4 1,670,346,592 61.06
BRIRE
Qingdao Haier 4 1,319,439,592 51.30
5550
Haier Shareholdings (Hong Kong) Limited 4 831,762,110 32.34
(“Hong Kong Haier”)
BB () BRAR ([HEER])
Carlyle Asia Partners Il AIV Cayman, L.P. 5 240,000,000 9.33
Hawaii Asia Holdings Limited 5 240,000,000 9.33
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’
SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES (continued)

Notes:

Haier Electronics Group Co., Ltd.

BHEREERARLA

Report of the Directors (continued)
ExgRsE (@

INTERESTS IN

As at 31 December 2013, by virtue of the SFO, Haier Collective
Asset Management was deemed to be interested in an aggregate
of 1,5670,346,592 Shares, including (i) 345,907,000 Shares directly
and indirectly held by its non wholly-owned subsidiary, namely
Haier Investment, and (ii) given Haier Investment was acting in
concert with Haier Corp and Qingdao Haier, Haier Collective Asset
Management was also deemed to be interested in 1,224,439,592
Shares held by Qingdao Haier pursuant to the SFO.

Mr. Zhou Yun Jie, executive director of the Company, Mr. Liang
Hai Shan and Ms. Tan Li Xia, non-executive directors of the
Company are also members of the board of management of Haier
Collective Asset Management.

As Qingdao Haier is a non wholly-owned subsidiary of Haier Corp,
Haier Corp was deemed to be interested in 1,224,439,592 Shares
held by Qingdao Haier pursuant to the SFO.

Furthermore, as Haier Corp was acting in concert with Haier
Investment, Haier Corp was deemed to be interested in
345,907,000 Shares held by Haier Investment and its subsidiary.

Mr. Zhou Yun Jie, executive director of the Company, Mr. Liang
Hai Shan and Ms. Tan Li Xia, non-executive directors of the
Company, are also the members of the management committee
of Haier Corp.

Haier Investment and its subsidiary held 345,907,000 Shares
in total as beneficial owners. Moreover, Haier Investment was
deemed to be interested in 1,224,439,592 Shares held by Qingdao
Haier pursuant to the SFO by reason of its acting in concert with
Haier Corp.

Qingdao Haier held 392,677,482 Shares as beneficial owner.
Moreover, Qingdao Haier was deemed to be interested in
831,762,110 Shares held by its wholly-owned subsidiary, Hong
Kong Haier, pursuant to the SFO.

Furthermore, Haier Investment has appointed Qingdao Haier to
exercise voting in respect of its holding of 95,000,000 Shares.

Carlyle Asia Partners Ill AIV Cayman, L.P. was deemed to be
interested in the Shares held by its subsidiary, Hawaii Asia
Holdings Limited, pursuant to the SFO.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS IN
SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES (continued)

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2013, no person,
other than the directors of the Company, whose interests are
set out in the section “Directors’ interests and short positions
in shares and underlying shares” above, had registered an
interest or short position in the shares or underlying shares of the
Company that was required to be recorded pursuant to Section
336 of the SFO.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

During the vyear, the Company and the Group had the
following connected and continuing connected transactions,
certain details of which are disclosed in compliance with the
requirements of Chapter 14A of the Rules Governing the Listing

of Securities on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”).

Connected transactions

(i) During the year, a fellow subsidiary of the Company, Haier
Group Finance Co., granted a wholly-owned subsidiary of
the Company a credit facility up to a maximum amount of
USD30,000,000 from 19 May 2013 to 19 May 2014. The
facility is guaranteed by Haier Corporation.

(i) During the year, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company and a fellow subsidiary of the Company were
jointly and severally granted banking facilities by a
third party bank. Such banking facilities were cross
guaranteed by the borrowers with the guaranteed amount
of USD75,000,000. The bank facilities were ultimately

guaranteed by another fellow subsidiary of the Company.

Annual Report 2013 & &E3§

Report of the Directors (contlnued
EEERE
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Report of the Directors (continued)
ExgRsE (@

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (continued)

Connected transactions (continued)

(iif)

(iv)

During the year, the Group acquired additional 0.938%
and 0.704% interest in Qingdao Lejia Electric Appliances
Co., Ltd. (“Qingdao Lejia”), a then 94.95%-owned
subsidiary of the Group, from Qingdao Haier Co., Ltd.
and Qingdao Haier Refrigerator (International) Co., Ltd.
at RMB94,000 and RMB70,000, respectively, which was
determined with reference to the paid-in capital amount of
Qingdao Lejia. Qingdao Haier Co., Ltd. is the immediate
holding company of the Company and Qingdao Haier
Refrigerator (International) Co., Ltd. is a fellow subsidiary
of the Company.

During the year, a subsidiary of the Company made
a borrowing from a fellow subsidiary of the Company
through an entrusted loan arrangement in the amount of
RMB15,000,000, which was due on 27 December 2013
and renewed to 25 June 2014. Such borrowing was
unsecured, interest-bearing at 6% per annum.

BEXS (&)
REXS (&)

(iiif)

(iv)
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (continued)

Annual Report 2013 & &E3§

Report of the Directors (contlnued
EEERE

BEXS (&)

Continuing connected transactions BEBRERS
During the year, the Group had the following material transactions ~ F A * AEE R GREB AR ZHEITUTEARAR
with Haier Affiliates: VK
2013 2012
—E-=F —E—-—fF
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
izt AR%T AREFTT
Export sale of products HOEEESR (i) 1,439,248 1,566,686
Domestic sale of products BN HEE M (ii) 365,756 221,410
Purchase of finished goods EREE AN (iif) 30,411,964 26,866,861
Purchase of raw materials EREE R (iv) 12,402,661 11,237,974
Printing and packaging fee expenses ENff R B & (v) 45,447 57,997
Mould charges BEBTH (vi) 163,222 179,014
Utility service fee expenses NAREE S H (vii) 116,805 95,033
Promotion fee expenses EEEYH (viii) 77,000 204,566
Research and development service fee* 3¢ LB ARG &> (ix) 127,710 -
Other service fee expenses EmRiEES (x) 338,915 378,906
Interest income M B A (xi) 20,842 21,224
Interest expenses MEZH (xi) 2,342 1,469
Other financial service fees Hih e @ RGE (xii) 7,219 6,173
Logistic service income Wi BR A WA (xiii) 1,905,854 1,795,008
After-sale service income E1&RIEBA (xiv) 201,067 218,620
Premise lease expenses** YA ER (xv) - 1,051
Purchase of equipment EREER (xvi) 11,428 16,033
* Research and development service fee in 2012 was included in  * ZE—ZF R REERE BT AR MR
other service fee expenses. B o
i TE—CFICYEHERL I AREMBREES

fee expenses.

Premise lease expenses in 2013 was included in other service — **

— =
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (continued)

Continuing connected transactions (continued)

Notes:

(i)

(ii)

(iif)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

The export sales of products were made to Haier Electrical
Appliances Co., Ltd. (“Haier Electrical”), subsidiaries of Haier
Investment, at selling prices representing the differences
between the selling prices of these products mutually agreed
and the selling expenses of Haier Electrical not exceeding 1.5%
of the selling prices of products.

The domestic sales of products were made at prices no less
favourable than those prevailing in the domestic market for
the products of the same type and quality and those offered
by the Group to independent third parties; the sales made
by the subsidiary of the Group — Haier International Business
Corporation Limited (“Haier International”) were at gross profit
margin no lower than 2%.

The purchase of finished goods was charged at prices no less
favourable than those prevailing in the domestic market for the
products of the same type and quality and those offered by Haier
Affiliates to independent third parties.

The purchase of raw materials was charged at prices not higher
than the consolidated and integrated tender and bidding price of
the raw materials plus a commission fee of not exceeding 1.25%
(2012: 1.75%).

The printing and packaging fee expenses were charged on
terms no less favourable than those offered by independent third
parties.

The moulds were charged with reference to the average market
tender and bidding price plus actual administrative costs.

The utility service fee expenses were charged based on the
state-prescribed prices plus actual administrative costs.

The promotion fee expenses were charged with reference to
actual cost at no more than 0.6% of the total sales of washing
machines and water heaters of the Group. In 2012, the promotion
fee expenses were charged at no more than 1.2% of the domestic
sales of washing machines and water heaters of the Group.

REXS (#&)
FEBREXS (&)

Hret

()

(1)

(iif)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (continued)

Continuing connected transactions (continued)

Notes: (continued)

(ix)

(x)

(xi)

(xii)

(xiii)

(xiv)

(xv)

The research and development service fee were charged with
reference to the actual costs incurred in the research and
development activities. For the single project related to the
intellectual property with the amount of more than RMB20 million,
the independent valuation professional firm shall be involved to
determine the price.

The other service fee expenses were charged with reference to
the actual costs incurred and/or on terms no less favourable than
those offered by independent third parties to the Group.

The interest income and expenses were determined with
reference to the standard rates published by the People’s
Bank of China. The maximum balance of bank deposits placed
with and the maximum loan balance drawn down from Haier
Group Finance Co., Ltd. related to the above interest income
and expenses during the year were RMB749,326,000 and
RMB93,065,000, respectively.

The other financial service fee expenses were charged on terms
no less favourable than those offered by independent third
parties.

The logistic service income was charged on terms no less
favorable than those prevailing in the domestic market for
services of similar kinds and quality and those charged by the
Group on independent third parties.

The after-sale service income was charged on terms no less
favourable than those prevailing in the domestic market for
services of similar nature and scale.

The premise lease expenses were determined with reference to
the then prevailing market rent of similar premises at which the
premises are located and on terms no less favorable then those
offered by any independent third parties.

Annual Report 2013 & &E3§

Report of the Directors (continued)
EEEREE (A

EEXS (#)
BERERS (F)
fit : (4)

(ix)

(x)

(xi)

(xii)

(xiii)

(xiv)

(xv)
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (continued)

Continuing connected transactions (continued)

Notes: (continued)

(xvi)

The purchase of production and experimental equipment
was charged at prices no less favourable than those offered
by independent third parties; the imported production and
experimental equipment through Haier Affiliates was charged at
the purchase price from suppliers plus a commission fee of not
exceeding 1.3%.

The independent non-executive directors of the Company have
reviewed the continuing connected transactions set out above
and have confirmed that they were entered into:

(i) in the ordinary and usual course of business of the Group;

(i) on normal commercial terms or on terms no less
favourable to the Group than terms available to or from
independent third parties; and

(iii)  in accordance with the relevant agreements governing

them on terms that are fair and reasonable and in the

interests of the shareholders of the Company as a whole.

The amounts of the continuing connected transactions have not
exceeded the cap disclosed in previous announcements made
by the Company.

Ernst & Young, the Company’s auditors, were engaged to report
on the Group’s continuing connected transactions in accordance
with Hong Kong Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000
Assurance Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews of
Historical Financial Information and with reference to Practice
Note 740 Auditor’s Letter on Continuing Connected Transactions
under the Hong Kong Listing Rules issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Ernst & Young have
issued their unqualified letter containing their findings and
conclusions in respect of the continuing connected transactions
disclosed above by the Group in accordance with Rule 14A.38
of the Listing Rules. A copy of the auditors’ letter has been
provided by the Company to the Stock Exchange.
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SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT EHALARERE

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company RIERARE BHAR RS Z ARER KE
and within the knowledge of the directors as at the date of this  FEFIAl * NRAR 2 HEEITHRAZFL25%H R R
report, at least 25% of the Company’s total issued share capital A LT#FE

was held by the public.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD HRERRBR

Details of the significant events after the reporting period of the ~ ANEEFREHEBRERNBE 2 FIBHN T HHREM
Group are set out in note 46 to the financial statements. 5146 ©

AUDITORS B M

Ernst & Young will retire, and a resolution for their reappointment &K &R B AT TR EE » HEBEARQFED
as auditors of the Company will be proposed at the forthcoming #RITZREAFAE FIRSERE AR R AZ

annual general meeting. HEN 2 RER o

ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD RERESEE

Zhou Yun Jie E

Chairman BAZER

Hong Kong BE

25 March 2014 —E-NF=A=+HhH
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Independent Auditors’ Report
BB HRES

e
EY=x

To the shareholders of Haier Electronics Group Co., Ltd.
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
Haier Electronics Group Co., Ltd. (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (together, the “Group”) set out on pages 112 to 287,
which comprise the consolidated and company statements of
financial position as at 31 December 2013, and the consolidated
statement of profit or loss, the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes
in equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the
year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting
policies and other explanatory information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards
promulgated by the International Accounting Standards Board
and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit. Our report is made
solely to you, as a body, in accordance with Section 90 of the
Bermuda Companies Act 1981, and for no other purpose. We
do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any
other person for the contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require that we
comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit
to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated
financial statements are free from material misstatement.

Ernst & Young
22/F, CITIC Tower

1 Tim Mei Avenue
Central, Hong Kong

RKEFHENES T Tel E5%: +852 2846 9888
BBRRREBEIR Fax {8E: +852 2868 4432
s KE2212 ey.com
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AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITY (continued)

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit
evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the
auditors’ judgement, including the assessment of the risks of
material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments,
the auditors consider internal control relevant to the entity’s
preparation of consolidated financial statements that give a
true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal
control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates made by the directors, as well as evaluating the
overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and
of the Group as at 31 December 2013, and of the Group’s
profit and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with International Financial Reporting Standards and have
been properly prepared in accordance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Ernst & Young

Certified Public Accountants
22nd Floor, CITIC Tower

1 Tim Mei Avenue

Central

Hong Kong

25 March 2014
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Haier Electronics Group Co., Ltd.

BHEREERRLA

Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss

mEEER

Year ended 31 December 2013 HE—Z—=F+_HA=+—HItEE

2013 2012
—E-=F —T——F
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
izt AR%T R AREFT
REVENUE N 5] 62,263,162 55,615,047
Cost of sales HERK (53,125,613) (46,673,866)
Gross profit EF 9,137,549 8,941,181
Other income and gains Hip WA R 5 203,942 106,250
Selling and distribution expenses HERNHER (4,403,956) (4,569,519)
Administrative expenses T ER (2,221,437) (2,152,495)
Other expenses and losses HiERREE (9,924) (16,651)
Finance costs BAKA 7 (68,334) (64,504)
PROFIT BEFORE TAX BB AR 6 2,637,840 2,244,262
Income tax expense RS 10 (547,527) (537,285)
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR FRRA 2,090,313 1,706,977
Attributable to: WTEFER :
Owners of the Company ARFRR 11 2,036,882 1,695,122
Non-controlling interests JER RS 53,431 11,855
2,090,313 1,706,977
EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO ARAEBERBRRES
ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS OF BREF
THE COMPANY 13
Basic R RMB80.15 cents  RMB70.73 cents
AR#80.157 ARET0.735
Diluted B RMB78.14 cents  RMB66.18 cents
AR¥78.14% AR¥#66.185

Details of the dividends proposed for the year are disclosed in

note 12 to the financial statements.

AERERIKREZ FH BRI MARM 1255



Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income
AeEXHEWER

Year ended 31 December 2013 HE—Z—=F+_HA=+—HILFE

Annual Report 2013 & £E3§

2013 2012
—E—= —ET—F
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
BtaE AR%T T ARBTTT
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR FRRF 2,090,313 1,706,977
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME Hih 2w
Other comprehensive income to REZIFEKEEHHEE
be reclassified to profit or loss BRzHEME2mlEs :
in subsequent periods:
Exchange differences on translation MEBINETE 2
of foreign operations fEH =% (7,924) 2,108
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FRHEMEEKE
FOR THE YEAR, NET OF TAX (MBRBIE%) (7,924) 2,108
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FREENEARE
FOR THE YEAR 2,082,389 1,709,085
Attributable to: A& 7 e -
Owners of the Company /NG |8 11 2,029,773 1,697,159
Non-controlling interests FEEAR = 52,616 11,926
2,082,389 1,709,085




Haier Electronics Group Co., Ltd.

BHEREERRLA

Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e PR R

31 December 2013 —E—=F+_-_H=+—H

2013 2012
== —E——4F
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
k3 AR®T AREET T
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment M BB M ERE 15 1,488,068 1,308,806
Investment properties KEMZ 16 13,531 14,723
Prepaid land lease payments FEfF EHh AR E 17 307,013 254,735
Goodwill EES 18 6,123 -
Other intangible assets B\ EE 19 90,455 74,657
Available-for-sale investments Al EHEKRE 21 2,925 2,925
Prepayments for investments K& Z TR 41,400 -
Prepayments for items of property, M - BEREE
plant and equipment 5B 2 A FIE 309,095 61,177
Deferred tax assets RIETHIBEE 34 592,656 455,634
Total non-current assets FEMBEELRE 2,851,266 2,172,657
CURRENT ASSETS RBEE
Inventories FE 22 2,891,587 2,479,191
Trade and bills receivables Y2 23 7,558,920 6,924,088
Prepayments, deposits and TERIE - Ee &k
other receivables Hfth pE U BR 38 24 1,534,718 1,207,218
Pledged deposits BEERER 25 220,350 61,804
Cash and cash equivalents BeRIREEEIER 25 6,824,322 5,368,308
Total current assets MENEEAE 19,029,897 16,040,609
CURRENT LIABILITIES =R
Trade and bills payables FERBR A R 4 26 3,202,301 2,961,504
Tax payable FET AR IR 693,964 837,476
Other payables and H bR BR R
accruals EEtaE 27 7,776,253 6,494,628
Interest-bearing borrowings TEEE 28 159,633 39,800
Due to a fellow subsidiary FERS — R A BB A RIRUIE 14 15,000 =
Due to non-controlling shareholders JE < FEHEE AR AR 3R 3R IE 29 24,301 =
Provisions & 5€ 537,244 534,331
Put option liabilities ROLEEAE 30 22,400 53,570
Total current liabilities BB ERE 12,431,096 10,921,309
REBEERE 6,598,801 5,119,300

’I ’|4 NET CURRENT ASSETS
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position (continued)
FmEMBMRRE (&)
31 December 20183 —ZE—=F+—-_A=+—H

2013 2012
== — T4
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
Bzt AR®T T ARETTT
TOTAL ASSETS LESS REERABAER
CURRENT LIABILITIES 9,450,067 7,291,957
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES FERBAE
Convertible bonds A PR (E 5 32 716,835 699,643
Provisions Bt 33 302,891 266,884
Deferred income FEIEURA 44,145 42,210
Deferred tax liabilities FEEFIBE E 34 8,503 8,755
Put option liabilities ROLHAERE 30 305,600 374,700
Share-based payment liabilities AR BERE 2 AR 31 14,429 -
Due to non-controlling shareholders FE 1~ FE4E AR AR 3R SR IE 29 - 59,537
Total non-current liabilities ERBEGBAE 1,392,403 1,451,729
Net assets BEFE 8,057,664 5,840,228
EQUITY =
Equity attributable to owners PiIN/NE] ) 3
of the Company FEfh A
Issued equity BEITER 35 2,761,754 2,501,181
Shares held for Restricted Share FEIR Bl M R 1 B B T 2
Incentive Scheme FriFa 2 I’kH 36 (7,863) -
Equity component of convertible bonds A% E = 2 w25 32 149,249 149,249
Reserves B 38(a) 4,617,064 2,731,816
Proposed final dividend ¥R R HARR & 12 200,824 157,480
7,721,028 5,539,726
Non-controlling interests eI 336,636 300,502
Total equity = BE 8,057,664 5,840,228
Zhou Yun Jie Li Hua Gang
AER 2|
Director Director 1 1 5
EZE EZE
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Haier Electronics Group Co., Ltd.

BHEREERRLA

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

n -\éiﬁﬁﬁii

Year ended 31 December 2013 HE—Z—=F+_HA=+—HItEE

2013 2012
—E-=f —E——F
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
o3 ARBTT ARETT
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES S&%(¥ HEHRE
Profit before tax BB ATy 2,637,840 2,244,262
Adjustments for: EL T
Finance costs TN 7 68,334 64,504
Interest income FEWA 5 (79,681) (35,854)
Dividend income from available-for-sale A ERE R BIA
investments g - (6,733)
Gain on bargain purchase R 5 (16) -
Gain on disposal of available-for-sale HERHHERE s
investments 5 - (190)
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment %1% » BE MREITE 6 113,466 97,749
Depreciation of investment properties REMENE 6 1,192 1,192
Recognition of prepaid land premiums ERBMN B ES 6 7,575 5,287
Amortisation of intangible assets R R EEH 6 6,977 7,192
Provision for obsolete and slow-moving B R T E R
inventories 6 37,772 90,049
Provision of impairment on trade receivables FENBR R 2 R B R 6 4,436 -
Provision of impairment on other receivables H i UG BR 3R 2 R B 6 - 4,228
Loss on disposal/write-off of items of property, & /H##EME  BER
plant and equipment and investment FEBERRENEL
properties, net EiRRE 6 101 1,580
Loss on disposal/write-off of items of HE /MEBM itz
Prepaid land premium HE BB 6 5,387 =
Impairment of property, plant and equipment WE - BERRERE 6 - 5,503
Impairment of intangible assets EREERE 6 - 5,340
Share-based payment expense DA D BERE 2 HRAE 6 14,429 =
Management services arrangements expenses ‘&3 RIS HEF 6 34,877 -
Equity-settled share option expense PARAN G 8 7 BE R R 6 12,955 39,620
2,865,644 2,528,729
Increase in inventories FEEM (448,366) (454,553)
Increase in trade and bills receivables FEMRBR TR I AR5 N (638,927) (1,342,664)
Increase in prepayments, deposits and BNFIE - B REMER
other receivables BRI AN (316,152) (319,581)
Decrease in trade and bills payables AN N ES 233,338 410,596
Decrease in other payables and accruals HiENRR R ETBERD 1,234,171 1,165,126
Increase in provisions B 38,920 109,805
Decrease in deferred income EEW AR (46) (700)
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes, net ExE BT B FHE (10,174) 4,719
Cash generated from operations IR ILATISIE 4 2,958,408 2,096,477
Interest received BUHE 79,681 35,854
Mainland China corporate income tax paid B P BRI EMEHR (828,059) (392,164)
Net cash flows from operating activities O N TRt 2,210,030 1,740,167
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows (continued)
GEEERER (@)

Year ended 31 December 2013 HE—ZE—=F+—HA=+—HIFE

f
2013 2012
—E-=f —E——F
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
o3 ARBTT ARETT
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES #REZHzRERE
Dividends received from available-for-sale BIAT#HERERE
investments = 6,733
Purchases of items of property, plant and BEYE  BEIXEEE
equipment (259,374) (406,421)
Prepayments for investments REZBERE (41,400) -
Prepayments for items of property, plant and ¥ BEMRBBEEZ
equipment SEIRER (247,918) (61,177)
Proceeds from disposal of items of property, HEME « BEREEEE
plant and equipment TS 50R 1,307 4,473
Additions to prepaid land leases FRBEMLIRAE 17 (70,496) (1,611)
Additions to intangible assets MEELEE 19 - (7,378)
Acquisition of subsidiaries e 10N 39 (20,573) -
Acquisition of non-controlling interests Wi I i o (10,029) -
Investments in available-for-sale investments AEHEREZRE - (300)
Decrease/(increase) in pledged deposits BEHFFRD /(Em) (158,546) 25,598
Increase in time deposits with original maturity ~ REUGE Bzt R2IER
of over three months when acquired BR=MAzEHBEFFEM (847,000) (209,000) ’
/g
Net cash flows used in investing activities REZHMAZHSmEFE (1,654,029) (649,083)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES ®&EFHzRERE y
Proceeds from issue of shares BITRG SR 35 172,518 82,948
Shares purchased for Restricted Share Incentive Fi[R IR (7 2Bz 2
Scheme EE 2R (7,863) -
Interests paid for convertible bonds AR ES T2 F8 32 (25,375) (35,188)
Capital contributions from non-controlling IR ELE
shareholders 5,500 35,926
Capital returned to non-controlling shareholders — #Ri& IR AL E A - (9,800)
Repayment of loans from non-controlling B IEE R AR R E R
shareholders (22,838) -
Loans from non-controlling shareholders FEERRRER - 67,765
Loans from a fellow subsidiary —RXAZMBRRER 15,000 -
New borrowings FEER 348,699 39,800
Repayment of borrowings BEEE (228,867) (25,000)
Dividends paid to non-controlling shareholders BRIEERAR R AR S (180,042) (37,637)
Dividends paid to the then holding companies 2B AR B
of subsidiaries B A RS = (2,420)
Interest paid BRAFE (3,532) (1,469)

19

Net cash flows from financing activities BEETHZESTEFE 73,200 114,925
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BHEREERRLA

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows (continued)
GEeBEeRER (&)
Year ended 31 December 2013 HE—ZE—=F+—HA=+—HIFE

2013 2012
—E-=F —E——F
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
k=3 AR¥T T ARET T
NET INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH BeRHALEEERY
EQUIVALENTS BnFE 629,201 1,206,009
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year ~ FHzE & MRESEER 5,134,308 3,936,781
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes, net EXEHT2FE (20,187) (8,482)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT FRZBERBEEEEE
END OF YEAR 5,743,322 5,134,308
ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF CASH AND BeRBEEEERZ
CASH EQUIVALENTS EERD T
Non-pledged cash and bank balances EIRHR S RETES 4,946,760 3,976,952
Time deposits EHER 1,877,562 1,391,356
Cash and cash equivalents as stated BBARKRF T 2 RE R
in the statement of financial position HEEBEIBEH 25 6,824,322 5,368,308
Less: time deposits with original maturity B RV E BRET RS H
over three months when acquired ARB=EAzE#HER (1,081,000) (234,000)
Cash and cash equivalents as stated BRemearTMIIcRHE R
in the statement of cash flows RE&EEER 5,743,322 5,134,308
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Statement of Financial Position
B R AR R 3=

31 December 2013 —ZE—=F+=-"A=+—H

2013 2012
—E-=F —TCF
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
HiiF ARBT T ARETT
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FRBEE
Investments in subsidiaries R B AR ZKE 20 1,989,881 2,039,482
Intangible assets mIEE 19 61,250 64,750
Due from subsidiaries JE UG BT B A R IR 20 430,076 249,671
Total non-current assets FERBEELE 2,481,207 2,353,903
CURRENT ASSETS REEE
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables FBRZIE « 1 R EMEKER 24 24,307 15,804
Cash and cash equivalents BeMEEEEEE 25 939,028 1,065,406
Total current assets TEBERE 963,335 1,081,210
CURRENT LIABILITIES nEEE
Other payables and accruals HibEERF R EEE 27 131,825 36,944
Total current liabilities B BERE 131,825 36,944
NET CURRENT ASSETS REEEZRE 831,510 1,044,266
TOTAL ASSETS LESS HEERRBEE
CURRENT LIABILITIES 3,312,717 3,398,169
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES FnBaE
Due to subsidiaries AR ENGIE ¢ 20 68,456 80,574
Convertible bonds A ES 32 716,835 699,643
Total non-current liabilities FERBEERE 785,291 780,217
Net assets BEFE 2,527,426 2,617,952
EQUITY Em
Issued capital BEITRA 35 257,524 247,686
Equity component of convertible bonds AR ESR 2w D 32 149,249 149,249
Reserves 1 38(b) 1,919,829 2,063,537
Proposed final dividend R AR EAIR B 12 200,824 157,480
Total equity BmEE 2,527,426 2,617,952
Zhou Yun Jie Li Hua Gang 1 2]
BAER FERE
Director Director
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CORPORATE INFORMATION

Haier Electronics Group Co., Ltd. is a limited liability
company incorporated in Bermuda. The registered office
of the Company is located at Clarendon House, 2 Church
Street, Hamilton HM11, Bermuda.

In the opinion of the directors, the immediate holding
company of the Company is Qingdao Haier Co., Ltd.
(“Qingdao Haier”), which is established in the People’s
Republic of China (the “PRC”), and the controlling
shareholders of the Company are Haier Group Corporation
(“Haier Corp”) and Qingdao Haier Investment and
Development Co., Ltd. (“Haier Investment”) (collectively
referred to as “Haier Group”), which are established in
the PRC, by reason of their acting in concert with each
other in respect of the Company. Qingdao Haier is a non-
wholly-owned subsidiary of Haier Corp.

During the year, the Group was involved in the following
principal activities:

o manufacture and sale of washing machines
° manufacture and sale of water heaters
o provision of logistics, after-sale and other value-

added consumer services as well as sale and
distribution of home appliances and other products
procured from subsidiaries and/or associates of
Haier Group (“Haier Affiliates”) and other external
parties

NEAEH

BREREEERAR AR B RETM
B2 BRR AR o AR AR i == 5 L
A Clarendon House, 2 Church Street,
Hamilton HM11, Bermuda °
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2.1

BASIS OF PREPARATION

These financial statements have been prepared in

accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards (“IFRSs”) (which include all International
Financial Reporting Standards, International Accounting
Standards (“IASs”) and Interpretations) promulgated
by the International Accounting Standards Board (the
“IASB”) and the disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance. They have been prepared
under the historical cost convention, except for derivative
financial instruments which have been measured at
fair value. These financial statements are presented in
Renminbi (“RMB”) and all values are rounded to the

nearest thousand except when otherwise indicated.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the
financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Group”) for the year
ended 31 December 2013. The financial statements of the
subsidiaries are prepared for the same reporting period
as the Company, using consistent accounting policies.
The results of subsidiaries are consolidated from the date
on which the Group obtains control, and continue to be

consolidated until the date that such control ceases.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive
income are attributed to the owners of the parent of the
Group and to the non-controlling interests, even if this
results in the non-controlling interests having a deficit
balance. All intra-group assets and liabilities, equity,
income, expenses and cash flows relating to transactions
between members of the Group are eliminated in full on
consolidation.
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2.1

BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued)
Basis of consolidation (continued)

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an
investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there
are changes to one or more of the three elements of
control described in the accounting policy for subsidiaries
below. A change in the ownership interest of a subsidiary,
without a loss of control, is accounted for as an equity
transaction.

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it
derecognises (i) the assets (including goodwill) and
liabilities of the subsidiary, (ii) the carrying amount of any
non-controlling interest and (iii) the cumulative translation
differences recorded in equity; and recognises (i) the fair
value of the consideration received, (ii) the fair value of
any investment retained and (iii) any resulting surplus or
deficit in profit or loss. The Group’s share of components
previously recognised in other comprehensive income
is reclassified to profit or loss or retained profits, as
appropriate, on the same basis as would be required if
the Group had directly disposed of the related assets or
liabilities.

2.1
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2.2

CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES

The Group has adopted the following new and revised
IFRSs for the first time for the current year's financial
statements.

IFRS 1 Amendments ~ Amendments to IFRS 1 First-time Adoption
of International Financial Reporting
Standards - Government Loans

IFRS 7 Amendments ~ Amendments to IFRS 7 Financial Instruments:
Disclosures - Offsetting Financial Assets
and Financial Liabilities

IFRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statements
IFRS 11 Joint Arrangements
IFRS 12 Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities

IFRS 10, IFRS 11 and  Amendments to IFRS 10, IFRS 11 and
IFRS 12 Amendments  IFRS 12 - Transition Guidance

IFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement

IAS 1 Amendments Amendments to IAS 1 Presentation of
Financial Statements — Presentation of
Items of Other Comprehensive Income

IAS 19 (Revised) Employee Benefits
|AS 27 (Revised) Separate Financial Statements
IAS 28 (Revised) Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures

IAS 36 Amendments  Amendments to IAS 36 Impairment of
Assets-Recoverable Amount Disclosures for
Non-Financial Assets (early adopted)

IFRIC 20 Stripping Costs in the Production Phase
of a Surface Mine
Annual Improvements ~ Amendments to a number of IFRSs issued in
2009-2011 Cycle May 2012

Notes to Financial Statements (continued
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2.2

CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES (continued)

Other than as further explained below regarding the
impact of IFRS 10, IFRS 11, IFRS 12, IFRS 13, IAS
19 (Revised), amendments to IFRS 10, IFRS 11, IFRS
12, IAS 1 and certain amendments included in Annual
Improvements 2009-2011 Cycle, the adoption of the new
and revised IFRSs has had no significant financial effect
on these financial statements.

The principal effects of adopting these new and revised
IFRSs are as follows:

(a)

IFRS 10 replaces the portion of |AS 27
Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements
that addresses the accounting for consolidated
financial statements and addresses the issues in
SIC 12 Consolidation — Special Purpose Entities.
It establishes a single control model used for
determining which entities are consolidated.
To meet the definition of control in IFRS 10, an
investor must have (a) power over an investee,
(b) exposure, or rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee, and (c) the ability
to use its power over the investee to affect the
amount of the investor’s returns. The changes
introduced by IFRS 10 require management of
the Group to exercise significant judgement to
determine which entities are controlled.

As a result of the application of IFRS 10, the Group
has changed the accounting policy with respect
to determining which investees are controlled by
the Group.

The application of IFRS 10 does not change any
of the consolidation conclusions of the Group in
respect of its involvement with investees as at 1
January 2013.
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2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES (continued)

(b)

IFRS 11 replaces |IAS 31 Interests in Joint
Ventures and SIC 13 Jointly Controlled Entities
— Non-Monetary Contributions by Venturers. It
describes the accounting for joint arrangements
with joint control. It addresses only two forms of
joint arrangements, i.e., joint operations and joint
ventures, and removes the option to account for
joint ventures using proportionate consolidation.
The classification of joint arrangements under IFRS
11 depends on the parties’ rights and obligations
arising from the arrangements. A joint operation
is a joint arrangement whereby the joint operators
have rights to the assets and obligations for the
liabilities of the arrangement and is accounted
for on a line-by-line basis to the extent of the
joint operators’ rights and obligations in the joint
operation. A joint venture is a joint arrangement
whereby the joint venturers have rights to the
net assets of the arrangement and is required
to be accounted for using the equity method in
accordance with IAS 28 (Revised).

IFRS 12 sets out the disclosure requirements for
subsidiaries, joint arrangements, associates and
structured entities previously included in IAS 27
Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements,
IAS 31 Interests in Joint Ventures and |IAS 28
Investments in Associates. It also introduces a
number of new disclosure requirements for these
entities. Details of the disclosures for subsidiaries

are included in note 20 to the financial statements.
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2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES (continued)

(d)

The IFRS 10, IFRS 11 and IFRS 12 Amendments
clarify the transition guidance in IFRS 10 and
and provide further relief from full retrospective
application of these standards, limiting the
requirement to provide adjusted comparative
information to only the preceding comparative
period. The amendments clarify that retrospective
adjustments are only required if the consolidation
conclusion as to which entities are controlled by
the Group is different between IFRS 10 and IAS 27
or SIC 12 at the beginning of the annual period in

which IFRS 10 is applied for the first time.

IFRS 13 provides a precise definition of fair value
and a single source of fair value measurement and
disclosure requirements for use across IFRSs. The
standard does not change the circumstances in
which the Group is required to use fair value, but
rather provides guidance on how fair value should
be applied where its use is already required or
permitted under other IFRSs. IFRS13 is applied
prospectively and the adoption has had no material
impact on the Group’s fair value measurements. As
a result of the guidance in IFRS 13, the policies
for measuring fair value have been amended.
Additional disclosures required by IFRS 13 for the
fair value measurements of financial instruments
are included in note 44 to the financial statements.
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2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES (continued)

()

The IAS 1 Amendments change the grouping of
items presented in other comprehensive income
(“OClI”).
recycled) to profit or loss at a future point in time

[tems that could be reclassified (or

(for example, exchange differences on translation
of foreign operations, net movement on cash flow
hedges and net loss or gain on available-for-
sale financial assets) are presented separately
from items which will never be reclassified (for
example, the revaluation of land and buildings).
The amendments have affected presentation only
and have had no impact on the financial position
or performance of the Group. The consolidated
statement of comprehensive income has been
restated to reflect the changes. In addition, the
Group has chosen to use the new title “statement
of profit or loss” as introduced by the amendments
in these financial statements.

IAS 19 (Revised) includes a number of amendments
that range from fundamental changes to simple
clarifications and re-wording. The revised standard
introduces significant changes in the accounting
for defined benefit pension plans including
removing the choice to defer the recognition
of actuarial gains and losses. Other changes
include modifications to the timing of recognition
for termination benefits, the classification of short-
term employee benefits and disclosures of defined
benefit plans. As the Group does not have any
defined benefit plan or employee termination plan
and the Group does not have any significant
employee benefits that are expected to be settled
for more than twelve months after the reporting
period, the adoption of the revised standard
has had no effect on the financial position or
performance of the Group.
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2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES (continued)

(h)

The IAS 36 Amendments remove the unintended
disclosure requirement made by IFRS 13 on the
recoverable amount of a cash-generating unit
which is not impaired. In addition, the amendments
require the disclosure of the recoverable amounts
for the assets or cash-generating units for which an
impairment loss has been recognised or reversed
during the reporting period, and expand the
disclosure requirements regarding the fair value
measurement for these assets or units if their
recoverable amounts are based on fair value less
costs of disposal. The amendments are effective
retrospectively for annual periods beginning on
or after 1 January 2014 with earlier application
permitted, provided IFRS 13 is also applied. The
Group has early adopted the amendments in these
financial statements. The amendments have had
no impact on the financial position or performance
of the Group.

The Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2009-2011
Cycle issued in May 2012 sets out amendments
to a number of standards. There are separate
transitional provisions for each standard. While
the adoption of some of the amendments may
result in changes in accounting policies, none
of these amendments have had a significant
financial impact on the Group. Details of the key
amendments most applicable to the Group are as
follows:
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2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND 22 BHEENESEREE (Z)

DISCLOSURES (continued)

(i) (continued) (i) (%)

IAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements:
Clarifies the difference between voluntary
additional comparative information and
the minimum required comparative
information. Generally, the minimum
required comparative period is the
previous period. An entity must include
comparative information in the related
notes to the financial statements when it
voluntarily provides comparative information
beyond the previous period. The additional
comparative information does not need
to contain a complete set of financial
statements.

In addition, the amendment clarifies that
the opening statement of financial position
as at the beginning of the preceding period
must be presented when an entity changes
its accounting policies; makes retrospective
restatements or makes reclassifications, and
that change has a material effect on the
statement of financial position. However,
the related notes to the opening statement
of financial position as at the beginning of
the preceding period are not required to be
presented.

IAS 32 Financial Instruments: Presentation:
Clarifies that income taxes arising from
distributions to equity holders are accounted
for in accordance with IAS 12 Income Taxes.
The amendment removes existing income
tax requirements from IAS 32 and requires
entities to apply the requirements in IAS 12
to any income tax arising from distributions
to equity holders.
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2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE 23 CEHEMEERERZBEBRMBREE
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING =)
STANDARDS
The Group has not applied the following new and revised AEBYERUEHBEHRRERTIIER
IFRSs, that have been issued but are not yet effective, in 1B 18 R A B2 FT BT RS BT B BR B 75 3
these financial statements. HXER o
IFRS 9 Financial Instruments 4 BRUBRTENLSE  AFLA
IFRS9,IFRS7and  Hedge Accounting and amendments to BRUBRERNER . PSS LRERTEREER
IAS 39 Amendments  IFRS 9, IFRS 7 and IAS 394 BRUBRERNETRE 208 ARAFAETEN
B &HERIF30% FTHRER 857395
(Ba1%) ST
IFRS 10, IFRS 12 and ~ Amendments to IFRS 10, IFRS 12 and IAS 27 ARUBREENE 0% ARMHRSRASI0%
IAS 27 (Revised) (Revised) - Investment Entities ! BRUFRSENZ 20N ARHBREENZ125R
Amendments GilsEp I BB ERIETH: (L)
(83T) (BATK) -REEEI KT
IFRS 14 Regulatory Deferral Accounts ° BRMBESENE U EEECES
IAS 19 Amendments  Amendments to IAS 19 Employee Benefits EREsEAIZ 195 BREERE10RES AT/
- Defined Benefit Plans: Employee (B34 - RE#EitE - BRL
Contributions 2 pa HK
IAS 32 Amendments  Amendments to IAS 32 Financial Instruments: BREERER ARe ENERRLHTA
Presentation - Offsetting Financial Assets (fEaT%) 2f - HHIFEERBE
and Financial Liabilities ' BB
IAS 39 Amendments  Amendments to IAS 39 Financial Instruments: GRS ERiY AR e:ERIEREHTA -
Recognition and Measurement — Novation (fg57%) AR E - (A TAEER
of Derivatives and Continuation of Hedge E:pit- i/ A
Accounting '
SIC - Int 21 Levies ' FheRZES HE
- RBEAR
Annual Improvements ~ Amendments to a number of IFRSs issued in FRYE-F-FEZ R-F-IE-ARMSHE
2010-2012 Cycle January 2014 E-—EEY B B RE R BT
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2.3

ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (continued)

Further information about those IFRSs that are expected
to be applicable to the Group is as follows:

IFRS 9 issued in November 2009 is the first part of phase
1 of a comprehensive project to entirely replace IAS 39
Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement. This
phase focuses on the classification and measurement of
financial assets. Instead of classifying financial assets into
four categories, an entity shall classify financial assets as
subsequently measured at either amortised cost or fair
value, on the basis of both the entity’s business model for
managing the financial assets and the contractual cash
flow characteristics of the financial assets. This aims to
improve and simplify the approach for the classification
and measurement of financial assets compared with the
requirements of IAS 39.

In October 2010, the IASB issued additions to IFRS
9 to address financial liabilities (the “Additions”) and
incorporated in IFRS 9 the current derecognition
principles of financial instruments of IAS 39. Most of the
Additions were carried forward unchanged from IAS 39,
while changes were made to the measurement of financial
liabilities designated as at fair value through profit or
loss using the fair value option (“FVO”). For these FVO
liabilities, the amount of change in the fair value of a
liability that is attributable to changes in credit risk must
be presented in OCI. The remainder of the change in fair
value is presented in profit or loss, unless presentation of
the fair value change in respect of the liability’s credit risk
in OCIl would create or enlarge an accounting mismatch
in profit or loss. However, loan commitments and financial
guarantee contracts which have been designated under
the FVO are scoped out of the Additions.
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2.3

ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (continued)

In November 2013, the IASB added to IFRS 9 the
requirements related to hedge accounting and made
some related changes to IAS 39 and IFRS 7 which include
the corresponding disclosures about risk management
activity for applying hedge accounting. The amendments
to IFRS 9 relax the requirements for assessing hedge
effectiveness which result in more risk management
strategies being eligible for hedge accounting. The
amendments also allow greater flexibility on the hedged
items and relax the rules on using purchased options
and non-derivative financial instruments as hedging
instruments. In addition, the amendments to IFRS 9 allow
an entity to apply only the improved accounting for own
credit risk-related fair value gains and losses arising on
FVO liabilities as introduced in 2010 without applying the
other IFRS 9 requirements at the same time.

IAS 39 is aimed to be replaced by IFRS 9 in its entirety.
Before this entire replacement, the guidance in IAS 39
on impairment of financial assets continues to apply. The
previous mandatory effective date of IFRS 9 was removed
by the IASB in December 2013 and a mandatory effective
date will be determined after the entire replacement of
IAS 39 is completed. However, the standard is available
for application now. The Group will quantify the effect in
conjunction with other phases, when the final standard
including all phases is issued.
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2.3

ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (continued)

Amendments to IFRS 10 include a definition of an
investment entity and provide an exception to the
consolidation requirement for entities that meet the
definition of an investment entity. Investment entities
are required to account for subsidiaries at fair value
through profit or loss in accordance with IFRS 9 rather
than consolidate them. Consequential amendments were
made to IFRS 12 and IAS 27 (Revised). The amendments
to IFRS 12 also set out the disclosure requirements
for investment entities. The Group expects that these
amendments will not have any impact on the Group as
the Company is not an investment entity as defined in

IFRS 10.

The IAS 32 Amendments clarify the meaning of “currently
has a legally enforceable right to setoff” for offsetting
financial assets and financial liabilities. The amendments
also clarify the application of the offsetting criteria in I1AS
32 to settlement systems (such as central clearing house
systems) which apply gross settlement mechanisms
that are not simultaneous. The amendments are not
expected to have any impact on the financial position or
performance of the Group upon adoption on 1 January
2014.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an entity (including a structured entity),
directly or indirectly, controlled by the Company. Control
is achieved when the Group is exposed, or has rights, to
variable returns from its involvement with the investee and
has the ability to affect those returns through its power
over the investee (i.e., existing rights that give the Group
the current ability to direct the relevant activities of the
investee).

When the Company has, directly or indirectly, less than
a majority of the voting or similar rights of an investee,
the Group considers all relevant facts and circumstances
in assessing whether it has power over an investee,
including:

(a) the contractual arrangement with the other vote
holders of the investee;

(b) rights arising from other contractual arrangements;
and

(c) the Group’s voting rights and potential voting
rights.

The results of subsidiaries are included in the Company’s
statement of profit or loss to the extent of dividends
received and receivable. The Company’s investments
in subsidiaries are stated at cost less any impairment
losses.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Business combinations and goodwill

Business combinations are accounted for using the

acquisition method. The acquisition method of
accounting, the consideration transferred is measured
at the acquisition date fair value which is the sum of the
acquisition date fair values of assets transferred by the
Group, liabilities assumed by the Group to the former
owners of the acquiree and the equity interests issued
by the Group in exchange for control of the acquiree. For
each business combination, the Group elects whether to
measure the non-controlling interests in the acquiree that
are present ownership interests and entitle their holders
to a proportionate share of net assets in the event of
liquidation at fair value or at the proportionate share of the
acquiree’s identifiable net assets. All other components
of non-controlling interests are measured at fair value.

Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred.

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the
financial assets and liabilities assumed for appropriate
classification and designation in accordance with the
contractual terms, economic circumstances and pertinent
conditions as at the acquisition date. This includes the
separation of embedded derivatives in host contracts by
the acquiree.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the
previously held equity interest is remeasured at its
acquisition date fair value and any resulting gain or loss
is recognised in profit or loss.

Annual Report 2013 & £E3§

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

BB HERME ()

31 December 2013 —E—=F+=-HF=+—H

2.4

TEEHBERME (&)

EBREOHREE

EBEHTRAKEEAR - WX
HBEIARENAKEERZ AT ETE -
ZATEAAEEE R AENKBEAS
ZRAFE  AEBARKBLEZAIERE
ANEYEZ BB RSB BIT AR IR
T AR 2 BN - REEKE
B AEEREET AR FEREER
WHEF T HBEEFEZL - StERE
WEFBRBEREAEERTE FHES
ARBERIZL DB IRE R EEFE
MYFEFERRIE RS o FEIRMRIERS Y FT A H b4l
BER D ThiR A A E o WIEABRER AR
EERYARE -

EARENE-BEKE  HEREEH
R RUE A M2 RERE LB
o FESEAEZMHEERAR K
ERER Z D EREE - EFBEK R
BHEANPZMERETETRETS
BE -

=556 0F o B BUETT - TRl A 2 B
RKBEBZ A TVEEHNTE  MAEE
ZBBRNE R o

137



Haier Electronics Group Co., Ltd.

BHEREERRLA

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
g s ELEENE D)

31 December 2013 —&—

24

=f+=-A=+—H

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Business combinations and goodwill (continued)

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the
acquirer is recognised at fair value at the acquisition
date. Contingent consideration classified as an asset
or liability that is a financial instrument and within the
scope of IAS 39 is measured at fair value with changes
in fair value either recognised in profit or loss or as a
change to other comprehensive income. If the contingent
consideration is not within the scope of IAS 39, it is
measured in accordance with the appropriate IFRS.
Contingent consideration that is classified as equity is
not measured and subsequent settlement is accounted
for within equity.

Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the excess
of the aggregate of the consideration transferred, the
amount recognised for non-controlling interests and any
fair value of the Group’s previously held equity interests
in the acquiree over the identifiable net assets acquired
and liabilities assumed. If the sum of this consideration
and other items is lower than the fair value of the net
assets acquired, the difference is, after reassessment,
recognised in profit or loss as a gain on bargain purchase.

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less
any accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill is tested
for impairment annually or more frequently if events or
changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying
value may be impaired. The Group performs its annual
impairment test of goodwill as at 31 December. For the
purpose of impairment testing, goodwill acquired in
a business combination is, from the acquisition date,
allocated to each of the Group’s cash-generating units,
or groups of cash-generating units, that are expected to
benefit from the synergies of the combination, irrespective
of whether other assets or liabilities of the Group are
assigned to those units or groups of units.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Business combinations and goodwill (continued)

Impairment is determined by assessing the recoverable
amount of the cash-generating unit (group of cash-
generating units) to which the goodwill relates. Where the
recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit (group of
cash-generating units) is less than the carrying amount,
an impairment loss is recognised. An impairment loss
recognised for goodwill is not reversed in a subsequent
period.

Where goodwill has been allocated to a cash-generating
unit (or group of cash-generating units) and part of the
operation within that unit is disposed of, the goodwill
associated with the operation disposed of is included in
the carrying amount of the operation when determining
the gain or loss on the disposal. Goodwill disposed of in
these circumstances is measured based on the relative
value of the operation and the portion of the cash-
generating unit retained.

Fair value measurement

The Group measures its derivative financial instruments at
fair value at the end of each reporting period. Fair value is
the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid
to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between
market participants at the measurement date. The fair
value measurement is based on the presumption that
the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability
takes place either in the principal market for the asset
or liability, or in the absence of a principal market, in
the most advantageous market for the asset or liability.
The principal or the most advantageous market must be
accessible by the Group. The fair value of an asset or a
liability is measured using the assumptions that market
participants would use when pricing the asset or liability,
assuming that market participants act in their economic
best interest.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Fair value measurement (continued)

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes
into account a market participant’s ability to generate
economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and
best use or by selling it to another market participant that
would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate
in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are
available to measure fair value, maximising the use of
relevant observable inputs and minimising the use of
unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured
or disclosed in the financial statements are categorised
within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows,
based on the lowest level input that is significant to the
fair value measurement as a whole:

Level 1 — based on quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities

Level 2 — based on valuation techniques for which the
lowest level input that is significant to the
fair value measurement is observable, either
directly or indirectly

Level 3 — based on valuation techniques for which the
lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement is unobservable
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Fair value measurement (continued)

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the
financial statements on a recurring basis, the Group
determines whether transfers have occurred between
levels in the hierarchy by reassessing categorisation
(based on the lowest level input that is significant to the
fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of each
reporting period.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when annual
impairment testing for an asset is required (other than
inventories, financial assets and goodwill), the asset’s
recoverable amount is estimated. An asset’s recoverable
amount is the higher of the asset’s or cash-generating
unit’s value-in-use and its fair value less costs of disposal,
and is determined for an individual asset, unless the
asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely
independent of those from other assets or groups
of assets, in which case the recoverable amount is
determined for the cash-generating unit to which the
asset belongs.

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying
amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In
assessing value-in-use, the estimated future cash flows
are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current market assessments
of the time value of money and the risks specific to the
asset. An impairment loss is charged to the statement
of profit or loss in the period in which it arises in those
expense categories consistent with the function of the
impaired asset.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 FESTHERBE (&)
POLICIES (continued)
Impairment of non-financial assets (continued) FMBEERME (F)
An assessment is made at the end of each reporting REREHR - SFEBEHRBRBE
period as to whether there is an indication that previously E R RER BT BIF E S A gD o
recognised impairment losses may no longer exist or FHRELAPR - BIETAIRESE - B
may have decreased. If such an indication exists, the RANETEEEAWESE L bt A EH
recoverable amount is estimated. A previously recognised HERELAMCERCEERERBR (B
impairment loss of an asset other than goodwill is BRI - RSB IFRBERIE
reversed only if there has been a change in the estimates EFEREYERZAEERRBEBREM
used to determine the recoverable amount of that asset, REETERHE (BMBREMTE #
but not to an amount higher than the carrying amount that ) o BB R ERBBRTINEEMRET A
would have been determined (net of any depreciation/ BEX -

amortisation) had no impairment loss been recognised for
the asset in prior years. A reversal of such an impairment
loss is credited to the statement of profit or loss in the
period in which it arises.

Related parties BEAL
A party is considered to be related to the Group if: THSTHRREREEFRE
(a) the party is a person or a close member of that (@) FZARZBALIRKEZALTHESR
person’s family and that person BB mZzaAL
(i) has control or joint control over the Group; (i) ool oy E A EE
(i) has significant influence over the Group; or (i) HEAEEEEAFE : K
(i) is a member of the key management (i) ARNEEFAEERFTAR]E
personnel of the Group or of a parent of the EEBRABZKE
Group;
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Related parties (continued)

or

(b)  the party is an entity where any of the following
conditions applies:

(i) the entity and the Group are members of the
same group;

(i) one entity is an associate or joint venture of
the other entity (or of a parent, subsidiary
or fellow subsidiary of the other entity);

(iii)  the entity and the Group are joint ventures

of the same third party;

(iv)  one entity is a joint venture of a third entity
and the other entity is an associate of the

third entity;

(V) the entity is a post-employment benefit plan
for the benefit of employees of either the
Group or an entity related to the Group;

(vi)  the entity is controlled or jointly controlled
by a person identified in (a); and

(vii) a person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of
the key management personnel of the entity
(or of a parent of the entity).
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation

Property, plant and equipment, other than construction
in progress, are stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation and any impairment losses. The cost of
an item of property, plant and equipment comprises its
purchase price and any directly attributable costs of
bringing the asset to its working condition and location
for its intended use.

Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant and
equipment have been put into operation, such as repairs
and maintenance, is normally charged to the statement
of profit or loss in the period in which it is incurred. In
situations where the recognition criteria are satisfied, the
expenditure for a major inspection is capitalised in the
carrying amount of the asset as a replacement. Where
significant parts of property, plant and equipment are
required to be replaced at intervals, the Group recognises
such parts as individual assets with specific useful lives
and depreciates them accordingly.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to
write off the cost of each item of property, plant and
equipment to its residual value over its estimated useful
life. The principal annual rates used for this purpose are
as follows:

2% to 19%
5% to 33%
10% to 33%
9% to 19%

Buildings

Plant and machinery

Tools, furniture and fixtures
Motor vehicles
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation
(continued)

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment
have different useful lives, the cost of that item is allocated
on a reasonable basis among the parts and each part is
depreciated separately. Residual values, useful lives and
the depreciation method are reviewed, and adjusted if
appropriate, at least at each financial year end.

An item of property, plant and equipment including
any significant part initially recognised is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss on
disposal or retirement recognised in the statement of
profit or loss in the year the asset is derecognised is
the difference between the net sales proceeds and the
carrying amount of the relevant asset.

Construction in progress is stated at cost less any
impairment losses, and is not depreciated. Construction
in progress is reclassified to the appropriate category of
the property, plant and equipment when completed and
ready for use.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Investment properties

Investment properties are interests in buildings (including
the leasehold interest under an operating lease for a
property which would otherwise meet the definition of an
investment property) held to earn rental income and/or for
capital appreciation, rather than for use in the production
or supply of goods or services or for administrative
purposes; or for sale in the ordinary course of business.
Such properties are measured initially at cost, including
transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition,
investment properties are stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation and any impairment losses. Depreciation is
calculated on the straight-line method to write off the cost
of each investment property over its estimated useful life.
The principal annual rate used for this purpose is 5%.

Any gains or losses on the retirement or disposal of an
investment property are recognised in the statement of
profit or loss in the year of the retirement or disposal.

Intangible assets (other than goodwill)

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on
initial recognition at cost. The cost of intangible assets
acquired in a business combination is the fair value at the
date of acquisition. The useful lives of intangible assets
are assessed to be either finite or indefinite. Intangible
assets with finite lives are subsequently amortised over
the useful economic life and assessed for impairment
whenever there is an indication that the intangible asset
may be impaired. The amortisation period and the
amortisation method for an intangible asset with a finite
useful life are reviewed at least at each financial year end.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Intangible assets (other than goodwill) (continued)
Patents, licences and softwares

Purchased patents, licences and software are stated at
cost less any impairment losses and softwares acquired
through business combinations are initially stated at fair
value. They are amortised on the straight-line basis over
their estimated useful lives of not exceeding 10 years.

Management services arrangements

Management services arrangements are initially stated
at fair value and subsequently amortised on the straight-
line basis over the tenure of management services
arrangements of 20 years.

Customer relationships

Customer relationships acquired through business
combinations are initially stated at fair value and
subsequently amortised on the straight-line basis over
their estimated useful lives of not exceeding 10 years.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Intangible assets (other than goodwill) (continued)
Research and development costs

All research costs are charged to the statement of profit
or loss as incurred.

Expenditure incurred on projects to develop new products
is capitalised and deferred only when the Group can
demonstrate the technical feasibility of completing the
intangible asset so that it will be available for use or
sale, its intention to complete and its ability to use
or sell the asset, how the asset will generate future
economic benefits, the availability of resources to
complete the project and the ability to measure reliably
Product
development expenditure which does not meet these

the expenditure during the development.

criteria is expensed when incurred.

Deferred development costs are stated at cost less any
impairment losses and are amortised using the straight-
line basis over the commercial lives of the underlying
products, commencing from the date when the products
are put into commercial production.

Operating leases

Leases where substantially all the rewards and risks of
ownership of assets remain with the lessor are accounted
for as operating leases. Where the Group is the lessor,
assets leased by the Group under operating leases are
included in non-current assets, and rentals receivable
under the operating leases are credited to the statement
of profit or loss on the straight-line basis over the lease
terms. Where the Group is the lessee, rentals payable
under operating leases net of any incentives received
from the lessor are charged to the statement of profit or
loss on the straight-line basis over the lease terms.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.4

Operating leases (continued)

Prepaid land lease payments under operating leases are
initially stated at cost and subsequently recognised on
the straight-line basis over the lease terms.

Investments and other financial assets
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition,
as financial assets at fair value through profit or loss,
loans and receivables and available-for-sale financial
investments, or as derivatives designated as hedging
instruments in an effective hedge, as appropriate.
When financial assets are recognised initially, they are
measured at fair value plus transaction costs that are
attributable to the acquisition of the financial assets,
except in the case of financial assets recorded at fair
value through profit or loss.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets
are recognised on the trade date, that is, the date that the
Group commits to purchase or sell the asset. Regular way
purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial
assets that require delivery of assets within the period
generally established by regulation or convention in the
marketplace.

Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends
on their classification as follows:
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Investments and other financial assets (continued)
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss include
financial assets held for trading and financial assets
designated upon initial recognition as at fair value through
profit or loss. Financial assets are classified as held for
trading if they are acquired for the purpose of sale in the
near term. Derivatives, including separated embedded
derivatives, are also classified as held for trading unless
they are designated as effective hedging instruments as
defined by IAS 39.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are
carried in the statement of financial position at fair value
with positive net changes in fair value presented as
other income and gains and negative net changes in
fair value presented as other expenses and losses in the
statement of profit or loss. These net fair value changes
do not include any dividends or interest earned on these
financial assets, which are recognised in accordance
with the policies set out for “Revenue recognition” below.

Financial assets designated upon initial recognition as
at fair value through profit or loss are designated at the
date of initial recognition and only if the criteria in IAS 39
are satisfied.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Investments and other financial assets (continued)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
(continued)

Derivatives embedded in host contracts are accounted for
as separate derivatives and recorded at fair value if their
economic characteristics and risks are not closely related
to those of the host contracts and the host contracts are
not held for trading or designated as at fair value through
profit or loss. These embedded derivatives are measured
at fair value with changes in fair value recognised in the
statement of profit or loss. Reassessment only occurs if
there is either a change in the terms of the contract that
significantly modifies the cash flows that would otherwise
be required or a reclassification of a financial asset out of
the fair value through profit or loss category.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted
in an active market. After initial measurement, such assets
are subsequently measured at amortised cost using
the effective interest rate method less any allowance
for impairment. Amortised cost is calculated by taking
into account any discount or premium on acquisition
and includes fees or costs that are an integral part of
the effective interest rate. The effective interest rate
amortisation is included in other income and gains in
the statement of profit or loss. The loss arising from
impairment is recognised in the statement of profit or loss
in other expenses and losses.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Investments and other financial assets (continued)
Available-for-sale financial investments

Available-for-sale financial investments are non-derivative
financial assets in listed and unlisted equity investments
and debt securities. Equity investments classified as
available for sale are those which are neither classified
as held for trading nor designated as at fair value through
profit or loss. Debt securities in this category are those
which are intended to be held for an indefinite period of
time and which may be sold in response to needs for
liquidity or in response to changes in market conditions.

After
investments are subsequently measured at fair value,

initial recognition, available-for-sale financial
with unrealised gains or losses recognised as other
comprehensive income in the available-for-sale investment
revaluation reserve until the investment is derecognised,
at which time the cumulative gain or loss is recognised
in the statement of profit or loss in other income, or until
the investment is determined to be impaired, when the
cumulative gain or loss is recognised reclassified from the
available-for-sale investment revaluation reserve to the
statement of profit or loss in other gains or losses. Interest
and dividends earned whilst holding the available-for-sale
financial investments are reported as interest income and
dividend income, respectively and are recognised in the
statement of profit or loss as other income in accordance
with the policies set out for “Revenue recognition” below.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Investments and other financial assets (continued)
Available-for-sale financial investments (continued)

When the fair value of unlisted equity investments cannot
be reliably measured because (a) the variability in the
range of reasonable fair value estimates is significant
for that investment or (b) the probabilities of the various
estimates within the range cannot be reasonably assessed
and used in estimating fair value, such investments are
stated at cost less any impairment losses.

The Group evaluates whether the ability and intention
to sell its available-for-sale financial assets in the near
term are still appropriate. When, in rare circumstances,
the Group is unable to trade these financial assets due
to inactive markets, the Group may elect to reclassify
these financial assets if management has the ability and
intention to hold the assets for the foreseeable future or
until maturity.

For a financial asset reclassified from the available-for-
sale category, the fair value carrying amount at the date
of reclassification becomes its new amortised cost and
any previous gain or loss on that asset that has been
recognised in equity is amortised to profit or loss over
the remaining life of the investment using the effective
interest rate. Any difference between the new amortised
cost and the maturity amount is also amortised over the
remaining life of the asset using the effective interest rate.
If the asset is subsequently determined to be impaired,
then the amount recorded in equity is reclassified to the
statement of profit or loss.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a
financial asset or part of a group of similar financial
assets) is primarily derecognised (i.e., removed from

the Group’s consolidated statement of financial position)

when:

o the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have
expired; or

o the Group has transferred its rights to receive

cash flows from the asset or has assumed an
obligation to pay the received cash flows in full
without material delay to a third party under a
“pass-through” arrangement; and either (a) the
Group has transferred substantially all the risks
and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Group has
neither transferred nor retained substantially all the
risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred
control of the asset.

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash
flows from an asset or has entered into a pass-through
arrangement, it evaluates if and to what extent it has
retained the risk and rewards of ownership of the asset.
When it has neither transferred nor retained substantially
all the risks and rewards of the asset nor transferred
control of the asset, the Group continues to recognise the
transferred asset to the extent of the Group’s continuing
involvement. In that case, the Group also recognises
an associated liability. The transferred asset and the
associated liability are measured on a basis that reflects
the rights and obligations that the Group has retained.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of financial assets

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period
whether there is objective evidence that a financial asset
or a group of financial assets is impaired. An impairment
exists if one or more events that occurred after the initial
recognition of the asset have an impact on the estimated
future cash flows of the financial asset or the group of
financial assets that can be reliably estimated. Evidence
of impairment may include indications that a debtor or
a group of debtors is experiencing significant financial
difficulty, default or delinquency in interest or principal
payments, the probability that they will enter bankruptcy
or other financial reorganisation and observable data
indicating that there is a measurable decrease in the
estimated future cash flows, such as changes in arrears
or economic conditions that correlate with defaults.

Financial assets carried at amortised cost

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the Group
first assesses whether impairment exists individually
for financial assets that are individually significant, or
collectively for financial assets that are not individually
significant. If the Group determines that no objective
evidence of impairment exists for an individually assessed
financial asset, whether significant or not, it includes
the asset in a group of financial assets with similar
credit risk characteristics and collectively assesses them
for impairment. Assets that are individually assessed
for impairment and for which an impairment loss is,
or continues to be, recognised are not included in a
collective assessment of impairment.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)
Financial assets carried at amortised cost (continued)

The amount of any impairment loss identified is measured
as the difference between the asset’s carrying amount
and the present value of estimated future cash flows
(excluding future credit losses that have not yet been
incurred). The present value of the estimated future
cash flows is discounted at the financial asset’s original
the effective interest rate

computed at initial recognition).

effective interest rate (i.e.,

The carrying amount of the asset is reduced through the
use of an allowance account and the loss is recognised in
the statement of profit or loss. Interest income continues
to be accrued on the reduced carrying amount and
is accrued using the rate of interest used to discount
the future cash flows for the purpose of measuring the
impairment loss. Loans and receivables together with
any associated allowance are written off when there is
no realistic prospect of future recovery and all collateral
has been realised or has been transferred to the Group.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the estimated
impairment loss increases or decreases because of an
event occurring after the impairment was recognised, the
previously recognised impairment loss is increased or
reduced by adjusting the allowance account. If a write-
off is later recovered, the recovery is credited to the
statement of profit or loss.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)
Assets carried at cost

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss has
been incurred on an unquoted equity instrument that is
not carried at fair value because its fair value cannot be
reliably measured, or on a derivative asset that is linked
to and must be settled by delivery of such an unquoted
equity instrument, the amount of the loss is measured
as the difference between the asset’s carrying amount
and the present value of estimated future cash flows
discounted at the current market rate of return for a
similar financial asset. Impairment losses on these assets
are not reversed.

Available-for-sale financial investments

For available-for-sale financial investments, the Group
assesses at the end of each reporting period whether
there is objective evidence that an investment or a group
of investments is impaired.

If an available-for-sale asset is impaired, an amount
comprising the difference between its cost (net of any
principal payment and amortisation) and its current fair
value, less any impairment loss previously recognised
in the statement of profit or loss, is removed from other
comprehensive income and recognised in the statement
of profit or loss.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)
Available-for-sale financial investments (continued)

In the case of equity investments classified as available
for sale, objective evidence would include a significant
or prolonged decline in the fair value of an investment
below its cost. “Significant” is evaluated against the
original cost of the investment and “prolonged” against
the period in which the fair value has been below its
original cost. Where there is evidence of impairment, the
cumulative loss — measured as the difference between
the acquisition cost and the current fair value, less any
impairment loss on that investment previously recognised
in the statement of profit or loss — is removed from other
comprehensive income and recognised in the statement
of profit or loss. Impairment losses on equity instruments
classified as available for sale are not reversed through
the statement of profit or loss. Increases in their fair
value after impairment are recognised directly in other
comprehensive income.

In the case of debt instruments classified as available for
sale, impairment is assessed based on the same criteria
as financial assets carried at amortised cost. However,
the amount recorded for impairment is the cumulative
loss measured as the difference between the amortised
cost and the current fair value, less any impairment loss
on that investment previously recognised in the statement
of profit or loss. Future interest income continues to be
accrued based on the reduced carrying amount of the
asset and is accrued using the rate of interest used
to discount the future cash flows for the purpose of
measuring the impairment loss. The interest income is
recorded as part of other income. Impairment losses on
debt instruments are reversed through the statement of
profit or loss if the subsequent increase in fair value of
the instruments can be objectively related to an event
occurring after the impairment loss was recognised in the
statement of profit or loss.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Financial liabilities
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as
financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, loans
and borrowings, or as derivatives designated as hedging
instruments in an effective hedge, as appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value
and, in the case of loans and borrowings, net of directly
attributable transaction costs.

Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial liabilities
depends on their classification as follows:

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
include financial liabilities held for trading and financial
liabilities designated upon initial recognition as at fair
value through profit or loss.

Financial liabilities are classified as held for trading if
they are acquired for the purpose of repurchasing in the
near term. This category includes derivative financial
instruments entered into by the Group that are not
designated as hedging instruments in hedge relationships
as defined by IAS 39. Separated embedded derivatives
are also classified as held for trading unless they are
designated as effective hedging instruments. Gains or
losses on liabilities held for trading are recognised in the
statement of profit or loss. The net fair value gain or loss
recognised in the statement of profit or loss does not
include any interest charged on these financial liabilities.

Annual Report 2013 & £E3§

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

31 December 2013 —&—

2.4

BRI (8)
=F+_-_A=+—H

TEEHBERME (&)

MBaE
BEARERR G E

HBABRREB ARSI EABERER
BRIEATEIEZHBEE  ERRE
B DB BIET AR R R EE
TAEZTAETH REBERME)

FIBEMBRENGRRAFEER
REEEAHBERBIERX KA

&R

A& B
MBABECHEABIORNIAT Z 8

BBRmRE N FESRZHBERE

BRBBRERAFEINEZHBRERRE
FIEEEMBRBERNERERRIEER
BREBRRERFEIR T HERE -

MHEABMNEHERSEMNMEER - Al
DERFEEEMBEE - O BEEEX
SBRTRT SRR E A BR ST RISE39
SRPTERMEIREERMNITER B TA - )

FEMERIM S AESTE T ARIETE BAWE
HITE BAITMESBRARKEERMKA

B -RHEESRABECEENEBERRTE
R NBRRPERZATFEBHFRAY
BREALZEVHEBEREZEMFE

159



Haier Electronics Group Co., Ltd.

BHEREERRLA

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
g s ELEENE D)

31 December 2013 —&—

24

=f+=-A=+—H

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Financial liabilities (continued)

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
(continued)

Financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition
at fair value through profit or loss are designated at the
date of initial recognition and only if the criteria in IAS 39
are satisfied.

Loans and borrowings

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and
borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised
cost, using the effective interest rate method unless the
effect of discounting would be immaterial, in which case
they are stated at cost. Gains and losses are recognised
in the statement of profit or loss when the liabilities are
derecognised as well as through the effective interest rate

amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any
discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs
that are an integral part of the effective interest rate. The
effective interest rate amortisation is included in finance
costs in the statement of profit or loss.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Financial liabilities (continued)
Convertible bonds

The component of convertible bonds that exhibits
characteristics of a liability is recognised as a liability
in the statement of financial position, net of transaction
costs. On issuance of convertible bonds, the fair value of
the liability component is determined using a market rate
for an equivalent non-convertible bond; and this amount
is carried as a long term liability on the amortised cost
basis until extinguished on conversion or redemption. The
remainder of the proceeds is allocated to the conversion
option that is recognised and included in shareholders’
equity, net of transaction costs. The carrying amount of
the conversion option is not remeasured in subsequent
years. Transaction costs are apportioned between the
liability and equity components of the convertible bonds
based on the allocation of proceeds to the liability
and equity components when the instruments are first
recognised.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation
under the liability is discharged or cancelled, or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another
from the same lender on substantially different terms, or
the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified,
such an exchange or modification is treated as a
derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of
a new liability, and the difference between the respective
carrying amounts is recognised in the statement of profit
or loss.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and
the net amount is reported in the statement of financial
position if there is a currently enforceable legal right to
offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention
to settle on a net basis, or to realise the assets and settle
the liabilities simultaneously.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost is determined on the weighted
average basis and, in the case of work in progress
and finished goods, comprises direct materials, direct
labour and an appropriate proportion of overheads. Net
realisable value is based on the estimated selling prices
less any estimated costs to be incurred to completion
and disposal.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash
flows, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on
hand and demand deposits, and short term highly liquid
investments that are readily convertible into known
amounts of cash, are subject to an insignificant risk of
changes in value, and have a short maturity of generally
within three months when acquired, less bank overdrafts
which are repayable on demand and form an integral part
of the Group’s cash management.

For the purpose of the statement of financial position,
cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and
at banks, including term deposits, and assets similar in
nature to cash, which are not restricted as to use.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income
tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss
is recognised outside profit or loss, either in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities for the current and prior
periods are measured at the amount expected to be
recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities, based
on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period,
taking into consideration interpretations and practices
prevailing in the countries in which the Group operates.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all
temporary differences at the end of the reporting period
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their
carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable
temporary differences, except:

o when the deferred tax liability arises from the initial
recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction
that is not a business combination and, at the time
of the transaction, affects neither the accounting
profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

o in respect of taxable temporary differences

associated with investments in subsidiaries,
when the timing of the reversal of the temporary
differences can be controlled and it is probable
that the temporary differences will not reverse in

the foreseeable future.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Income tax (continued)

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible
temporary differences, the carryforward of unused
tax credits and any unused tax losses. Deferred tax
assets are recognised, to the extent that it is probable
that taxable profit will be available against which the
deductible temporary differences, and the carryforward
of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be
utilised, except:

o when the deferred tax asset relating to the
deductible temporary differences arises from
the initial recognition of an asset or liability in a
transaction that is not a business combination and,
at the time of the transaction, affects neither the
accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

o in respect of deductible temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries,
deferred tax assets are only recognised to the
extent that it is probable that the temporary
differences will reverse in the foreseeable future
and taxable profit will be available against which
the temporary differences can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed
at the end of each reporting period and reduced to the
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable
profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred
tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets
are reassessed at the end of each reporting period and
are recognised to the extent that it has become probable
that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or
part of the deferred tax asset to be recovered.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Income tax (continued)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the
tax rates that are expected to apply to the period when
the asset is realised or the liability is settled, based
on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset
if a legally enforceable right exists to set off current tax
assets against current tax liabilities and the deferred
taxes relate to the same taxable entity and the same
taxation authority.

Provisions

A provision is recognised when a present obligation (legal
or constructive) has arisen as a result of a past event and
it is probable that a future outflow of resources will be
required to settle the obligation, provided that a reliable
estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount
recognised for a provision is the present value at the
end of the reporting period of the future expenditures
expected to be required to settle the obligation. The
increase in the discounted present value amount arising
from the passage of time is included in finance costs in
the statement of profit or loss.

Provisions for installation services and product warranties
granted by the Group on certain products are recognised
based on sales volume and past experience of the
level of installation services rendered, repairs or returns,
discounted to their present values as appropriate.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Government grants

Government grants are recognised at their fair value
where there is reasonable assurance that the grant
will be received and all attaching conditions will be
complied with. When the grant relates to an expense
item, it is recognised as income on a systematic basis
over the periods that the costs, which it is intended to
compensate, are expensed.

Where the grant relates to an asset, the fair value is
credited to a deferred income account and is released
to the statement of profit or loss over the expected useful
life of the relevant asset by equal annual instalments or
deducted from the carrying amount of the asset and
released to the statement of profit or loss by way of a
reduced depreciation charge.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised when it is probable that the
economic benefits will flow to the Group and when the
revenue can be measured reliably, on the following
bases:

(a) from the sale of goods, when the significant risks
and rewards of ownership have been transferred
to the buyer, provided that the Group maintains
neither managerial involvement to the degree
usually associated with ownership, nor effective
control over the goods sold;
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Revenue recognition (continued)

(b) from the rendering of services, when the services
are rendered;

(c) rental income, on a time proportion basis over the
lease terms;

(d) interest income, on an accrual basis using the
effective interest method by applying the rate
that exactly discounts the estimated future cash
receipts over the expected life of the financial
instrument or a shorter period, when appropriate,
to the net carrying amount of the financial asset;
and

(e) dividend income, when the shareholders’ right to
receive payment has been established.

Share-based payments

The Company operates a share option scheme for
the purpose of providing incentives and rewards to
eligible participants who contribute to the success of
the Group’s operations. Employees (including directors)
of the Group receive remuneration in the form of share-
based payments, whereby employees render services
as consideration for equity instruments (“equity-settled
transactions”).

The cost of equity-settled transactions with employees
for grants is measured by reference to the fair value
at the date at which they are granted. The fair value
is determined by an external valuer using a binomial
model, further details of which are given in note 37 to the
financial statements.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Share-based payments (continued)

The cost of equity-settled transactions is recognised,
together with a corresponding increase in equity, over the
period in which the performance and/or service conditions
are fulfilled in employee benefit expense. The cumulative
expense recognised for equity-settled transactions at
the end of each reporting period until the vesting date
reflects the extent to which the vesting period has expired
and the Group’s best estimate of the number of equity
instruments that will ultimately vest. The charge or credit
to the statement of profit or loss for a period represents
the movement in the cumulative expense recognised as
at the beginning and end of that period.

No expense is recognised for awards that do not
ultimately vest, except for equity-settled transactions
where vesting is conditional upon a market or non-vesting
condition, which are treated as vesting irrespective of
whether or not the market or non-vesting condition is
satisfied, provided that all other performance and/or
service conditions are satisfied.

Where the terms of an equity-settled award are modified,
as a minimum an expense is recognised as if the terms
had not been modified, if the original terms of the award
are met. In addition, an expense is recognised for any
modification that increases the total fair value of the
share-based payments, or is otherwise beneficial to the
employee as measured at the date of modification.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Share-based payments (continued)

Where an equity-settled award is cancelled, it is treated
as if it had vested on the date of cancellation, and any
expense not yet recognised for the award is recognised
immediately. This includes any award where non-vesting
conditions within the control of either the Group or
the employee are not met. However, if a new award is
substituted for the cancelled award, and is designated
as a replacement award on the date that it is granted,
the cancelled and new awards are treated as if they were
a modification of the original award, as described in the
previous paragraph.

The dilutive effect of outstanding options is reflected as
additional share dilution in the computation of earnings
per share.

Other employee benefits
Pension schemes

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory
Provident Fund retirement benefit scheme (the “MPF
Scheme”) under the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance for those employees who are eligible to
participate in the MPF Scheme. Contributions are made
based on a percentage of the employees’ basic salaries
and are charged to the statement of profit or loss as
they become payable in accordance with the rules of the
MPF Scheme. The assets of the MPF Scheme are held
separately from those of the Group in an independently
administrated fund. The Group’s employer contributions
vest fully with the employees when contributed into the
MPF Scheme.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Other employee benefits (continued)
Pension schemes (continued)

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries which
operate in Mainland China are required to participate
in central pension schemes operated by the local
municipal governments. These subsidiaries are required
to contribute a certain percentage of their payroll costs
to the central pension schemes. The contributions are
charged to the statement of profit or loss as they become
payable in accordance with the rules of the central
pension schemes.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, i.e.,
assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time
to get ready for their intended use or sale, are capitalised
as part of the cost of those assets. The capitalisation
of such borrowing costs ceases when the assets are
substantially ready for their intended use or sale.
Investment income earned on the temporary investment
of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on
qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing costs
capitalised. All other borrowing costs are expensed in
the period in which they are incurred. Borrowing costs
consist of interest and other costs that an entity incurs in
connection with the borrowing of funds.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Dividends

Final dividends proposed by the directors are classified
as a separate allocation of retained profits within the
equity section of the statement of financial position,
until they have been approved by the shareholders in
a general meeting. When these dividends have been
approved by the shareholders and declared, they are
recognised as a liability.

Interim dividends are simultaneously proposed and
declared, because the Company’s bye-laws grant the
directors the authority to declare interim dividends.
Consequently,
immediately as a liability when they are proposed and

interim dividends are recognised

declared.

Foreign currencies

These financial statements are presented in RMB, which
is the Group’s presentation currency. The functional
currency of the Company is the Hong Kong dollar while
the RMB is used as the presentation currency of the
financial statements of the Company for the purpose of
aligning with the presentation currency of the Group.
Each entity in the Group determines its own functional
currency and items included in the financial statements of
each entity are measured using that functional currency.
Foreign currency transactions recorded by the entities
in the Group are initially recorded using their respective
functional currency rates prevailing at the dates of the
transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated
in foreign currencies are translated at the functional
currency rates of exchange ruling at the end of the
reporting period. Differences arising on settlement or
translation of monetary items are recognised in the
statement of profit or loss.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Foreign currencies (continued)

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of
historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using
the exchange rates at the dates of the initial transactions.
Non-monetary items measured at fair value in a foreign
currency are translated using the exchange rates at the
date when the fair value was measured. The gain or loss
arising on translation of a non-monetary item measured at
fair value is treated in line with the recognition of the gain
or loss on change in fair value of the item (i.e., translation
difference on the item whose fair value gain or loss is
recognised in other comprehensive income or profit or
loss is also recognised in other comprehensive income
or profit or loss, respectively).

The functional currencies of the subsidiaries not
established in the PRC are currencies other than the
RMB. As at the end of the reporting period, the assets
and liabilities of these entities are translated into the
presentation currency of the Company at exchange rates
prevailing at the end of the reporting period and their
statements of profit or loss are translated into RMB at the
weighted average exchange rates for the year.

The resulting exchange differences are recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated in the
exchange fluctuation reserve. On disposal of a foreign
operation, the component of other comprehensive income
relating to that particular foreign operation is recognised
in the statement of profit or loss.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash
flows, the cash flows of the subsidiaries not established
in the PRC are translated into RMB at the exchange rates
ruling at the dates of the cash flows. Frequently recurring
cash flows of these subsidiaries which arise throughout
the year are translated into RMB at the weighted average
exchange rates for the year.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATES

The preparation of the Group’s financial statements
requires management to make judgements, estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenue,
expenses, assets and liabilities, and their accompanying
disclosures, and the disclosure of contingent liabilities.
Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates
could result in outcomes that could require a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of the assets or
liabilities affected in the future.

Judgements

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting
policies, management has made the following judgements,
apart from those involving estimations, which have the
most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the
financial statements:

Operating lease commitments — Group as lessor

The Group has entered into commercial property leases
on its property portfolio. The Group has determined,
based on an evaluation of the terms and conditions of
the arrangements, that it retains all the significant risks
and rewards of ownership of these properties which are
leased out on operating leases.

3.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATES (continued)

Judgements (continued)

Classification between investment properties and
owner-occupied properties

The Group determines whether a property qualifies as an
investment property, and has developed criteria in making
that judgement. Investment property is a property held to
earn rentals or for capital appreciation or both. Therefore,
the Group considers whether a property generates cash
flows largely independently of the other assets held by
the Group. Some properties comprise a portion that
is held to earn rentals or for capital appreciation and
another portion that is held for use in the production
or supply of goods or services or for administrative
purposes. If these portions could be sold separately or
leased out separately under a finance lease, the Group
accounts for the portions separately. If the portions could
not be sold separately, the property is an investment
property only if an insignificant portion is held for use
in the production or supply of goods or services or for
administrative purposes. Judgement is made on an
individual property basis to determine whether ancillary
services are so significant that a property does not qualify
as an investment property.

Estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other
key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the
reporting period, that have a significant risk of causing
a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities within the next financial year, are described
below.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATES (continued)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)
Impairment of goodwill

The Group determines whether goodwill is impaired at
least on an annual basis. This requires an estimation of
the value-in-use of the cash-generating units to which the
goodwill is allocated. Estimating the value-in-use requires
the Group to make an estimate of the expected future
cash flows from the cash-generating units and also to
choose a suitable discount rate in order to calculate the
present value of those cash flows. The carrying amount of
goodwill at 31 December 2013 was RMB6,123,000 (2012:
Nil). Further details are given in note 18.

Impairment of non-financial assets (other than goodwill)

The Group assesses whether there are any indicators
of impairment for all non-financial assets at the end of
each reporting period. Indefinite life intangible assets are
tested for impairment annually and at other times when
such an indicator exists. Other non-financial assets are
tested for impairment when there are indicators that the
carrying amounts may not be recoverable. An impairment
exists when the carrying value of an asset or a cash-
generating unit exceeds its recoverable amount, which is
the higher of its fair value less costs of disposal and its
value-in-use. The calculation of the fair value less costs
of disposal is based on available data from binding sales
transactions in an arm’s length transaction of similar
assets or observable market prices less incremental costs
for disposing of the asset. When value-in-use calculations
are undertaken, management must estimate the expected
future cash flows from the asset or cash-generating unit
and choose a suitable discount rate in order to calculate
the present value of those cash flows.

3.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATES (continued)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)
Useful lives of items of property, plant and equipment

Management determines the estimated useful lives and
related depreciation for the Group’s property, plant and
equipment. This estimate is based on the historical
experience of the actual useful lives of items of property,
plant and equipment of similar nature and functions.
It could change significantly as a result of technical
innovations and competitor actions in response to industry
cycles. The depreciation charge will increase when the
useful lives are less than the previously estimated useful
lives, or management will write off or write down obsolete
or non-strategic assets that have been abandoned or
sold. At 31 December 2013, the carrying amount of the
property, plant and equipment was RMB1,488,068,000
(2012: RMB1,308,806,000).

Deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets are recognised for deductible
temporary differences, carryforward of unused tax credits
and unused tax losses, to the extent that it is probable
that taxable profit will be available against which the
deductible temporary differences, and the carryforward
of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be
utilised. Significant management judgement is required
to determine the amount of deferred tax assets that
can be recognised, based upon the likely timing and
level of future taxable profits together with future tax
planning strategies. The carrying value of deferred tax
assets at 31 December 2013 was RMB592,656,000 (2012:
RMB455,634,000).
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATES (continued)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)
Impairment of receivables

The Group maintains an allowance for estimated loss
arising from the inability of its debtors to make the
required payments. The Group makes its estimates
based on the ageing of its receivable balances, debtors’
creditworthiness, and historical write-off experience. If
the financial condition of its debtors was to deteriorate
so that the actual impairment loss might be higher than
expected, the Group would be required to revise the
basis of making the allowance. At 31 December 2013,
the carrying amounts of trade and bills receivables
and other receivables were RMB7,558,920,000 (2012:
RMB6,924,088,000) and RMB440,450,000 (2012:
RMB431,014,000), respectively.

Write-down of inventories to net realisable value

Write-down of inventories to net realisable value is made
based on the ageing and estimated net realisable value
of inventories. The assessment of the write-down amount
involves management’s judgements and estimates. Where
the actual outcome or expectation in future is different
from the original estimate, such differences will impact
the carrying value of the inventories and the write-down
charge/reversal in the period in which such estimate
has been changed. At 31 December 2013, the carrying
amount of inventories was RMB2,891,587,000 (2012:
RMB2,479,191,000).

3.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS 3. EXETHERMGES (&)

AND ESTIMATES (continued)

Estimation uncertainty (continued) Lt FEHBREZ (&)

Product warranty and installation provisions EmRERZEEE

Product warranty and installation provisions are made EmRERTRKBEHIREE RBEMRE
based on sales volume and past experience of the R R - BEIBREKFMIEL  &F
level of installation services rendered, repairs or returns. ERERSRERE 2 A B R EE -
The assessment of the provision amount involves ERERIARALRREMGEET TR
management’s judgements and estimates. Where the Al =S e R ERREREHRZ
actual outcome or expectation in future is different from EmRERLE Tﬁﬁﬁﬁ@@&%ﬁ LB
the original estimate, such differences will impact the b BEEREE R_T—=Ft+=
carrying amount of the product warranty and installation A=1t—8B EaRERZERBHAR
provisions and the provision amount charged/reversed in #840,135,0007C (ZZE—ZF : AR¥
the period in which such estimate has been changed. At 801,215,0007T) °

31 December 2013, the product warranty and installation

provisions amounted to RMB840,135,000 (2012:

RMB801,215,000).

OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION 4. REIWEHR

For management purposes, the Group is organised into
business units based on their products and services and
has three reportable segments as follows:

(a) the washing machine business segment
manufactures and sells washing machines;

(b) the water heater business segment manufactures
and sells water heaters; and

(c) the integrated channel services segment provides

logistics, after-sale and other value-added
consumer services as well as sells and distributes
home appliances and other products procured

from Haier Affiliates and other external parties.
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OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION
(continued)

Management monitors the results of the Group’s operating
segments separately for the purpose of making decisions
about resources allocation and performance assessment.
Segment performance is evaluated based on reportable
segment profit, which is a measure of adjusted profit
before tax. The adjusted profit before tax is measured
consistently with the Group’s profit before tax except
that interest income, finance costs as well as corporate
and other unallocated expenses are excluded from this
measurement.

Segment assets exclude deferred tax assets, cash and
cash equivalents, pledged deposits and corporate and
other unallocated assets as these assets are managed
on a group basis.

Segment liabilities exclude amounts due to a fellow
subsidiary, interest-bearing borrowings, tax payable,
deferred tax liabilities, convertible bonds and corporate
and other unallocated liabilities as these liabilities are
managed on a group basis.
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4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION 4., RESEER (F)
(continued)
Intersegment sales and transfers are transacted in DERHERBERRIEAERETHER
accordance with the terms and conditions mutually TE Z AR AR HETT -

agreed by the parties involved.

Washing machine business ~ Water heater business  Integrated channel services Consolidated
RRERH BKBRH REGARHER &8
2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012
Z§-=f T Z®-Zf C%-C e -z -3--&

RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000
ARMTR  ARETR  ARMTR  AR%ETT  ARBTR  ARETR  ARBTR  ARETR

Segment revenue: ARUA
Sales to external customers MIHEPHE 4,804,767 5,197,582 907,312 848,740 56,551,083 49,568,725 62,263,162 55,615,047
Intersegment sales DERHE 9M7158 8079701 3450345 3640720 1,016,704 1199858 13,884,207 12,920,279
Total % 14221925 13277083 4357657 4480460  STSGTIET 50768583 76147369 68535,3%
Reconciliation: Fi
Elimination of intersegment sales ~ SHARREE (13,884,207)  (12,920,279)
Segment revenue ELUN 62,263,162 55,615,047
Segment other income and gains A EAMANRKE 48,757 27,555 17,165 16,550 58,339 26,291 124,261 70,39
Total segment revenue, AERA - Efe

other income and gains WARYEES 62,387423 55,685,443
Segment results kS 1,062 1,105,250 479,104 500055 1,050,424 735494 2770154 2340799
Reconciliations: FE:
Elimination of intersegment HiHH B

restls x4 (83,040) 25930
Interest income MEMA 79,681 35,854
Corporate and other ARREM

unallocated expenses AANER (60,621) (93,817)
Finance costs BEARA (68,334) (64,504)

Profit before tax BBATaR 2637840 2,244 262
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4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION 4. REFWER (F
(continued)
Washing machine business ~ Water heater business  Integrated channel services Consolidated
ARERE BkEEH REGRRHER &8
2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012
“§-Zf %z “g-zf -%--f -®-Zf -%-f CZg-=f %z

RMB'000  RMBOOO ~ RMB'000  RMBOO0  RMB'OO0  RVBOOO  RMB'000  RMBOOO
ABRTR ARETT ARBTR ARETT  ARMTR ARETL  ARBYR ARETR

Segment assets PREE 5044107 4836900  1,734231 1445075 9,381,339 7838476 16,159,677 14,120,460
Reconciliations: HE:
Elimination of intersegment R EREN

receivables 5 (3,428,353)  (5,133,462)
Deferred tax assets ERREAE 592,656 455,634
Pledged deposits EERER 220,350 61,804
Cash and cash equivalents ReRReEEER 6,824,322 5,368,308
Corporate and other AEIREM

unallocated asses AORAE 151251 3340522
Total assets BELH 21,881,163 18,213,266
Segment liabilities AREE 1964579 1,822.744 818,524 756761 8,688,621 8575486 11471724 11154991
Reconciliations: HE:
Elimination of intersegment ~ SEDBREN

payables & (3,428,353)  (5,133,462)
Deferred tax liabiliies BEHESE 8,503 8755
Tax payable EM5E 693,964 837476
Due {0 a fellow Ei-FAZNBAT

subsidiary B 15,000 -
Interest-bearing borrowings TS 159,633 39,800
Convertible bonds wikGES 716,835 699,643
Corporate and other RAIREf

unallocated liabilities AARAE 4,186,193 4765835
Total liabilties AL 13,823,499 12,373,038
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4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION 4. REFEER (E)
(continued)
Washing machine business ~ Water heater business  Integrated channel services Consolidated
RREEH HREER REGRREER Ga
2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012
—“§-=f -%Z--%¥ C-B-zf -E--F CZB-ZE -E-C “B-c-E C“F-C-F

RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTR  ARETT  ARMTR  ARMTR  ARMTR  ARETR  ARMTR ARMTR

Other segment information: ~ 2MAREH :
Provision for obsolete and BERFERERRE

slow-moving inventories, net A% 29,002 4 6,206 - 2,564 90,045 3772 90,049
Provision of impaiment of trade ¥R ZAE

receivables, net #EEE = - = = 4,436 - 4,436 -
Provision of impairment of other ~ AR

receivables, net BERRTE S 4228 = - = = - 4228
Product warranty and installation  ERRERZRES

provisions 397,845 437 455 290,943 240,088 - - 688,788 677,543

Loss/(gain) on disposalfwrite-off ~ Hi& /Hish% -
of tems of property, plantand ~~ FERREEEZ

equipment, net B/ (k&) 38 62 432 - 1,375 3 (227) 101 1,580
Loss on disposalfwrite-off of e /HEEf LA

prepaid land lease payments, net SRR ZBEFE = = - - 5,387 - 5,387 -
Impairment of property, 0% BERREAE

plant and equipment - - - - = 5,503 > 5503
Impairment of intangible assets  E/AERE - - - B, - 5,340 - 5340
Depreciation and amortisation /& R 46,696 39,760 20,741 20,712 56,416 46,508 127853 106,980
Corporate and other NARES

unallocated amounts APEE 1,357 4,440

129,210 111,420

Capital expenditure® EfRR 09560 250454 64,369 488 2087 18343 STAR03 473378
Corporate and other RRAIREM
unallocated amounts APEEE 2,085 3,209

577,788 476,587

* Capital expenditure consists of additions to property, g BAXHZOEREYF  BELRR
plant and equipment, prepaid land lease payments and TET T 7 B R BT B E °

intangible assets.



OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION
(continued)

Geographical information

Over 90% (2012: 90%) of the Group’s revenue is derived
from customers in Mainland China and over 90% (2012:
90%) of the Group’s non-current assets, other than
financial instruments and deferred tax assets, are situated
in Mainland China.

Information about major customers

During the year, there was no customer which individually
accounted for 10% or more of the Group’s revenue (2012:
Nil).

REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS

Revenue, which is also the Group’s turnover, represents
the net invoiced value of goods sold, net of value-added
tax and after allowances for returns and trade discounts;
and the value of services rendered during the year.
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

BRI (8)
31 December 2013 —E—=F+=-HF=+—H

A

e EER (&)

i 35 & B

ANEEHEBIO% (ZF— =4 : 90%) HJ
WATSRERBEARZEE @ MASER
BO0% (ZF — —F : 90%) WIERBE
EMEREVEIAREEREEE) )
fr PR B A

FHEXEEFEHR

FR - WERSEREAEBKRA10%
NE(ZE—=F &) -

WA~ HERA R W
WATRBIARSEE 2 25588 - HEHEm
BEFE HKREER  RERENES
A RN FERREREHEE -

—
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5. REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS 5. WA-EHtARKE (&)
(continued)
An analysis of revenue, other income and gains is as WA~ B A R U= DATEAT
follows:
Group rEE
2013 2012
—E-—=F —FE——F
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®T ARETTT

Revenue ' ON
Sale of goods HEBY 59,411,600 52,954,210
Rendering of services RAERD 2,851,562 2,660,837
62,263,162 55,615,047
Other income HAug A
Bank interest income HRITH B A 79,681 35,854
Government subsidies* BB & 35,187 9,276
Compensation received from suppliers B EREE 67,080 44133
Gross rental income in respect of buildings BFZHE WA LHE 2,016 2,016
Dividend income from available-for-sale AEHERE ZREBA
investments 7,728 6,733
Others Hit 12,234 8,048
203,926 106,060
Gains &
Gain on bargain purchase % (B WA e 16 -
Gain on disposal of available-for-sale HER SR E 2 Was
investments - 190
16 190
203,942 106,250
* Various government grants have been received for * HK 2 T B 2 7] 3 BT A B A i
investments in certain cities in Mainland China in which T TTE TR E B 172 B THE)
] 84 the Company’s subsidiaries operate. There are no & o BEH BT WA AR ERZ IR
unfulfilled conditions or contingencies relating to these BUARER -

grants.
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—_ =

PROFIT BEFORE TAX 6. BRBEATER
The Group’s profit before tax is arrived at after charging/ AEBZBRBRMNENR (EL) T
(crediting): £IF :
2013 2012
—E—=F —E-—F
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
i3 ARBTR AREFIT
Cost of inventories sold EHFERA 50,318,036 44,269,773
Cost of services provided IR KA 2,607,277 2,306,852
Depreciation of property, ME - WEREEITE
plant and equipment 15 113,466 97,749
Depreciation of investment properties ~ REWEITE 16 1,192 1,192
Recognition of prepaid land premiums ~ HEREN L HES 17 7,575 5,287
Amortisation of intangible assets* A E 19 6,977 7,192
Research and development costs** ik FAEER 444,605 413,714
Auditors’ remuneration =% EREM N & 7,000 6,250
Employee benefit expense EEBAFAX
(including directors’ and chief (PHEESER
executive's remuneration E={TBAE .
- note 8): e — KizEs) : i
Wages and salaries TERG® 2,475,538 2,457,077
Welfare @ 41,857 50,475
Pension scheme contributions RIKEFTEIE X 433,185 442,714
Share-based payment expense AR AD BERE 2 B 371 14,429 -
Equity-settled share option expense ARA#EE 2 BiRERS 37 12,955 39,620
2,977,964 2,989,886
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6. PROFIT BEFORE TAX (continued) 6. BRBADER (&)
2013 2012
—E-=F —T——fF
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
Htat AR¥T ARBTT
Minimum lease payments under TH REFEERD 2 &K
operating leases in respect & FIE
of land and buildings 123,861 111,557
Provision for obsolete and PR KRB ETERE TR
slow-moving inventories, net*** 37,772 90,049
Product warranty and installation EmRE RLEERE
provisions S5 688,788 677,543
Management services arrangement ERRBLHRX
expense 34,877 -
Loss on disposal/write-off of items of HE/MEME - BER
property, plant and equipment, nett RBIEE 2 B R 101 1,580
Loss on disposal/write-off of prepaid HE /MEHER L3
land lease payments, net* MEN < EBFE 5,387 -
Impairment of property, plant and M - BB MR ERE
equipment? 18] - 5,508
Impairment of intangible assets* m A ERE 19 - 5,340
Provision of impairment of trade P BR 2 R (B B 1 5 2B
receivables, net* 23 4,436 -
Provision of impairment of other Hfth s BR R 2 R (B
receivables, net st 24 - 4,228
Foreign exchange differences, net M X =55 EE 11,615 24,683
* The amortisation of intangible assets for the year is * FREIG B E B E R & R & S A
included in “Administrative expenses” in the consolidated [T EH ] A -

statement of profit or loss.

o The research and development costs included mould o HEREZEHCITIRAES HARE
charges of RMB163,222,000 (2012: RMB179,014,000) 163,222,0007r (ZF—=14F | ARK
which are included in “Cost of sales” in the consolidated 179,014,0005T) ERER & Bz & S A
statement of profit or loss. [BHELA] A °
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~

6. PROFIT BEFORE TAX (continued) 6. BRBADER (&)
ok The provision for obsolete and slow-moving inventories for ok FERBIFRH 7RG ERGEE 1R
the year is included in “Cost of sales” in the consolidated FKIIA [FHEKAL) A °

statement of profit or loss.

# The net loss on disposal/write-off of items of property, # HE ~“WMEYE - BERZERAENT T
plant and equipment and prepaid land lease payments, MHEFIEE . EEFRE - Y% - BE
impairment of property, plant and equipment, impairment REREHRE - A EEE 68 R EWK R
of intangible assets and net provision of impairment of R E M JEY AR 50,2 S (B 7 1 )% BE B R
trade receivables and other receivables are included EBmAIIA [EMEAREE]A

in “Other expenses and losses” in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss.

7. FINANCE COSTS 7. & R AR
An analysis of finance costs is as follows: BEBEKADITIAT
Group AEHE
2013 2012
—E—=F —E——4F
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTR ARBTT

Interest on borrowings wholly repayable ARAEFAEHEEREZ

within five years BEFE 4,262 1,469
Notional interest on loans from IR R E R 2

non-controlling shareholders BENE 834 1,404
Interest on convertible bonds (note 32) AR ESHE (Hat32) 63,238 61,631

68,334 64,504
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8. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
REMUNERATION

Directors’ and chief executive’s remuneration for the year,
disclosed pursuant to the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the “Listing Rules”) and Section 161 of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance, is as follows:

EENESTHRAEME

AEFRBEESBARSHFERATES
EHRA(EmRED) RESA A EH
E1ERBEZESREETRARMS
T -

Group rEE
2013 2012
—_E—= —E——4F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®ET T ARBFIT
Fees ik 914 777

Other emoluments: HEibpie -

Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind Fre  EMEEMHNE 1,385 1,359
Performance-related bonuses FIRTEAL 214 223
Equity-settled share option expense VARR A 45 5 2 BE AR RE B =2 1,486 3,634
Pension scheme contributions BIRE B 87 90
3,172 5,306
4,086 6,083

In prior years, certain directors were granted share
options, in respect of their services to the Group,
under the share option scheme of the Company, further
details of which are set out in note 37 to the financial
statements. The fair value of these options, which has
been recognised in the statement of profit or loss over
the vesting period, was determined as at the date of grant
and the amount included in the financial statements for
the current year is included in the above directors’ and
chief executive’s remuneration disclosures.

RARIEE - REANRF 2 BIRER S
ETEEARERARKEERM 2 RGERE
P - BRI B EN SRR MEST - %
EEREZATEDRREAREE - I
ERNFBHRERERARR  LXBEER
ERTBRABZHMERECBELSFAR
FEMBRR IS -
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8. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S 8. EBRBSTHRAEME (&)
REMUNERATION (continued)
(a) Independent non-executive directors: (@) BUFHTES:
Salaries,
allowances Equity-settled
and benefits share option Total
Fees in kind expense remuneration
H& BER URAHEEZ
ik BRE fBRAER X MWemE
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETF T ARET T ARETF T ARET T
2013 —g2-=fF
Mr. Wu Yinong* BMBELE 91 4 _ 95
Mr. Yu Hon To, David AEE L 263 23 _ 286
Mrs. Eva Cheng Li Kam Fun*  BFH5 4L 153 13 566 732
Dr. Liu Xiao Feng Bl EtE+ 219 23 - 242
726 63 566 1,355
2012 —FF
Mr. Wu Yinong RMEEAE 224 20 449 693
Mr. Yu Hon To, David MEELE 269 20 506 795
Dr. Liu Xiao Feng Bz EtE+ 224 22 449 695
717 62 1,404 2,183
* Mr. Wu Yinong resigned as an independent non- * RINEAEER-F—=FaA
executive director of the Company on 28 May Z T NNHEERLR A7 IFH
2013. TEE -
o Mrs. Eva Cheng Li Kam Fun was appointed as > HEEFLLRZF—=FN

an independent non-executive director of the
Company on 1 June 2013.

There were no other emoluments payable to the

independent non-executive directors during the

year (2012: Nil).

A—AEZERARAIFHT
EZE-

ARRFERLEEMEN TEL
FHTEFLME (ZT——F

&) -
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8. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S 8. EEREETHRAEME (&)
REMUNERATION (continued)

(b) Executive directors, non-executive directors and (b) PITESR  FUTESRESTHR
the chief executive AB
Salaries Equity-
allowances Performance settled Pension
and benefits -related share option scheme Total
Fees in kind bonuses expense contributions remuneration
e BER NRA&EE 2 Bihe

e  EUNE  RERL  BEERX TR et
RMB'000  RMB’000  RMB'000  RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000

2013 —2-=F ARBTT ARETn ARETn AR¥Tn ARETx  AR¥Tx

Executive directors: HWIES
Ms. Yang Mian Mian® BHerLt - 67 - _ 17 84
Mr. Zhou Yun Jie* FER A - 690 160 320 35 1,205
Mr. Li Hua Gang ZE[IEE = 440 54 90 35 619
- 1,197 214 410 87 1,908

Non-executive directors: FHTES:

Mr. Liang Hai Shan ZEITE - 80 - - - 80
Ms. Feng Junyuan, Janine ~ BETRL 60 20 - _ _ 80
Dr. Wang Han Hua* TEEFLT 128 12 - 510 - 650
Ms. Tan Li Xia ** BEENL" - 13 - - - 13
188 125 - 510 - 823
188 1,322 214 920 87 2,731
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8. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S 8. EERESTHRAEME (&)
REMUNERATION (continued)
(b)  Executive directors, non-executive directors and (b) HTES kHTEERBSITH
the chief executive (continued) AB (&)
Salaries Equity-
allowances Performance settled Pension
and benefits -related  share option scheme Total
Fees in kind bonuses expense  contributions  remuneration
e 2R IRALEEZ Bike

e  EWHE  RRRD BRERX ATEIE Meas
RMB000 ~ RMB000  RMB0O0  RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

2012 Sk ARBTL  ARETT ARMTR AREBTr  AREBTn  AREBTx
Executive directors: BITES:
Ms. Yang Mian Mian* Bapit - 120 _ _ 30 150
Mr. Zhou Yun Jie# REAL L - 622 145 847 30 1,644
Mr. Li Hua Gang ZERLE = 396 78 247 30 751
- 1,138 223 1,094 90 2,545
Non-executive directors: FHTES
Mr. Wu Ke Song Y - 72 - 1,136 - 1,208
Mr. Liang Hai Shan RBILEE - 72 - - . 7
Ms. Feng Junyuan, Janine Z%?ilﬁﬁi 60 15 = = = 75
Mr. Gui Zhaoyu* ERTEE - - - - _ -
60 159 - 1,136 - 1,355
60 1,297 223 2,230 90 3,900
& Ms. Yang Mian Mian retired as an executive # AR TR - E—=F NA=1THaH
director of the Company on 25 June 2013. BEFARRJHATTEFRT -
e Mr. Zhou Yun Jie is also the chief executive of the " BIERAELE—FE—=F=/FT/NHE
Company from 18 March 2013. TR R AIRETTEAS °
* Mr. Gui Zhaoyu is the alternate director to Ms. * HERFAERBEETLLITHETESE -
Feng Junyuan, Janine.
i Dr. Wang Han Hua and Ms. Tan Li Xia were o FEZEE LT REBEEL T AR =T —
appointed as non-executive directors of the =FNA—ARZFE—=F+—H1T/N
Company on 1 June 2013 and on 18 November HEZEBERFHHNTESE -

2013, respectively.
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There was no arrangement under which a director FABEEESSSTRABIHRES
or chief executive waived or agreed to waive any B S E A > 28k -

remuneration during the year.
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9. FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES 9. hERETMES
The five highest paid employees during the year included FAREGERTMNEERENEZES (=
four directors (2012: three directors), details of whose T——_F:ZREE) FHEEEZHE
remuneration are set out in note 8 above. Details of the FEEEN EXHES c FRNHBT—% (ZF
remuneration for the year of the remaining one (2012: ——F MR ARREEERSTHE

two) highest paid non-director employees are as follows: B MESFIBOT

Group AEHE

2013 2012
—E2—= —T——F
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®TR ARETTT

Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind e R REYAR 601 1,020
Equity-settled share option expense LARR A48 2 BE AR i I =2 57 471
Pension scheme contributions RIREFH B 12 22

670 1,518




FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES (continued)

The number of the highest paid non-director employees
whose remuneration fell within the following bands is as
follows:

Notes to Financial Statements (continued
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hERSHHNES (&)

FEEESFHEEMSE TIEEHE
NZABIAT

Number of employees

EE A"
2013 2012
—E-=F —E——F
Nil to RMB1,000,000 Tz AR ¥1,000,0007T 1 2

In prior years, share options were granted to these
highest paid non-director employees in respect of
their services to the Group, further details of which are
included in the disclosures in note 37 to the financial
statements. The fair value of these options, which has
been recognised in the statement of profit or loss over
the vesting period, was determined as at the date of grant
and the amount included in the financial statements for
the current year is included in the above highest paid
non-director employees’ remuneration disclosures.

RURFE  REFHSFMEERES
AAEEIR M RIGERBIME - BREF
BENMBEHRRIMTI72RER - ZEH
Bz R FEDNEHAHEBEE  YER
BERERERER  LXOFEEESH
MEE cMEeBRBECBREEFALRFEEH
BRRZEHE -
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10. INCOME TAX 10. FREH
Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of BEANGHIIBEFARBBELE 2
16.5% (2012:16.5%) on the estimated assessable profits AT E R T m A 3%16.6% (=& — — F ¢
arising in Hong Kong during the year. 16.5%) < B G IRHEHE -
Tax on profits assessable in Mainland China has been FAHR B A 3 3t E AR A A B 2 B IR - T
calculated at the applicable PRC corporate income tax RREAPRCEMES ([REMEH])
(“CIT”) rates. Certain subsidiaries of the Group are MEGFE - AEBEETHERARGEZS
entitled to preferential tax treatments of reduction in the MBEEFSE RERNEFEMEHE
CIT rate to 15%. 15% 487
Group REE
2013 2012
—E—=F —E——4F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR® T AREEFTT
Current — Hong Kong BNEY — &/
Charge for the year FAZH 13,485 3,212
Current- Mainland China BPES — AR Ay
Charge for the year FRZE 677,246 608,856
Overprovision in prior years BAFE B (6,182) (1,791)
Deferred (note 34) IBE (H15734) (137,022) (72,992)
Total tax charge for the year FABIAEX K 4R 547,527 537,285
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INCOME TAX (continued) 10. FREH (&)
A reconciliation of the tax expense applicable to profit NN N N )= N P aa by 3
before tax at the statutory rates for the jurisdictions in BEEMEGTERB AR 2 HIB X
which the Company and the majority of its subsidiaries o BEERRERAEZHBEIHZH
are domiciled to the tax expense at the effective tax B PARERME (AEAEHX) HER
rates, and a reconciliation of the applicable rates (i.e., TR AR -
the statutory tax rates) to the effective tax rates, are as
follows:
Group — 2013 AEEH-—F—=
Hong Kong Mainland China Total
Bt HE R it st
RMB’000 % RMB’000 % RMB’000 %
ARET R % ARETR % ARETR %

Profit/(loss) before tax BRBATEF /(&518) (13,793) 2,651,633 2,637,840
Tax at statutory tax rate REEREFE 2 HIE (2,276) 16.5 662,908 25.0 660,632 25.0
Adjustments in respect of AT EA 2 BNERR A

current tax of el 2 A%

previous periods - - (6,182) (0.2) (6,182) (0.2)
Income not subject to tax FRBMA (5,707) 4.4 (2,722) (0.1) (8,429) (0.3)
Expenses not deductible for tax M AIHIHFX 20,422 (148.1) 10,375 0.4 30,797 1.2
Tax losses not recognised RERTEERE 313 (2.3) 70,982 2.6 71,295 2.7
Tax exemption MIBHRR = - (155,482) (5.9) (155,482) (5.9)
Tax losses utilized from A ETREE

previous periods - - (491) - (491) -
Realisation of timing differences #ZBERRERZ

not previously recognised KHEER 732 (5.3)  (45,345) (1.7)  (44,613) (1.7)
Tax charge at the Group’s BRASEZ BRHE
effective rate B HES 13,484 (97.8) 534,043 20.1 547,527 20.8
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10. INCOME TAX (continued) 10. Frf8%t (&)
Group — 2012 RER - —T——4F
Hong Kong Mainland China Total
B0 R At st
RMB'000 %  RMB’000 %  RMB’000 %
ARETT % AREBTT % ARBTT %
Profit/(loss) before tax BR#AIEF/(F18) (117,846) 2,362,108 2,244,262
Tax at statutory tax rate REEMETE A (19,445) 165 590,527 250 571,082 25.4
Adjustments in respect of R VAR IR IR
current tax of LB
previous periods - - (1,791) (0.1) (1,791) (0.1
Income not subject to tax = ON (2,939) 2.5 (1,226) (0.1) (4,165) (0.2)
Temporary difference AERERERE
not recognised 25,596 (21.7) 161,410 6.8 187,006 8.3
Expenses not deductible for tax M AIHIHFX = = 4,454 0.2 4,454 0.2
Tax losses not recognised RERIBERE - - 33,034 1.4 33,034 15
Tax exemption e = - (147,213) (6.2) (147,213) (6.6)
Tax losses utilized from FAAETEEE
previous periods - - (105,122) (4.4)  (105,122) (4.6)
Tax charge at the Group’s BAKE EBRFHiX
effective rate FEZHES 3,212 (2.7) 534,073 226 537,285 23.9

11. PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNERS OF THE 1. AXRRRELER

COMPANY

Of the Group’s profit attributable to owners of the Company EARARRBRREEASRERNARE
of RMB2,036,882,000 (2012: RMB1,695,122,000), a loss 2,036,882,000L (= F — =Z F : A K
of RMB87,737,000 (2012: RMB118,246,000) has been %1,695,122,0007T) F BR AR %
dealt with in the financial statements of the Company 87,737,000t (= F — ZF ' A K%
(note 38(b)). 118,246,0007T) BEAR R 7] 2 B % ] &

NERIE (FizE38(b)) °
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DIVIDENDS 12. RKRE
2013 2012
—F-= —FF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT ARBTTT
Proposed final — HK10 cents BR AR E — BE10D
(2012: HK8 cents) — =& : B¥8n) 200,824 157,480
The proposed final dividend for the year is subject FARKR AR EBALCARRARRERIERE
to the approval of the Company’s shareholders at the RRBFE RS LRE -
forthcoming annual general meeting.
EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE 13. FARAEBRBRREGERER

TO ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE
COMPANY

The calculation of the basic earnings per share amount
is based on the profit for the year attributable to ordinary
equity holders of the Company, and the weighted average
number of ordinary shares of 2,541,398,244 (2012:
2,396,748,020) in issue during the year.

The calculation of the diluted earnings per share amount
is based on the profit for the year attributable to ordinary
equity holders of the Company, adjusted to reflect the
interest on the convertible bonds. The weighted average
number of ordinary shares used in the calculation is the
number of ordinary shares in issue during the year, as
used in the basic earnings per share calculation, and the
weighted average number of ordinary shares assumed
to have been issued at no consideration on the deemed
exercise or conversion of all dilutive potential ordinary
shares into ordinary shares, and the contingently issuable
shares.

BRERNZFZ CEIHIBREFARRAL
AARAR R R T R FRE FTE @AM
HESF 82 541,398,244f% (— T — — 4 :

2,396,748,020/%) 5t&

ERESRN 2B IRBFANARRAE
BRIRREEAFTE - B AR
BRBEFHFE - SHEATA 2 SRR NE
FHH AR ESREABNEAZ
FREBRITEBEREAE - M&F“ﬁ%ﬂ
PR HMAAEEE S LT BRAL
EERT2EBRINETSE kAZQfX_T
TEIT 2R
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13. EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE 13.

TO ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE

COMPANY (continued)

The calculations of basic and diluted earnings per share

are based on:

RRABEBRRREEERER (&)

BREAREERMNRIATEATE

2013 2012
—E—= —E—_—F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET ARETTT
Earnings EF|
Profit attributable to ordinary equity holders FARETEFREREF 2
of the Company used in the basic ZIN/NEI RS ] i
earnings per share calculation FEAE % A 2,036,882 1,695,122
Interest on convertible bonds AR S F B 63,238 61,631
2,100,120 1,756,753




13.

Annual Report 2013 & £E3§

Notes to Financial Statements (continued

Mg mRME (&
31 December 2013 —E—=F+=-HF=+—H

—_ =

EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE 13. ARLQAEBERRRELESRER (&)
TO ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE

COMPANY (continued)

Number of shares

R EE
2013 2012
—Eg—= —_F—=
Shares 4l
Weighted average number of ordinary BRETEERERRT) 2
shares in issue during the year used in FABETERR
the basic earnings per share calculation INFE AR 2,541,398,244 2,396,748,020
Effect of dilution — weighted average BETE — LBRNE
number of ordinary shares: FRREL
Warrants RHHEE 12,714,138 101,080,154
Share options sl 32,289,830 52,875,229
Contingently issuable shares* i A] T E 1T 2 R it 1,319,261 3,820,805
Convertible bonds AR E S 100,000,000 100,000,000
146,323,229 257,776,188
Total #Et 2,687,721,473 2,654,524,208
# The contingently issuable shares included the estimated & BLA] FETTZ RIGIEEIEFE TN

number of shares to be issued to certain Haier franchise
store owners. These Haier franchise store owners entered
into management services agreements with the Group
and achieved the prescribed performance targets.

BIEHEFARTZGAIREEE - Z2F
JBRBINEEETA AR EF T EER
Bl WEREERTAIE - BHER
Blpas 2 — (G ER R KA 2

Further details of the management services agreements 19 -
are included in note 19 to the financial statements.

—

199




200

Haier Electronics Group Co., Ltd.

BHEREERRLA

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

g s ELEENE D)
31 December 2013 —E—=%+=-_HA=+—H

14.

(a)

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 14. BEALRS

In addition to the related party transactions detailed (a) RIS SRR E M IS sFu 2 8
elsewhere in these financial statements, the Group #BATZ SN 0 ANEEREREE

had the following material transactions with Haier ABMBATICETUTEASLS ¢

Affiliates during the year:

2013 2012
—E_=fF —E——4F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T AEBTTT
Export sale of products A SHE E M 1,439,248 1,566,686
Domestic sale of products B A 85 & = om 365,756 221,410
Purchase of finished goods PREB LA o 30,411,964 26,866,861
Purchase of raw materials REBRE 12,402,661 11,237,974
Printing and packaging fee expenses ENfl & Ba & 45,447 57,997
Mould charges RAZEZ 163,222 179,014
Utility service fee expenses AARBES N 116,805 95,033
Promotion fee expenses EEBYH 77,000 204,566
Research and development service fee* 5T [ 7 8 AR 7 s i~ 127,710 =
Other service fee expenses H RS & S 338,915 378,906
Interest income FEHA 20,842 21,224
Interest expenses FEZH 2,342 1,469
Other financial service fees Hitt @ miRG & 7,219 6,173
Logistic services income W AR TG U 1,905,854 1,795,008
After-sale service income ERRIFUEA 201,067 218,620
Purchase of equipment FRIBHE 11,428 16,033
Premise lease expenses** YIFEBRES = 1,051

Research and development service fee in 2012

was included in other service fee expenses.

>k

other service fee expenses.

Premise lease expenses in 2013 was included in

The above transactions were conducted in
accordance with the terms and conditions mutually

agreed by the parties involved.

g R-F——F ZHHERAER
BEFARMRFEESH -

> R-F—=FZYFHBEEZH
SARMIRFEEZ ]

A ERZTIRBRI AT ERBELZ
fERFR B AR AETT ©



14. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(b)

(i)

(if)

Other transactions with related parties:

During the year, Haier Group Finance Co.,
Ltd., a fellow subsidiary of the Company,
granted to a wholly-owned subsidiary
of the Company a loan facility, which is
guaranteed by Haier Corp. The maximum
amount of the loan facility is US$30,000,000,
of which US$6,748,000 (equivalent to
RMB41,065,000) had been utilised as at
the end of the reporting period.

During the year,
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company
and a fellow subsidiary of the Company

a bank granted to a

(the “Borrowers”) jointly and severally
general banking facilities, which are cross
guaranteed by each of the Borrowers for
US$75,000,000 and ultimately guaranteed
by another fellow subsidiary of the Company.
The maximum amount of the general
is US$132,500,000,
including an aggregate maximum notional

banking facilities
amount relating to foreign exchange
contracts of US$62,500,000 with a stop
loss limit amount of US$5,000,000. As at
the end of the reporting period, the Group
had utilised the general banking facilities
amounting to US$13,476,000 (equivalent to
RMB81,568,000).

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

31 December

14. BEALX

Annual Report 2013 & £E3§

BRI EE (48)
2013 _F—=F+_A=+—H

FRN - ARERRMBEA

BREBPKEREMEA

MARGEZ— %%éﬁﬁ%
AAEE—BERBE -
HEHMSREB AR RMEE
R ZEEXRER=LHE
#30,000,000% Jr @ H
6,748,000% 7T (48 & 1 A
R #41,065,0007T) AR E

201

HRE FHH °
FR - —RIBTER R ER
WW$AH*%%§WEA

ARARE —RERNEB
AR (TERALD BH—&
RITRE - 52— MRIT AL
EREERAEHER
& € %8 A75,000,000%
7T ETAARAS—RA
M B A AE S AR ELR o
—RBTHEZEREER
132,500,000 7T * & F &
REBIINESGHNZESEE
% %8 & ££62,500,000% Tt

1F18FR 58 A5,000,0003 7T °
RMEHR - XEBEEESHA
13,476,000 7t (F8 E R A
R #81,568,0007T) < — #&
RITRE ©

g

T

-
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14. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(b) Other transactions with related parties: (continued)

(iii)

(iv)

During the vyear, the Group acquired
additional 0.938% and 0.704% interest in
Qingdao Lejia Electric Appliances Co., Ltd.
(“Qingdao Lejia”), a then 94.95%-owned
subsidiary of the Group, from Qingdao Haier
Co., Ltd. and Qingdao Haier Refrigerator
Ltd. at RMB94,000
and RMB70,000, respectively, which was

(International) Co.,

determined with reference to the paid-in
capital amount of Qingdao Lejia. Qingdao
Haier Co., Ltd. is the immediate holding
company of the Company and Qingdao
Haier Refrigerator (International) Co., Ltd.
is a fellow subsidiary of the Company.

During the year, a subsidiary of the Company
made a borrowing from a fellow subsidiary
of the company through an entrusted loan
agreement in the amount of RMB15,000,000,
which was due on 27 December 2013 and
renewed to 25 June 2014. Such borrowing
was unsecured, interest-bearing at 6% per
annum.

14.

BEALRS (&)

(b)

EEE AT ZHMR

(iif)

(iv)

/|/

% (&)

FRN - AEERESERK
DBERAR RS SFREIKX
78 (BIBR) BR 2 a5 5
REAREIL 000t RAR
#&70,0007c B AR E B B
WEHIA % E RS 2 & &8
RXEHRERAA ([FE%
K 1) %85M0.938% }0.704%
B FEREDN2EES
BRIBREEASEME
Ao EEERRHABMRAF
RARNRZEEERAR -
mES8REKFE (BE)
BRAFRBARARZ—XK
RAWBAFR °

FR - ARBIZHBRRSE
BEEERTHFEARAAR—
ZERZMBARIBAZAR
#15,000,0007C Z & E ° #%
EER - E—=F+_A=
++HEH WEEE—T
—mUESAZTHEA - AE
T HFERR6% °
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BRI EE (48)
31 December 2013 —E—=F+_-A=+—H

BEALRS (&)

(c)  Compensation of key management personnel of (c) AEEEZEBEABZHH
the Group:

2013 2012

e —E-—F

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥TR ARKETTT

Short term employee benefits ySEEL =Rl 6,150 6,000

Post-employment benefits i3t 321 322

Equity-settled share option expense RS 2 AR R 2 1,999 5,130
Total compensation paid to key ENEEEBAEZ

management personnel Hrifaaza 8,470 11,452

Further details of directors’ and chief executive’s
emoluments are included in note 8 to the financial

statements.

The number of

non-director and non-chief
executive, key management personnel whose

FEFKIFHE

2 AEMEETIIA

EERRSTBRABME 2 HAM5F
BER B B IRAM LS -

BITRABZEEE
EEBERNZA

remuneration fell within the following bands is as T :
follows:
2013 2012
—E—=F —E——%F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT ARETTT
Nil to RMB500,000 = AR¥500,0007T 6 2
RMB500,001 to RMB 1,000,000 AR#500,001 T2
AE#1,000,0007T 4 7
10 9
Except for item (c), the above related party transactions Br(c)IESN - FallREEB A R 5 INERIFE
also constitute continuing connected transactions or AERZHEERS (FEER EMREIE
connected transactions as defined in Chapter 14A of the +IOAZE) o

Listing Rules.
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15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 15. ¥%¥ -  BRERR®E
Group AEE
Tools,
Plant and furniture Motor  Construction
Buildings machinery  and fixtures vehicles in progress Total
IR KA

BT BEREE R&E hE KRIE #ir
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARBTR ARMTR  ARMTn ARBTR  ARETR ARETR

31 December 2013 ZB-ZEYAZt-H
At 1 January 2013; W-Z-=F-f-R:

Cost KR 734,202 843,277 35,661 101,384 464,697 2,179,221

Accumulated depreciation ZitihE (268,251)  (522,837) (20,733)  (58,594) - (870,415)

Net carrying amount REFE 465,951 320,440 14,928 42,790 464,697 1,308,806
Cost at 1 January 2013, net of R=F-=5-f—-H

accumulated depreciation LR BARZ

and impairment SHTERRE 465,951 320,440 14,928 42,790 464,697 1,308,806
Additions HE 2,383 4,639 2,114 6,329 277873 293,338
Acquisition of subsidiaries (note 39)  WEMBRAR (Hit39) - 211 18 569 - 798
Disposals/write-off HE /i - (1,173) (221) (14) - (1,408)
Depreciation provided during the year FRTER(E (41,262)  (57,004) (4,141)  (11,059) - (113,466)
Transfers 5 441,127 97,993 5,498 4,680 (549,298) -
Cost at 31 December 2013, R-F-=#+t-A=1-H

net of accumulated depreciation LB BEMBRESHTER

and impairment RfE 868,199 365,106 18,196 43,295 193,272 1,488,068
At 31 December 2013; RZE-ZF+-A=+-R:

Cost R 1177712 937,734 40,148 112,457 193,272 2,461,323

Accumulated depreciation ZHMERAE

and impairment (309,513)  (572,628) (21,95  (69,162) - (973,255)

204

Net carrying amount BEFE 868,199 365,106 18,196 43,295 193,272 1,488,068
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MR ()
31 December 2013 —E—=F+=-HF=+—H

15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 15. Y% - BERRE (&)
(continued)

Group (continued) REE (&)

Tools,
furniture
Plant and and Motor  Construction
Buildings  machinery fixtures vehicles in progress Total
I8 KA
BY RERES Rk&E at: fRIE &t
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTR  ARETT ARETR ARETR  ARETR  ARETR

31 December 2012 “2-f+ZB=1-H
At 1 January 2012; RZE-—%#-f-H:

Cost BA 621997 767,204 29,686 83,765 310764 1813436

Accumulated depreciation ZitiE (244769)  (506,072)  (20262)  (52,121) - (823,224)

Net carrying amount RESE 377,228 261,152 9,424 31,644 310,764 990,212
Cost at 1 January 2012, net R-F-—45-f—H

of accumulated depreciation LR BAIG

and impairment ZEHERAE 377,228 261,152 9,424 31,644 310,764 990,212
Additions AE 653 7,625 3432 18351 398,818 428 879
Disposals/write-off E /WS (449) (3,469) (198) (133) (2,784) (7,033)
Impairment e - (5,139) (364) - - (5,503)
Depreciation provided during the year ~ FMITERE (2479%)  (56,612) (6,104)  (10,237) - (97,749)
Transfers 25 113315 116,883 8,738 3,165 (242,101) =
Cost at 31 December 2012, RZE-—#+-f=1-H

net of accumulated depreciation LHA BARZHHER

and impairment BB 465951 320,440 14928 42,790 464697 1,308,806
At 31 December 2012: RZF-ZF+-A=1-H:

Cost R 734202 843277 35,661 101,384 464697 2,179,221

Accumulated depreciation ZHERAE

and impairment (268,251)  (522,837) (20,733) (58,594) - (870,415)

Net carrying amount W #HE 465,951 320,440 14,928 42,790 44607 1308808 (05
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15.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(continued)

All of the Group’s buildings are erected on land in
Mainland China and are held under medium term leases.

As at 31 December 2013, certain of the Group’s buildings
with an aggregate net book value of approximately
RMB764,382,000 (2012: RMB400,292,000) did not have
building ownership certificates registered under the
names of the respective subsidiaries of the Company.

With respect to the above properties and the Group’s
investment properties, in prior years, Haier Corp issued
three undertakings to the Company, which agreed to
provide other suitable properties to the Group to ensure
the operations of certain subsidiaries of the Company
are not disrupted and/or indemnify the Group against
any losses arising from the above defective property
title issue. The aggregate net book value of the Group’s
buildings indemnified by Haier Corp as at 31 December
2013 amounted to approximately RMB180,818,000 (2012:
RMB192,171,000).

In the opinion of the directors, the Group is entitled
to lawfully and validly occupy and use the buildings
and investment properties for its daily operations,
notwithstanding the fact that the related building
ownership certificates have not yet been obtained.

15.

M- BERRE (F)

AEBEIEFHLNTEAM - Bigd
HHEOEE -

R=ZFE—=F+=ZA=+—H ' £A5H
BEEEFELO A/ AR K764,382,0007T
(Z=—=F : AR¥400,292,0007T) Z
ETERFIEUARREHBRARIZEE
B2 EHERERE o

HERMYERAEBREMENS * KB
FFE  BREBQARMARRIEL =18
i SBREEARRERASERER
b &Y - UERAARE THEBAR]
AREEBIZHE R K BERAEE
E i BRI ) R R E A 2 tE 48
K -R-ZFE—=F+=-A=+—H" ' 88
SEARBEALBZ EFREREFED
A AR #180,818,0007T (Z & — — 4 :
AR#192 171,0007T) °

EEZRR BEDANGAEFHER
& EARKE A RS A KA R RE
RETREEMENETAELE -
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BB HERME ()

31 December 2013 —E—=F+=-HF=+—H

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES REWE
Group REE
2013 2012
—E—= T
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT AREFTT
Cost at 1 January, net of accumulated R—A—BZEA
depreciation EIBRZFTE 14,723 19,128
Disposals HE = (3,213)
Depreciation provided during the year FAMERB (1,192) (1,192)
Cost at 31 December, net of accumulated ~ RTZA=+—BZKA
depreciation Bk EFTINE 13,531 14,723
At 31 December: R+=ZH=+—8:
Cost B A 18,894 18,894
Accumulated depreciation ZEtine (5,363) (4,171)
Net carrying amount IREDFE 13,531 14,723

All of the Group’s investment properties are erected on
land in Mainland China and are held under medium term
leases.

In the opinion of the directors, the fair value of the Group’s
investment properties was approximately RMB16,371,000
as at 31 December 2013 (2012: RMB17,136,000).
Property rentals from investment properties for the year
ended 31 December 2013 amounted to approximately
RMB2,016,000 (2012: RMB2,016,000).

The fair value measurements of the Group’s investment
properties are categorised within Level 3. The valuation
technique is the discounted cash flow method and the
significant inputs used in the fair value measurement are
estimated rental value, rent growth and discount rate.

AEEHREDEFOLNRFEAN - B
BHPBRBEORS -

BERAER-_ZE—=F+-_A=+—
H RAEEREVEZATEARAR
#16,371,000c (= ——F: AR
17,136,000T) - BEZE=_T—=F+=H
=+—BIEFE BREMEZYVERSD
BARY2,016,0000C (ZE—=F : AR
#2,016,0007T) °

AEBERBEMEZRATFEFEDINELS
=R MRANBETEZRMARSRE
E - MR AT EFERSAERNEZRA

I

g

-

g atEEemE mewerns 207



Haier Electronics Group Co., Ltd.

BHEREERRLA

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

g s ELEENE D)
31 December 2013 —E—=%+=-_HA=+—H

16. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued) 16. REYE (&)
As at 31 December 2013, none of the Group’s investment RZE—=%+-A=+—H ' x5£E2
properties (2012: none) had building ownership certificates HEEME (ZE—ZF « £) WEAK
registered under the names of the respective subsidiaries ANEISEERB AR cBRB R 2EHE
of the Company. The Group obtained an undertaking from BEE - AEECEGSEREEARIEHA
Haier Corp in relation to this defective property title issue, BRIV EFERB 2 EAE  BEFEER
details of which are set out in note 15 to the financial B TS R FsE15 o
statements.
17. PREPAID LAND LEASE PAYMENTS 17. FEATHEER
Group KEH
2013 2012
—ET—= —E——4F
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®TR ARETTT

Carrying amount at 1 January R—A—BZEEE 260,525 264,201
Additions NE 70,496 1,611
Disposals HE (8,723) =
Recognised during the year FANER (7,575) (5,287)
Carrying amount at 31 December Rt -—A=+—HZEHEE 314,723 260,525
Current portion included in prepayments, FTATENRIE - ke Rk

deposits and other receivables E A E R SR 2 TR #B (7,710) (5,790)
Non-current portion JER BN D 307,013 254,735
The leasehold land is situated in Mainland China and is AE LA B A B iR B 4 =%
held under medium term leases. Ao
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31 December 2013 —E—=F+=-HF=+—H

PREPAID LAND LEASE PAYMENTS (continued)  17. Wt ER (&)
As at 31 December 2013, certain parcels of the Group’s RZZE—=FF+_A=+—H rx&H
leasehold land with an aggregate unamortised prepaid REEHENLTHEZRSBBEORBARE
land premium amount of approximately RMB115,265,000 115,265,000 (Z T —ZF: AR
(2012: RMB102,536,000) did not have land use right 102,536,0007T) 2 & T i@ & 4 #b I &
certificates registered under the names of the respective UARRNRZEENB AR 2ZEER 2L
subsidiaries of the Company, of which RMB46,762,000 HEREE - BREERRERILEL R
was indemnified by Haier Corp (2012: RMB102,536,000). B ARM46,762,000T (ZF——F : A
Details of the undertakings granted by Haier Corp to the K #102,536,0007T) - HREE R EIH®E
Company in relation to this title issue are set out in note BFT A MR RA R B fEL AR Z 55
15 to the financial statements. SRR MIEE5 o
GOODWILL 18. B&
Group AEHE
2013 2012
—ET—= —E——4F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TR ARBTIT
Cost at 1 January, net of impairment B—A—HB 2
EHGRIRE - _
Acquisition of subsidiaries (note 39) WEBHI B A=) (A/a£39) 6,123 =
Cost and net carrying amount R+Z—HA=+—HBz
at 31 December B & BR T FHE 6,123 _
At 31 December: R+=ZRA=+—8:
Cost B 6,123 -
Accumulated impairment ZEHRE - -
Net carrying amount REVHE 6,123 =

I

g

-
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31 December 2013 —&—

18.

=f+=-A=+—H

GOODWILL (continued)

Goodwill acquired through business combination has
been allocated to the logistic and installation service cash-
generating unit for impairment testing. Its recoverable
amount has been determined based on a value-in-use
calculation using cash flow projections based on financial
budgets covering a five-year period approved by senior
management. The discount rate applied to the cash flow
projections is 15.4%. The growth rate used to extrapolate
the cash flows of the logistic and installation service unit

beyond the five-year period is 3%.

Assumptions were used in the value-in-use calculation
of the logistic and installation service cash-generating
unit for 31 December 2013. The following describes
each key assumption on which management has based
its cash flow projections to undertake impairment testing
of goodwill:

Budgeted gross margins — The basis used to determine
the value assigned to the budget gross margins is the
actual gross margin of 2013.

Discount rate — The discount rate used is before tax and
reflects specific risks relating to the unit.

18.

B (F)

REBEHMWBLBEBEOREDR KR
TRRBREEEEAL - AETHER
o HAIKB &\ HERBERREEE
gtz hFHRMGEEERTE S RER
BsrE 2 EAEEMERE - Ben=ET88
BRAZMEEE154% stTEMR R L HE
RGBT hFEN 2R eRERTAZIE
RXB3% °

AE_Z-=F+_A=t—HZYRK
LERBREELEM 2 EREEKKA
TZIERBK - - EEERBEERESRERAN
EITRBRER R A 2 S RERERR
ESuUy NN

BEENE -FEENXZEEIRE=
E-=F2EREMNRMERE

ALIR SR — AT A AL IR X T 0] R AL AR
R R 2 BIRTRLIR X o
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—_ =

19. OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS 19. HMEREE
Group AEHE
Management
Patents and services Customer
Software licences arrangements relationships Total
B FARBIE EERBRE FFBRE @zt

RMB'000  RMB’'000  RMB'000  RMB’000  RMB’000
ARBTRE ARBTRT ARMTR ARWTR ARWTZ

(note)
(Hit)

31 December 2013 “E-=%+-H=1+-H
At 1 January 2013: RZE—=%-A-R:

Cost PR 25,737 2,429 70,000 - 98,166

Accumulated amortisation ZEtEELRE

and impairment (15,830) (2,429) (5,250) - (23,509)

Net carrying amount REHE 9,907 = 64,750 - 74,657
Cost at 1 January 2013, RZZ—=%-F—H

net of accumulated amortisation ZRA Bk

and impairment S RAE 9,907 - 64,750 - 74,657
Acquisition of subsidiaries (note 39) WEMBRR (#7739 16,608 - - 6,167 22,775
Amortisation provided during the year FR% #HEE (2,244) - (3,500) (1,233) (6,977)
Cost at 31 December 2013, RZZ—=F

net of accumulated amortisation TZA=t—RZHA

and impairment BRR 25t HE RO R 24,271 - 61,250 4,934 90,455
At 31 December 2013: RZB-—=F

+ZA=1+-8:
Cost KA 42,345 2,429 70,000 6,167 120,94
Accumulated amortisation T EERE
and impairment (18,074) (2,429) (8,750) (1,233) (30,486)

Net carrying amount EEFE 24,271 - 61,250 4,934 90,455 21 1
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19.

OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS (continued)

19. HME\EREEE (&)

Group (continued) REE (&)
Management
Patents and services Customer
Software licences arrangements  relationships Total
B BHRETE BRRBRHE 2% @5t
RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000
ARBTT ARETT ARETT ARETE ARET:R
(note)
(Hizt)
31 December 2012 —E--£+=-A=t+-H
At 1 January 2012: RZE——%-A-R:
Cost AR 18,359 2,429 70,000 - 90,788
Accumulated amortisation ZErEH (6,798) (2,429) (1,750) = (10,977)
Net carrying amount RHE 11,561 = 68,250 = 79,811
Cost at 1 January 2012, W-E-——F—Hf—H
net of accumulated amortisation ZEK BB R 11,561 = 68,250 = 79,811
Additions NE 7,378 - - - 7,378
Impairment WE (5,340) = = = (5,340)
Amortisation provided during the year FR# & (3,692) = (3,500) = (7,192)
Cost at 31 December 2012, RZZ—Z%
net of accumulated amortisation TZAZT—RZEA
and impairment Bk 2 E AR E 9,907 = 64,750 = 74,657
At 31 December 2012: RZZ-—_F
+ZA=t-8:
Cost R 25,737 2429 70,000 = 98,166
Accumulated amortisation ZErEERAE
and impairment (15,830) (2,429) (5,250) - (23,509)
Net carrying amount REFE 9,907 - 64,750 - 74,657
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OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS (continued)
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I

19. HME\EEEE (&)
b N

Management services
arrangements (note)

EERBERHE (Wit)

2013 2012
—E-= —F——F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR AR¥EFTT
At 1 January: R—HA—H :
Cost DN 70,000 70,000
Accumulated amortisation ST (5,250) (1,750)
Net carrying amount AR HE 64,750 68,250
Cost at beginning of year, REFZ A -
net of accumulated amortisation Bk 25T 64,750 68,250
Amortisation provided during the year FRBIEEE (3,500) (3,500) ’r
Cost at end of year, net of accumulated RERZ KA ’
amortisation B kR 25T 61,250 64,750
At 31 December: R+=Z—H=+—8:
Cost DN 70,000 70,000
Accumulated amortisation 2T (8,750) (5,250)
Net carrying amount ARE A 61,250 64,750

Note: The cost related to the original fair values of the
management services agreements acquired by the Group
in a prior year amounting to RMB70,000,000, which are
amortised over the tenure of the management services
agreements. According to the management services
agreements, the Group is entitled to receive management
fees broadly equal to 2% of the annual purchasing orders
(in monetary value) for 2011 to 2018 and 1% for 2019 to
2030 from certain Haier franchise stores.

Bitet - HE 7K 5 BRI B F B B AR I
5% B IR 2 F B B B R K R ZEN BB
70,000,0007T - B AR TR EERE
ez F RN o IRIXE RIS 7%
PAEFERNREEE B L1HE
RE TGRBINEE G FREREETE (£
BIEE) 2% (f=—F——F2 -F—
NF)R1% (G =—FE—NFE-_F=F
o 213
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20.

INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 20. RHBARIZEE
Company AT
2013 2012
—E—= —E——4F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T ARET T
Unlisted investments, at cost JEEMIRE » LKA 1,989,881 2,039,482

The amounts due from and to subsidiaries included in the

Company’s non-current assets and non-current liabilities

of RMB430,076,000

(2012: RMB249,671,000)

and

RMB68,456,000 (2012: RMB80,574,000), respectively,
are unsecured, interest-free and are not repayable within

one year.

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries are as follows:

Place of
incorporation/
registration and

Nominal value of
issued ordinary/

STARRRIERBEERIERDAERZ
R EEMNHBARZKESNAARE
430,076,000 (ZE — = F: AR
249,671,0007T) K& A K %68,456,0007T

—T——%F: AR¥80,574,0007T) A
B RERR—FABEENR -

TEMBARZERMT :

Percentage of
equity directly
attributable to

Name business registered capital the Company Principal activities
MR, BRTEER/ FRAREEES
£ AL S B AMEREE RETDL TEXRK
Direct Indirect
EE b3
Qingdao Haier Washing PRC/ RMB238,610,000 - 94 Manufacture and sale
Machine Co., Ltd.* Mainland China of washing machines
BEEBRARBERAR" hE/ PR A AR#238,610,0007T 7 RIHE R
Foshan Shunde Haier Electric PRC/ RMB48,800,000 - 60 Manufacture and sale
Co., Ltd.* Mainland China of washing machines
FLTIREERERERAR  FE/HENM AR #48,800,0007T HERHERKHE
Hefei Haier Washing Machine ~ PRC/ RMB92,000,000 - 99 Manufacture and sale
Co., Ltd.” Mainland China of washing machines
AEEBRAKBERAR" e/ E R AR ¥92,000,0007T HERHERKHE
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INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 20. RMIBARZRE (&)
Particulars of the principal subsidiaries are as follows: FEMBRABZERNT : (&)
(continued)
Place of Percentage of
incorporation/ Nominal value of equity directly
registration and issued ordinary/ attributable to
Name business registered capital the Company Principal activities
s, BRTEER/ FLAREEES
£1 AL I S B HEMEREE REBDL TEEH
Direct Indirect
EE k3
Qingdao Jiaonan Haier PRC/ RMB10,000,000 = 95 Manufacture and sale
Washing Machine Co., Ltd.**  Mainland China of washing machines
ERBEERARKERART"  HE /HEAM AR #10,000,0007T EEREERKHE
Chongging Haier Washing PRC/ RMB25,000,000 25 74 Manufacture and sale
Machine Co., Ltd.* Mainland China of washing machines
ERBRARKAR AR BB AR #25,000,0007T HERSHERKH
Foshan Shunde Haier PRC/ RMB20,000,000 25 74 Manufacture and sale
Intelligent Electronics Mainland China of accessories for
Co., Ltd.* electrical appliances
BILTIEEERERE T BT E AR #20,000,0007T FERIHES SR
BRAR
Qingdao Goodaymart Lejia PRC/ RMB 195,700,000 - 100 Sale of home electric
Trading Co., Ltd.** Mainland China appliances
ERRARBERESERAR HE/TEAM AR #195,700,0007 HEXE
Qingdao Haier Drum Washing ~ PRC/ USD12,000,000 - 100 Manufacture and sale
Machine Co., Ltd.*** Mainland China of washing machines
EREREMARKERART ™  HE /HEAM 12,000,000% 7T HERHEE RS
Chongging Haier Drum PRC/ RMB250,000,000 - 99 Manufacture and sale
Washing Machine Co., Ltd.**  Mainland China of washing machines
EEERRMAKBERLR  FE/HENM AR#250,000,0007T HERSHE R K

g

-
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20. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 20. RAHMEBARIZRE (&)
Particulars of the principal subsidiaries are as follows: FEMBRABZERNT : (&)
(continued)

Place of Percentage of
incorporation/ Nominal value of equity directly
registration and issued ordinary/ attributable to
Name business registered capital the Company Principal activities
EMRL EROTLER ALREEEE
8 LA IR it B ZfEAEE REBDL TEXK
Direct Indirect
HiE &

Qingdao Economy and PRC/ RMB120,000,000 = 100 Manufacture and sale
Technology Development Mainland China of water heaters
Zone Haier Water
Heater Co., Ltd.***

EERERMRAERERA HE B A AR #120,000,0007T HERHERKSE
HKBAERA A

Wuhan Haier Water Heater PRC/ RMB50,000,000 - 100 Manufacture and sale
Co., Ltd.*** Mainland China of water heaters

R G RAKSRFR AR B/ E A AR #50,000,0007T HERHERKSE

Chongaing Haier Water PRC/ RMB10,000,000 - 100  Manufacture and sale
Heater Co., Ltd.** Mainland China of water heaters

EEERBKRARAA BB AR #10,000,0007T GEREERKE

Foshan Haier Drum Washing PRC/ RMB150,000,000 - 99 Manufacture and sale
Machine Co., Ltd.** Mainland China of washing machines

BULEREEAKEERAR FE/ FEAM AR™150,000,0007T HEBE I H B R

Chongqging New Goodaymart PRC/ RMB5,000,000 = 100  Sale of home electric
Electronics Sales Co., Ltd.***  Mainland China appliances

BEMBRIEREHEFRDA REHENH AR#5,000,0007T HERE

Haier Electronics Sales PRC/ RMB5,000,000 - 100  Sale of home electric
(Hefei) Co., Ltd.*** Mainland China appliances

BRERHEE (BIE) BRAF™ HE/ HENM AR #5,000,0007T HERE
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INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 20. RMIBARZRE (&)
Particulars of the principal subsidiaries are as follows: FEMBRABZERNT : (&)
(continued)
Place of Percentage of
incorporation/ Nominal value of equity directly
registration and issued ordinary/ attributable to
Name business registered capital the Company Principal activities
s, BRTEER/ FLAREEES
8 LA IR & it B HEMEREE REBDL TEEH
Direct Indirect
EE &
Qingdao Haier Electronics PRC/ RMB5,000,000 - 100  Sale of home electric
Sales Service Co., Ltd.** Mainland China appliances
EREBRERHERB B/ R ER AR #5,000,0007T HERE
BRAR
Qingdao Haier Logistics PRC/ USD41,870,000 - 100  Provision of logistics
Co., Ltd.** Mainland China service
ERERMRERAA B/ E 41,870,000% T REDRIRS
Beijing Haier Logistics PRC/ RMB1,000,000 - 100  Provision of logistics
Co., Ltd.** Mainland China service
ERERMRBERAR" Bl R ERL AR#1,000,0007T RAYIR RS
Qingdao Goodaymart Supply PRC/ RMB 10,000,000 - 100  Provision of logistics
Chains Co., Ltd.** Mainland China service
EERRIEfEEER DA™ hE /B AR 10,000,000 REMTIRS
Hefei Goodaymart Logistics PRC/ RMB 1,000,000 - 100  Provision of logistics
Co., Ltd.** Mainland China service
RIEEBIEARARAR hE,hE R, AR¥1,000,0007C AR RS
Chongaing Hairi Logistics PRC/ RMB500,000 - 100  Provision of logistics
Co., Ltd.** Mainland China service
BEEBBYMRERAR Bl B A AR#500,0007T REMIR RS

g

-
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20.

INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 20. RMIBARZRE (&)

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries are as follows: FEMBRABZERNT : (&)

(continued)

Place of Percentage of
incorporation/ Nominal value of equity directly
registration and issued ordinary/ attributable to
Name business registered capital the Company Principal activities
A EROTLER ALREEEE
8 LA IR it B ZfEAEE REBDL TEEH
Direct Indirect
EE &

Qingdao Goodaymart PRC/ RMB20,000,000 = 100  Provision of
Electronics Service Mainland China after-sale services
Co., Ltd.**

BERREERREEROA  HE/FENM AR #20,000,0007 REERRY

Shandong Goodaymart PRC/ RMB20,000,000 - 51  Sale of home electric
Electric Appliance Mainland China appliances
Co., Ltd.**

WRBBIESSRERAE B/ R ERL AR #20,000,0007T HEXE

Chengdu Haixin Goodaymart PRC/ RMB9,800,000 - 51 Sale of home electric
Electric Appliance Co., Ltd.** Mainland China appliances

REEMBRIEERBRAR  RE/RENM AR#9,800,0007T HERE

Yantai Goodaymart Electric PRC/ RMB30,000,000 - 51  Sale of home electric
Appliance Co., Ltd.** Mainland China appliances

EaBBIRERARAR hE,/hE R, AR ¥30,000,0007T HERE

Hefei Goodaymart Electric PRC/ RMB20,000,000 - 51 Sale of home electric
Appliance Co., Ltd.** Mainland China appliances

AIEBRIEERAR AR R,/ E R AR ¥20,000,0007T HERE

Hunan Goodaymart Electric PRC/ RMB10,000,000 - 51  Sale of home electric
Appliance Co., Ltd.** Mainland China appliances

HEARIEERERAR hE /R EAL AR #10,000,0007T HERE
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INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 20. RMIBARZRE (&)
Particulars of the principal subsidiaries are as follows: FEMBRABZERNT : (&)
(continued)
Place of Percentage of
incorporation/ Nominal value of equity directly
registration and issued ordinary/ attributable to
Name business registered capital the Company Principal activities
s, EROTLER ALREEEE
8 LA IR & it B ZfEAEE REBDL TEEH
Direct Indirect
HiE &
Xuchang Goodaymart Electric ~ PRC/ RMB10,000,000 - 51  Sale of home electric
Appliance Co., Ltd.™* Mainland China appliances
FEBRIREXRABRAF B/ B AK#10,000,0007T HEXE
Suzhou Goodaymart Electric PRC/ RMB10,000,000 - 61 Sale of home electric
Appliance Co., Ltd.** Mainland China appliances
HNBBIEERERAR B/ BB AR #10,000,0007 HEXRE
Fujian Goodaymart Electric PRC/ RMB9,800,000 - 51  Sale of home electric
Appliance Co.,Ltd. ** Mainland China appliances
BEBRIREXRFRA A Bl hE Rt AK#9,800,0007T HERE
Wenzhou Goodaymart Electric ~ PRC/ RMB6,000,000 - 51  Sale of home electric
Appliance Co., Ltd. ** Mainland China appliances
BB BIRERER AR B/ R ERL AR¥6,000,0007T HEXE
Liaoning Goodaymart PRC/ RMB10,000,000 - 51  Sale of home electric
Trading Co., Ltd. ** Mainland China appliances
FERARIEFRBEARD A BB AR 10,000,000 HERE
Xinjiang Goodaymart Electric PRC/ RMB 10,000,000 - 51  Sale of home electric
Appliance Co., Ltd.** Mainland China appliances
MEHRIRERERAR Bl hE Rt AR #10,000,0007T HERE

I

g

-
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20.

INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 200 AMBARZRE (&)
Particulars of the principal subsidiaries are as follows: FEMBRABZERNT : (&)
(continued)
Place of Percentage of
incorporation/ Nominal value of equity directly
registration and issued ordinary/ attributable to
Name business registered capital the Company Principal activities
A BERTEER/ FAREEEG
8 LA IR it B HEMEREE REBDL TEEH
Direct Indirect
EE &
Nanchang Goodaymart Electric  PRC/ RMB5,000,000 - 51  Sale of home electric
Appliance Co., Ltd.** Mainland China appliances
MERHIRERERD A B/ R ER AR 5,000,000 HERE
Jiangsu Subei Goodaymart PRC/ RMB10,000,000 - 51 Sale of home electric
Electric Appliance Mainland China appliances
Co., Ltd.**
TEFILARIRERBRAR™  hE/ HENM AR 10,000,000 HEXE
Tangshan Goodaymart PRC/ RMB6,000,000 - 51  Sale of home electric
Electric Appliance Mainland China appliances
Co., Ltd.**
EILRBIESRARD A R/ HE R AR #6,000,0007 HERE
Shanxi Goodaymart PRC/ RMB 10,000,000 - 51 Sale of home electric
Electric Appliance Mainland China appliances
Co., Ltd.**
WA AIEEEERA R hE,hE R, AR #10,000,0007T HERE
Wuhan Goodaymart PRC/ RMB10,000,000 - 51  Sale of home electric
Electric Appliance Mainland China appliances
Co., Ltd.**
REHRIEERAERAF R,/ E R, AR¥10,000,0007T HERE
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INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 200 AMBARZRE (&)
Particulars of the principal subsidiaries are as follows: FEMBRABZERNT : (&)
(continued)
Place of Percentage of
incorporation/ Nominal value of equity directly
registration and issued ordinary/ attributable to
Name business registered capital the Company Principal activities
s, BRTEER/ FLAREEES
8 LA IR & it B HEMEREE REBDL TEEH
Direct Indirect
EE &
SHC International (HK) Limited ~ Hong Kong HK$1,000,000 - 63 Export sales
of small home
electric appliances
weER (B%) BRAA 30 1,000,000 7T HAHEENKE
Ocean Vast Enterprises Limited  British Virgin Islands/ USD50,000 - 51  Export sales of
Hong Kong small home electric
appliances ’!
BBRCEBRAA KBRS/ 50,0003 7T HOHEENRE
& ’
Sunlit Enterprise British Virgin Islands/ USD200,000 - 51 Export sales of
International Ltd. Mainland China small home electric
appliances
BrEEERERAF EBRRHS/ 200,000% 7T HOHENKE
B A
Haier International Business Hong Kong HK$10,000,000 - 100  Export sales of
Corporation Limited small home electric
appliances
BRBRELERAA BE 10,000,000 7T HOHENRE
Haier Group E-commerce PRC/ RMB37,500,000 - 80 Online sales of
Co., Ltd.** (note) Mainland China Haier branded home
electric appliances
SREEETHEBEARAR" @/ FENN AR¥37,500,0007 Breesmaezs 221

(Hit)
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20. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 20. RMIBARZRE (&)
Particulars of the principal subsidiaries are as follows: FEMBRABZERNT : (&)
(continued)
Place of Percentage of
incorporation/ Nominal value of equity directly
registration and issued ordinary/ attributable to
Name business registered capital the Company Principal activities
A BERTEER/ FAREEEG
8 LA IR it B HEMEREE REBDL TEEH
Direct Indirect
EE &
Zhucheng Goodaymart PRC/ RMB2,000,000 - 26"  Sale of home electric
Electric Appliance Mainland China appliances
Co., Ltd.**
FHABIESRERECAA™ B/ FERM AR2,000,0007T HEXE
Yanzhou Goodaymart Electric ~ PRC/ RMB2,000,000 - 26"  Sale of home electric
Appliance Co., Ltd.** Mainland China appliances
RMBEBIEERARA R B,/ hE R AR#2,000,0007T HERE
Rizao Lingyun Goodaymart PRC/ RMB2,000,000 - 26"  Sale of home electric
Electric Appliance Mainland China appliances
Co., Ltd.**
BRZEHBIRERERAR  HE/ HREAH AR #2,000,0007 HEXE
Jining Goodaymart Electric PRC/ RMB2,000,000 - 26"  Sale of home electric
Appliance Co., Ltd.** Mainland China appliances
BERARIEERBRD A B,/ hE Rt AR#2,000,0007T HERE
Taian Goodaymart PRC/ RMB2,000,000 - 26"  Sale of home electric
Electric Appliance Mainland China appliances
Co., Ltd.**
ZRZARESHRFERAA R/ RE R AR¥2,000,0007T HEXE
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INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 200 AMBARZRE (&)
Particulars of the principal subsidiaries are as follows: FEMBRABZERNT : (&)
(continued)
Place of Percentage of
incorporation/ Nominal value of equity directly
registration and issued ordinary/ attributable to
Name business registered capital the Company Principal activities
s, BRTEER/ FLAREEES
8 LA IR & it B HEMEREE REBDL TEEH
Direct Indirect
EE &
Jinan Goodaymart PRC/ RMB2,000,000 - 26"  Sale of home electric
Trading Co., Ltd.* Mainland China appliances
B A EIEREERA A Bl R ER AR #2,000,0007T HERE
Qufu Goodaymart Electric PRC/ RMB2,000,000 - 26*  Sale of home electric
Appliance Co., Ltd.** Mainland China appliances
HERBIEERERAF R/ B AR #2,000,0007 HERE
)
Qingdao Yatai Goodaymart PRC/ RMB2,000,000 - 26"  Sale of home electric
Electric Appliance Mainland China appliances y
Co., Ltd.**
E5HBIERRERERAF B/ REAM AR#2,000,0007T HERE
Laiwu Goodaymart Electric PRC/ RMB1,000,000 - 26*  Sale of home electric
Appliance Co., Ltd.** Mainland China appliances
RETARIEESERAA Bl E R AR#%1,000,0007T HEXE
Zibo Xinxing Goodaymart PRC/ RMB1,980,000 - 26%  Sale of home electric
Electric Appliance Mainland China appliances
Sales Co., Ltd.**
HEHERARIEERHEE B/ hE Rt AR #1,980,0007 HEXE
BRAR
Yuncheng Sanlian Home PRC/ RMB2,000,000 - 26%  Sale of home electric
Appliance Co., Ltd.** Mainland China appliances
BH=HREERAA R/ B AR #2,000,0007 HERE

223
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20. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 200 AMBLARZRE (&)
Particulars of the principal subsidiaries are as follows: TEWNBATIZERWNT : (&)
(continued)
Place of Percentage of
incorporation/ Nominal value of equity directly
registration and issued ordinary/ attributable to
Name business registered capital the Company Principal activities
s, BERATEER/ AAREEEN
=L AL R S B HEMEREE REBD L TEEH
Direct Indirect
E# B
Changshu Suchang Electric PRC/ RMB3,000,000 - 31%  Sale of home electric
Appliance Sales Co., Ltd.** Mainland China appliances
FATHEERHERRAT  HEPEAM AR#%3,000,0007T HEXE
Qingdao Goodaymart Home PRC/ RMB21,000,000 - 100  Provision of furniture
Furnishing Service Co., Ltd.** Mainland China installation and
logistic services
ERARBRERBERAR  HE/TEAM AR¥21,000,0007T REGEBZERDR
AR 7%
Qingdao Haier New Energy PRC/ RMB 150,000,000 - 100 Manufacture and sale
Electronics Co., Ltd.*** Mainland China of water heaters
ERERMRERERERAR™  HE/TEAM AR #150,000,0007 HE RSB RKR
Designwelt Limited*** PRC/ Euro300,000 - 100  Furniture design and
Mainland China E-commerce
ARFERTHA (L8) R/ ERL 300,0008(7T RERFTRETES
BRAR
Suzhou Haipeng E-commerce PRC/ RMB5,000,000 - 56  Online sales of home
Limited** Mainland China electric appliances
ENTENETEBERRAR> B/ HERM AR¥5,000,0007 MLHERE
Qingdao Goodaymart Lejia Jiaju PRC/ RMB5,000,000 - 100 Sale of home furniture
Trading Co., Ltd.** Mainland China and other products
HEBBIEERREE S B,/ E A AR ¥5,000,0007T HEFARAMER
BRAR
Jiangsu Goodaymart Huadong ~ PRC/ RMB10,000,000 = 60 Provision of logistics
Logistic Co., Ltd.** Mainland China service
IHABIEERYRERAR  hE/HEAL A& #10,000,0007T REIRIRS
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Note:

Registered as a Sino-foreign equity joint venture
enterprise under PRC law

Registered as a limited liability company under PRC law

Registered as a wholly-foreign-owned enterprise under
PRC law

They are subsidiaries of non-wholly-owned subsidiaries
of the Company and, accordingly, are accounted for
as subsidiaries by virtue of the Company’s control over
them.

In June 2011, Qingdao New Goodaymart Logistics
Ltd. (“Qingdao NG”), a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Group, entered into structure contracts,

Service Co.,

including a loan agreement, option agreement, exclusive
equity pledge
agreement and power of attorney, with Haier Corp and

business cooperation agreement,

Haier Group E-commerce Co., Ltd. (“E-commerce”), a
then wholly-owned subsidiary of Haier Corp. According
to the structure contracts, Qingdao NG agreed to grant
to Haier Corp an interest-free loan of RMB30,000,000,
which is secured by the equity interests in E-commerce
held by Haier Corp. Qingdao NG has been granted an
exclusive irrevocable option to purchase part or all of
the equity interests in E-commerce. Haier Corp entrusts
all of its shareholder right in E-commerce to Qingdao
NG. The Group has contractual rights to exercise its
power over E-commerce’s operation and has rights
to obtain the economic benefits from E-commerce, as
well as exposes its risks incidental to the activities of
E-commerce. Accordingly, E-commerce is accounted for
as a subsidiary by virtual of the Group’s control over it.

In September 2012, Qingdao NG, Haier Corp, E-commerce
and an individual entered into a capital subscription
According to the capital subscription
contract, E-commerce increased its registered capital
from RMB10,000,000 to RMB37,500,000, of which
RMB20,000,000 was contributed by Haier Corp, which
was financed by Qingdao NG through an interest-free
loan of the same amount, and RMB7,500,000 by that
individual. Accordingly, the interest of E-commerce
controlled by Qingdao NG was reduced to 80%.

contract.
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20.

21.

22.

INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 200 AMBARZRE (&)
The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company ERAINZARRIMBRARIEERAEE
which, in the opinion of the directors, principally affected BEYEREBAFE 2 EEAKREE
the results for the year or formed a substantial portion EEFEFTEX» 2HBAR - EEFR
of the net assets of the Group. To give details of other & HVHEMMB AR SEERATBR
subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the directors, result T °
in particulars of excessive length.
AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS 21. TAHEBERE
2013 2012
—E-= —F——F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T R AREFTT
Unlisted equity investments, at cost JEETMIRAILE - A 2,925 2,925
As at the end of reporting period, all of the Group’s RBEER NEEREAIHHERET)

available-for-sale investments were stated at cost less
impairment because the range of reasonable fair value
estimates is so significant that the directors are of the
opinion that their fair values cannot be measured reliably.
The Group does not intend to dispose of them in the near
future.

WRABEMRESE  REZMGEAE
AFEZBERA EFR/EQFEDS
RS E - AREESERTAKKL
ERFAHLERE -

INVENTORIES 22. FE

Group AEE
2013 2012
—E—= —ET—_F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARBFIT
Raw materials R 50,677 110,111
Work in progress & m 35,695 26,703
Finished goods SIRK om 2,805,215 2,342,377
2,891,587 2,479,191
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=F+_-_A=+—H

INVENTORIES (continued) 22. BE
Group (continued) REE (&)
At 31 December 2013, the Group’s inventories FANEF ISR M8 — FHEfat - M=
with a carrying amount of RMB61,540,000 (2012: —=F+=-A=+—H8 ' rX&EKREES
RMB76,740,000) were pledged as security for the Group’s AR#61,540,00070 (ZE—=—F : AR
borrowings as further detailed in note 28 to the financial #76,740,0000) MIFEEEAAEEE
statements. EMEAmEER -
TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES 23. RUWERREERE
Group AEE
2013 2012
—E—=%F —E——4F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%T ARBTFIT
Trade and bills receivables FERBR R R E 7,563,356 6,924,088
Impairment NERIE] (4,436) _
7,558,920 6,924,088
The Group’s trading terms with its customers are mainly ZFE@ BEZENBEZGIAEESR
on credit, except for new customers, where payment 2 f’%%ﬁﬁ\ﬁﬁw\ BB AERMNK
in advance is normally required. The credit period is cEEHBEA—M@A XEXFZE

generally one month, extending up to three months for
major customers. Each customer has a maximum credit
limit. The Group seeks to maintain strict control over its
outstanding receivables to minimise credit risk. Overdue
balances are reviewed regularly by senior management.
In view of the aforementioned and the fact that the Group’s
trade receivables relate to a large number of diversified
customers, there is no significant concentration of credit
risk. The Group does not hold any collateral or other
credit enhancements over its trade receivable balances.
Trade receivables are non-interest-bearing.

ﬁﬁﬂﬁyTL?tEflﬂ c BEPHAEE
H ERR - REBB N EREEIE R AR E
FEURFARIEEERR - BARESRES
REEETE RN - EN EAARAKEE

JRE Wi B ok £ mﬁ%ﬁ{tgﬁﬁﬁﬁ © ER
EXETNEERR - AKEYERZSE
& o B R A ﬁ%%*ﬁfﬂ—ﬁfﬁﬁﬂfﬂiﬂﬁ”@%%

RIHGEM - RUBRFRIAL TE S -

I

g

-
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23.

TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES (continued)

An aged analysis of the trade receivables as at the end

BURERERRREE (&)
RBEMREBURARZREZEZBEHD

of the reporting period, based on the invoice date, is as T
follows:
Group REE
2013 2012
—E—=fF —E——4F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARBFIT
Trade receivables: FEUBR N
Within 1 month 1HE AR 1,615,539 1,258,157
1 to 2 months 1221 A 479,679 90,325
2 to 3 months 2% 31E A 255,945 147,785
Over 3 months 8B 31E A 145,430 430,184
2,496,593 1,926,451
Bills receivable e IR 5,062,327 4,997,637
7,558,920 6,924,088
The movements in provision for impairment of trade FEWBR TR E R 2 BB T -
receivables are as follows:
Group rEE
2013 2012
—E-= —FE—=F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T R AREEF T
At 1 January m—H—H - _
Impairment losses recognised (note 6) BERERBEEE (Hite6) 4,436 _
As at 31 December W+=A=+—8 4,436 _
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TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES (continued) 23. ERERERREE (&)
Included in the above provision for impairment of trade ST A LA _E 8 U BR BB (B s = (B Bl B R B
receivables is a provision for individually impaired trade JE UG BR T B A R #54,436,0007T (=F—
receivables of RMB4,436,000 (2012: Nil) with a carrying ZF | EREICEEEARARK
amount before provision of RMB23,343,000 (2012: Nil). 23,343,0007C (= ZF——4F : ) o
The individually impaired trade receivables relate to &l 5l 2 R E 2 B 5 FE W BR 5K 5 BR 17 1 B 7%
customers that were in financial difficulties and only a NEt v RFEHR - TBEAES D ERERR
portion of the receivables is expected to be recovered. A T Y[E] o
The aged analysis of the trade and bills receivables that 1 B1) 2% FE [7] S 8 455 47 5 0 (B2 JIE WL AR 3 %
are not individually nor collectively considered to be EBRZERROTIT -
impaired is as follows:
Group AEHE
2013 2012
—E—=F —E—F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%T AREEFTT
Neither past due nor impaired RBH R ARE 7,436,417 6,493,904
Less than 1 year past due BHER DR — 97,811 421,300
1 to 2 years past due B —EME 5,785 8,884
7,540,013 6,924,088

Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired
relate to customers for whom there was no recent history
of default.

Receivables that were past due but not impaired relate
to a number of customers that have a good track record
with the Group. Based on past experience, the directors
of the Company are of the opinion that the provision for
impairment is adequate in respect of these balances as
there has not been a significant change in credit quality
and the balances are still considered fully recoverable.

R8N R ORME 2 R MR IR B AT HA P R R
RISz EPAR -

BhEE RORME 2 ERHOB RS 2R A
EEERBRIT RO A - RIEBEE
% AAREERARZSEBIEHOR
ERERR BAGHEZI&EAS
B MAEERDERAT2HKE -

I

g

-
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23. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES (continued) 23.

Included in the Group’s trade and bills receivables
are amounts due from Haier Affiliates amounting to
RMB898,354,000 (2012: RMB660,109,000), which are
repayable on similar credit terms to those offered to
the major customers of the Group. Further details of the
sales to these related parties are set out in note 14 to the
financial statements.

At 31 December 2013, certain of the Group’s bills
receivable of approximately RMB76,842,000 (2012:
RMB122,809,000) were pledged to secure certain of the
Group’s bills payable (note 26).

BWERRRRE (&)

AREBZEKEREZEOEREKEH
B4 |8 A ) 5 IB A E A R 898,354,000
(ZZT—=—%: AR*660,109,0007)
R EBREKTAEBRETERF ZEE
BREEZEEKREE - EERAZSE
HEATHEZEMFBRRAM B RE
BisE14 ©

R-ZE—=F+"_A=+—"H ~&EEE
TRKEELN AR%T76,842,000T (=ZF
——%F : AR#122,809,0007T) EEH#H
NERAREB S TREMNEE (H5E26) o

24. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER 24. FBENFRE- - ZeRHEMEWERR
RECEIVABLES
Group Company
EE KA
2013 2012 2013 2012
—E—=F T4 —Eg—= —T—F
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTR AREKTT AR%TR AR®TT
Prepayments AR IR 1,069,641 775,554 250 243
Deposits e 24,627 650 633 650
Other receivables H A e W AR 440,461 444,683 23,424 14,911
1,534,729 1,220,887 24,307 15,804
Impairment A (11) (13,669) - =
1,534,718 1,207,218 24,307 15,804
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PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER 24, FEMNRE - RERHEMEWIRR (&)
RECEIVABLES (continued)
The movements in provision for impairment of other HA U RFORER B 2 2B T
receivables are as follows:
Group Company
KEH AATE
2013 2012 2013 2012
—B—=F T —E—= —E—_F
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTR AE¥BTT AR%®TR AR¥TH
At 1 January R—H—H 13,669 9441 - _
Impairment losses R EEE
recognised (note 6) (H1:#6) = 4,965 = =
Impairment losses OB &S
reversed (note 6) (Kizte) - (737)
Impairment losses T SH R (B e 18
write-off (13,658) - - -
As at 31 December Rt-—HA=+—H 11 13,669 — -

Except for other receivables amounting to RMB11,000
(2012: RMB13,669,000) included in the above balance,
none of the above assets is either past due or impaired.
Other than the aforementioned impaired receivables, the
financial assets included in the above balances relate
to receivables for which there was no recent history of
default.

Included in the Group’s prepayments, deposits and
other receivables are amounts due from Haier Affiliates
amounting to RMB540,731,000 (2012: RMB512,331,000),
which are unsecured, interest-free and are repayable on
demand.

Br bt 4 8 P B 3R 2 E A B URBR 3k A
R®¥1100c(Z 2 —=—F: AR
13,669,0007T) #b - Lt & EHE & E 8 2
HERE - B Ltz BIREZ ERERR
O - B AERRFTBAE 2 B IS A B RN R
R ER 2 FEWER XA A -

REBZEMNKIE - B & E i EKER
RERBEEVEREBARREBESHIAR
#540,731,000C (Z T ——F: AR
512,331,0007T) ° KB AEEKF - 28
MIZBAEE -

g

-
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25. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 25. RERRELZEEEAE
Group Company
I LN
2013 2012 2013 2012

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTR ARETT AR¥TR ARETT

Cash and bank balances & KIRTTHESR 5,167,110 4,038,756 154,025 19,003
Time deposits TEEATE R 1,877,562 1,391,356 785,003 1,046,403
7,044,672 5,430,112 939,028 1,065,406

Less: deposits pledged & © BLERT REE A

for bills payable OKER N

(note 26) (Hiat26) (220,350) (61,804) - _
Cash and cash equivalents IR& MRS EEIAR 6,824,322 5,368,308 939,028 1,065,406
At the end of the reporting period, the cash and bank RBEHAR XEEUAARBHEZR
balances and time deposits of the Group denominated CRBITEHRURTEHAERRARKE
in RMB amounted to RMB6,704,016,000 (2012: 6,704,016,000c (= ——F : AR
RMB4,718,226,000). The RMB is not freely convertible 4,718,226,0007T) - AR¥ET R B B X #&
into other currencies, however, under Mainland China’s REMEE - BREP E A M 2 INEE IR
Foreign Exchange Control Regulations and Administration GO R CAETE - SERMNIEFTEHRE) - K
of Settlement, Sale and Payment of Foreign Exchange SE A FEEERTETIMERK 2 RI1TH
Regulations, the Group is permitted to exchange RMB AREHMBEME

for other currencies through banks authorised to conduct
foreign exchange business.

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on FRIBITZESBREERRITERMER
daily bank deposit rates. Short term time deposits are F B AR BREUFI B o 52 HAE AT R AR
made for varying periods within one year depending on SEZAKREeFRMO B —FAZAR
the immediate cash requirement of the Group, and earn TR - 1248 B A E B 3R =R R ER A
interest at the respective short term time deposit rates. B IRITHEER R B B 17 5 i I & 3R
The bank balances and pledged deposits are deposited HR A8 2 (5B RIFIRIT S RIS -

with creditworthy banks or financial institutions with no
232 recent history of default.
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26.

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (continued)

Included in the Group’s cash and cash equivalents
are deposits of approximately RMB732,396,000 (2012:
RMB732,317,000) placed with Haier Group Finance Co.,
Ltd. (“Haier Finance”), a financial institution approved
by the People’s Bank of China. The interest rate on these
deposits ranged from 0.385%-3.3% per annum. Further
details of the interest income attributable to the deposits
placed with Haier Finance are set out in note 14 to the
financial statements.

TRADE AND BILLS PAYABLES

An aged analysis of the trade payables as at the end of
the reporting period, based on the invoice date, is as
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25.

26.

RERBRESEHEER (&)

AEBZBRESERESEEER BETHR
BREEMBEREEAR (DERMS])
Z1FEH 4 AR #732,396,0005T (= F —
—4F : AR¥732,317,0007T) * BEIHIE
APBEARBITRA M BEHEE - ZFTF
RZERENT 50.385EE3.3E - A7
TR 8 B B 165 2 17 SR PB4 2 R S IR A E
B E R I KT E14 o

BAERRRRE

RIFERREMNERZRRIZEZEHS
o

follows:
Group AEE
2013 2012
—ET—= —E——4F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARBTIT
Trade payables: FETBREK :
Within 1 month 1EARN 2,080,386 2,205,948
1 to 2 months 12218 A 539,491 65,350
2 to 3 months 2E3fE A 114,846 49,899
Over 3 months tEA31E A 183,361 229,381
2,918,084 2,550,578
Bills payable ANES 284,217 410,926
3,202,301 2,961,504

The trade and bills payables are non-interest-bearing
and are normally settled on credit terms ranging from 30
to 180 days.

EANEREZEZENFE  —RIENT
302 180H 2 IZEHIEE -

I

g
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26.

27.

TRADE AND BILLS PAYABLES (continued) 26. FENERIRRERE (&)
Included in the Group’s trade payables are amounts due AEE 7 ENRKEIEEN GRS AR
to Haier Affiliates amounting to RMB1,669,880,000 (2012: FIE BB ARA,669,880,0007T (=& —
RMB1,556,523,000), which are repayable on similar credit — & : AR#¥1,556,523,0007T) * %3 E
terms to those offered by other similar suppliers of the AIREAMABEHERG TASEES 2
Group. Further details of the purchases from these related EEBRNREE FHERNZEEEATRE
parties are set out in note 14 to the financial statements. L EAMFEE N R E14 -
Certain of the Group’s bills payable are secured by REBETRAEBRARNEE ZRITFRK
the pledge of the Group’s bank deposits amounting to AR #220,350,0007c (ZF——F : A
RMB220,350,000 (2012: RMB61,804,000) and the Group’s K ¥61,804,0007T) RAEE 2 EKRZEE
bills receivable amounting to RMB76,842,000 (2012: AR#76,842,0007C (ZZE—=—F : AR
RMB122,809,000). #122,809,0007T ) {EHIH o
OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS 27. HtEMNERIRESEE
Group Company
REE NN
2013 2012 2013 2012
—B—=fF —E——F —=E—= —E—-—F
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTR ARBTT AR%Tx AR%Tx
Other payables H i E ST BR K 6,147,009 5,031,352 131,825 36,944
Accruals EEtBE 1,629,244 1,463,276 - =
7,776,253 6,494,628 131,825 36,944

Other payables are non-interest-bearing and have an
average credit term of three months.

Included in the Group’s other payables and accruals
are amounts due to Haier Affiliates amounting to
RMB924,066,000 (2012: RMB1,483,862,000). These
amounts are unsecured, interest-free and are repayable
on demand.

HEMERTAMNERFAEEHR=
@A -

AEBzZHEMENERREFAER
REMNEBEHBARNREAARE
924,066,000 (=T — —F: AR ¥
1,483,862,0007T ) ° 7% 35 5018 A A -
RERLBAERER -
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—_ =

INTEREST-BEARING BORROWINGS 28. FTERBE
Group AEHE
2013 2012
—E-=F —E——fF
Effective Effective
interest interest
rate (%) Maturity RMB’000 rate (%) Maturity ~ RMB’000
BERFI%E% HE AR¥TR EBRNE% HE ARBTT
Current E
Bank loans - unsecured SR{TER — EEH 1.74 - 1.80 2014 81,568 - - -
Other loans - unsecured B E K — EEH 1.96 - 2.04 2014 41,065 = = =
Other loans - secured &R — HHER 6.00 2014 37,000 6.00 2013 39,800
159,633 39,800
2013 2012
—EB-=F —F——F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ET T ARBTT
- o s /
Borrowings repayable: ARATRBEZEZEE :
Within one year or on demand —F RN izE A 159,633 39,800
Notes: Mt -
(a) The Group’s unsecured bank loans are guaranteed by (a) P Z I ITIRIT RN B A R 7R &
fellow subsidiaries of the Company. 118 12 A2 R IEAR
(b) The Group’s unsecured other loans are guaranteed by (6) AL 2 SR B G RE L
Haier Corp. AIFERIEIR ©
(c) The Group’s secured other loans are secured by floating (c) rEE ﬁﬁfﬁﬁ/ﬂﬁ_ﬁ’%ﬁ%@é@%&
charges over certain of the Group’s inventories totalling BARKE61,540, 00_073 (=F—=F:
RMB61,540,000 (2012: RMB76,740,000). AKK76,740,0007T) 2 & F iz B1EL
JFENFFCIELR -
(d) Except for the secured other loans which are denominated (d) 5 BB FR M BH XA LB ES) AT

in RMB, all borrowings are in United States dollars.

235
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28.

29.

30.

INTEREST-BEARING BORROWINGS (continued)

The Group’s other loans are borrowed from Haier Finance.
Further details of the interest expenses attributable to the
borrowings from Haier Finance are set out in note 14 to
the financial statements.

DUE TO NON-CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS

The loans borrowed from non-controlling shareholders are
unsecured, interest-free and are repayable on demand.

PUT OPTION LIABILITIES

In prior years, the Company entered into incentive
agreements with certain non-controlling shareholders
of subsidiaries pursuant to which the non-controlling
shareholders of subsidiaries agreed to meet the
prescribed financial and operational performance targets
of the non-wholly-owned subsidiaries laid down by the
Company and the Company agreed to grant put options
to these non-controlling shareholders of subsidiaries. In
accordance with the terms of the incentive agreements
and subject to the fulfilment of the prescribed financial
and operational performance targets at the relevant
financial year ends during the tenures of the put options,
these non-controlling shareholders of subsidiaries would
be entitled to exercise the put options to require the
Company to purchase part or the entire equity interests
(not already owned by the Group) in the non-wholly-
owned subsidiaries at prices to be determined based on
the agreed formula.

The put option liabilities are carried at fair value. The
subsequent change in the carrying amount of the put
option liabilities is adjusted against the put option reserve.

28.

29.

30.

FFEEE (&)

AEBRMEFGERBRATBEAZE
Ko MERPBEANZERENE2MEX
HZ b EHN P RRME14

FEAY SRR R IR SRR IA

FIFERBREAZERREERN - 28
KB ERERE -

whERE

RIARIEE - AR R EE T E QB IEE
PR BCRET LA B 958 - Btk - B A R)3E
ZRRRE B ERARAGIFIZIEEEM
BRAZARUBREERREE  MA
PAGILUE ARSNGB 22 8 e
H R HIHE - RIBABE B IGERRBEFR
ok R ERIR A 2 AE R B B AR R R A AT
Az BEREERREE  ZEWERF
IRE R AR B 1T (2 0h B A B SRR
AEREHEAABENERBEARE
WABEZIFE2EMBARNE DR
Pt

RonHEA BN TESIE - RLHESR
BEREE L REHN R HEREA
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32.

SHARE-BASED PAYMENT LIABILITIES

During the year, eight management members of
E-commerce (the “E-commerce Management”’) were
granted 9% equity interests in E-commerce under certain
conditions, including three-year service contracts with
E-commerce. Upon the fulfillment of the prescribed
financial targets by E-commerce, the E-commerce
Management has the right to sell their granted equity
interests in E-commerce to the Group at prices to be

determined based on the agreed formula.

The share-based payment liabilities and the corresponding
costs are measured by reference to the fair value of
the equity interests granted, and are recognised over
the period in which the performance and/or service
conditions are fulfilled.

CONVERTIBLE BONDS

On 24 August 2011, the Company issued 100,000,000 3%
convertible bonds with the exercise price of HK$10.67
per share for a nominal value of HK$1,067,000,000
(equivalent to RMB874,375,000), plus 40,000,000
warrants with the exercise price of HK$11.20 each. There
was no movement in the number of these convertible
bonds during the year. The bonds are convertible into
100,000,000 ordinary shares of the Company at the option
of the bondholders on or after 18 months after the issue
date and up to seven days prior to the fifth anniversary of
the issue date. The bonds carry interest at a rate of 3%
per annum, which is payable half-yearly in arrears on 30
June and 31 December.
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31.

32.

DR AER ZNIREE

FR ETEBNNREEENE ([
BEEEE]) REETHRT (BREE T
BRATLRM=F2REEH) EXE
BT Z9%MHE - NEFE 5 EKIEEM
BREREK EFRBEEEARESRE
P E 2 AT AEE 2 BIRMASEE L
ENFERZETRGRE -

ABHD RERE 2 I RBEREEEKART
KR2EZRRBREZNTEFE  WREK
BRERBER, SRS G2 SRR T AR

e

AR R E 35

R-ZE——FE A NA=-+mAE " XA
% 17100,000,0001 F E3E &k & & 1T
F{EAR1067F T2 A RRES  HE
#1,067,000,000% 7T (FH E R AR
874,375,0007T) * SHNIFEE1T40,000,000
DEMNITEE R 208 THRBESE -
FR - ZEABRRES 2B BEEAE
B o BEHA AREERETHBRETW
18ERAZZ AR CEEERTAHRZE
AEBAFLSBEAL  BZEESS
#2547 A &]100,000,0000% & 3@ A% - 3% &
BHRFESIETE - RITZFBEERS
A=+BRER+=-A=1+—HBB*FIHH—

N

R e
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32.

CONVERTIBLE BONDS (continued) 32.

The fair value of the liability component of convertible
bonds amounting to RMB665,426,000 was estimated at
the issuance date using an equivalent market interest
rate for a similar bond without a conversion option and
warrants granted. The residual amount was assigned as
the equity component of convertible bonds amounting
to RMB149,249,000 and warrant reserve amounting to
RMB59,700,000 and is included in shareholders’ equity.

The movement of the liability component of convertible
bonds is as follows:

R ES (&)

RREFZBEBD 2 ATFEARARK
665,426,0007T * T3 E1THELA RN AE
HEEERZEUESRERDRRES
ZEEMSHERGE - FgpSmEBERE AT
% & 5 A R #149,249,0007T & 2 A% #
B RS ARE59,700,0007T 2 ED
Wt AR R 2 ©

ABRESF BB 2EBNT
2013 2012
== —E——4F
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®BTR ARETTT

At 1 January R—H—H 699,643 669,849
Interest expense (note 7) MEZH (K:77) 63,238 61,631
Interest paid ERHE (25,375) (26,037)
Exchange realignment HE 5, e B (20,671) (5,800)
At 31 December Rt+=-—A=+—H 716,835 699,643
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33. PROVISIONS 33. B
Group AEHE
Product warranties
and installation
ERRERTHE
2013 2012
—E—=F —E——4F
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
k=3 AR¥T AREEF T
At 1 January m—A—H 801,215 691,410
Additional provision FrIg 6 688,788 677,543
Amounts utilised during the year FRNEBHEHE (649,868) (567,738)
At 31 December W+=ZA=+—8 840,135 801,215
Portion classified as TEREBEZH D
current liabilities (537,244) (534,331)
Non-current portion IEREE D 302,891 266,884

The Group provides installation services and warranties of
three to eight years to its customers on washing machines
and water heaters, under which faulty products are
repaired or replaced. The amount of the provision for the
warranties is estimated based on sales volume and past

: : . . E2T o
experience of the level of installation services rendered, &7

repairs and returns. The estimation basis is reviewed on
an ongoing basis and revised where appropriate.

AEERNESRERTERERAH=EN
FrHKMPIKBRE AHEZER
TERERTS - RERESERBER
PR R R IR - 15 RREKT A4
5 o AR EERERT  BREE Y

\
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34. DEFERRED TAX

The movements in deferred tax assets and deferred tax

34. RIEHIF

FREEHRAEEREERAAGBE

liabilities during the year are as follows: wmr
Deferred tax assets EEHIEEE
Group AEHE
2013
—E-=&
Accruals
and Unrealised
payables  Provisions profits Others Total
EftEER
FE {3 BR X &g REBBER Hitr @zt
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T AR®TR AR®ET AR®TT AR¥TR
At 1 January R—HA—H 344,715 101,233 - 9,686 455,634
Deferred tax credited/ ENEERRRER/
(charged) to the statement ~ (HIf}) ZERHIE
of profit or loss during (Bi£10)
the year (note 10) 78,282 (24,490) 58,680 24,550 137,022
At 31 December Rt=ZRA=+—H 422,997 76,743 58,680 34,236 592,656
2012
—E-—-fF
Accruals Unrealised
and payables Provisions profits Others Total
EEtEER
FERTER R BE  KEREN Hith @ar
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000
AEETL AREBTTL AEETL AREFTL AREBFTL
At 1 January m—A—H 293,431 79,393 - 9,818 382,642
Deferred tax credited/ FREBRRER/
(charged) to the statement ~ (HIf%) ZERHIE
of profit or loss during (Kiit10)
the year (note 10) 51,284 21,840 - (132) 72,992
At 31 December R+ZA=+—8 344,715 101,233 - 9,686 455,634
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DEFERRED TAX (continued) 34, EEFIE (Z)
Deferred tax liabilities EERIEE F
Withholding tax
BB
2013 2012
—E—=%F —E——%F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARBFIT
At 1 January R—A—H 8,755 8,826
Exchange realignment IS (252) (71)
At 31 December R+=—A=+—H 8,503 8,755

The Group has tax losses arising in Hong Kong of
RMB59,450,000 (2012: RMB29,362,000) that are
available indefinitely for offsetting against future taxable
profits of the companies in which the losses arose. The
Group also has tax losses arising in Mainland China of
RMB757,239,000 (2012: RMB678,677,000) that will expire
in one to five years for offsetting against future taxable
profits. Deferred tax assets have not been recognised
in respect of these losses as they have arisen in the
Company and subsidiaries that have been loss-making for
some time and it is not considered probable that taxable
profits will be available against which the tax losses can
be utilised.

AEBREBSEAZHREBEREAAR
#650,450,000c (ZZE ——F: AR¥
29,362,0007T) * At MR K S 5% &
EEEBEBZARBEERTGEN - A&
ERPBEAEEZHIEBEAARK
757,239,000 (Z T —ZF: AR ¥
678,677,0007T) * MM —Z 5 A fE i A
B EH AR ERM RN - BRNIEERIBEEE
REARRREBZREZHERR @ #utk
WERZEEEBRECHBEE  MA
NAIRABA LB A TEIA 2 FER T =T
LASKSHA] T2 2 T TE g8 o

g

-
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34.

=f+=-A=+—H

DEFERRED TAX (continued)

Pursuant to the PRC Corporate Income Tax Law, a
10% withholding tax is levied on dividends declared to
foreign investors from the foreign investment enterprises
established in Mainland China. The requirement is
effective from 1 January 2008 and applies to earnings
after 31 December 2007. A lower withholding tax rate
may be applied if there is a tax treaty between Mainland
China and the jurisdiction of the foreign investors. For the
Group, the applicable rate is 10%. The Group is therefore
liable to withholding taxes on dividends distributed by
those subsidiaries established in Mainland China in
respect of earnings generated from 1 January 2008.

Except for the deferred tax liabilities of RMB8,503,000
(2012: RMB8,755,000), which represent the withholding
taxes for the earnings of the PRC subsidiaries to be
remitted, as at 31 December 2013, no deferred tax has
been recognised for withholding taxes that would be
payable on the unremitted earnings that are subject to
withholding taxes of the Group’s subsidiaries established
In the opinion of the directors, it
is not probable that these subsidiaries will distribute
such earnings in the foreseeable future. The aggregate

in Mainland China.

amount of temporary differences associated with
investments in subsidiaries in Mainland China for which
deferred tax liabilities have not been recognised totalled
approximately RMB7,829,214,000 at 31 December 2013
(2012: RMB5,428,682,000).

There are no income tax consequences attaching to the
payment of dividends by the Company to its shareholders.

34.

IESEBLIR (42)

BEBEFBBEMEEE - RPBAMK L
ZHOBBRECERMIIEREESTSRZR
8 ' BIR10% 2 HEBWTEN - ZHRE
E_zvﬂi B—B#EER  WEAR
—EELE+ A=+ —BEZAF - 4
PR A EINGIREEMEREEREDE
S A HARKEZ BN X o
ANEBZEARERE10% - At » NEE
BREFBEAKIZMBARIE-ZT
NE—A—BRELEZEFmMDIRZKE
BTEIRL -

B iR FE 7 1A B & A R #8,503,0007T (=
T ——4%F: AR ®8,7550005) 7 (%
REATENBARBESTAFN BN
%m'%—?—:¢+—ﬂ:+—aw
AL BN E A 2 KB A RA
%HﬁﬁﬁZ*[ﬁ&ﬂ%ﬁzﬁmm
BRECEMEB -EFRAE ZSHWEAQ
BT KAREERAI R ARRDIRZERF -
HRFBERHHBARZRE R B mIELE
MBEABMARRAZEREZELEN_F
—ZFT A=+t HEHAORARK
7,829,214,000T (ZE—=—F : AR¥
5,428,682,0007T) °

25 B ) H AR SRR A 2 I B A Y A A
FriStiig R o
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35. EE{THE@

Group AEHE
Issued equity
ERTES
RMB’000
ARBTIT
At 1 January 2012 RZE——F—H—H 2,337,909
Exercise of share options 1T{E BB AR AR 58,334
Exercise of warrants TR R R 38,831
Issue of shares BT 66,107
At 31 December 2012 and beginning of year RZE——F+=A=1+T—HEKFH 2,501,181
Exercise of share options 1T{F B AR AR 195,676
Exercise of warrants 1T{E R 37,049
Issue of shares BT 27,848
At 31 December 2013 RZZE—=F+=A=+—H 2,761,754

Upon the completion of the Group reorganisation (the
“Reorganisation”) on 28 January 2005, Haier Group
became the controlling shareholders of the Company
through the injection of its equity interests in certain
subsidiaries (the “Relevant Subsidiaries”) principally
engaged in the manufacture and sale of top loading
washing machines and mobile phones to the Company.

BASEEA ((EA]) R-_TTRF—
AZTN\BZEXE  BREEEBIAK
BRETWBEAR ((HEMBAR] - £
RN FERUE R AR B 3HE R w2 R K
LBBERE) KRARAFZERER « )
o ARECREAFYERRERAKES
FAARR

Accordingly, the Group applied the reverse acquisition

basis of accounting to account for the effect of the

Reorganisation.

—
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35. ISSUED EQUITY (continued) 35. C#THE=R (&)
Under the reverse acquisition basis of accounting, the RIB MBI EHE - RS BRI A AR
amount of issued equity of the Group stated in the BUMBEARAR 2 AEE D EH TS 2
consolidated statement of financial position at the end of =

the reporting period represents:

2013 2012
—E-=f “2——F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR ARETT
(i) the amount of the issued capital, contributed (i) *E?E?%Fﬂﬂﬁlﬁﬁﬁéﬁﬁﬂiﬁ%@
surplus and capital reserves of the Relevant HHBLARR _ZER4F— A
Subsidiaries at 28 January 2005 acquired under the ZTHNBEEIRE  HAR
reverse acquisition basis of accounting, plus the BARBAFERESHE - S5
deemed purchase consideration (net of deemed EARBAZBERE (MK
distributions) in respect of the Reorganisation BRAIK) 852,599 852,599
(i) the amount of share capital (including share (i) ARARIRZZE R EHNEE
premium) of the Company issued for the acquisition ENFHEREEEHAEK
of certain subsidiaries principally engaged in the *%&mﬁ SZETHBARM
manufacture and sale of front loading washing BIOZRA (BEKRHEE)
machines and water heaters in 2006 &5 240,795 240,795
(iif) the changes in share capital and share premium (i) AR A B EAF I 2 RAR
of the Company since the Reorganisation, including: RINREEE B
o the repurchases of shares of the Company o AAREERR (1,147) (1,147)
o the exercise of share options of the Company o RARITEHERE 422,964 227,288
o the exercise of warrants of the Company o ARATERBIER 164,090 127,041
o the conversion of convertible bonds of the o ADNAHBAARES
Company 946,746 946,746
¢ the placement of shares of the Company, o FAREERR
net of share issue expenses (IR ETRX) 41,752 41,752
o the issue of shares of the Company in relationto ¢ ARAGERRB HH
the management services agreements (note 19) BRI (H1iE19) 84,877 66,107
o the issue of shares of the Company in relation o FARBUEBEHERRZ
to the acquisition of non-controlling interests in IR R BTG
subsidiaries (note 30) (H17#30) 9,078 =
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35. ISSUED EQUITY (continued) 35. BRTER (&)
Company P NN
2013 2012
—E2—= —T——F
HK$°000 HK$’000
Shares igv) T T FHBTT
Authorised: JARE ¢
30,000,000,000 shares 30,000,000,0000%
of HK$0.1 each FREE 0. 18T Z&ip 3,000,000 3,000,000
2013 2012
“E-=F —=—=F
HK$°000 RMB’000 HK$'000 RMB'000
FERT ARET Tt ARETFTT
equivalent equivalent
£E8 EE
Issued and fully paid: BEETEHR -
2,571,958,015 2,571,958,0150%
(2012: 2,448,614,277) —E—-F:
shares of HK$0.1 each 2,448,614,2770%)
SREEE 0.1787T
el 3h) 257,196 257,524 244 861 247,686
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35. ISSUED EQUITY (continued) 35. EBRTHEz (&)
A summary of the transactions during the year involving REAFRARNRBEITRAZZSGHE
the Company’s issued share capital is as follows: AR

Number of Issued Share

shares share premium
in issue capital account Total
ERTROBE ERTRA B 475 18 R st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETTT ARETTT ARETT

At 1 January 2012 R-ZF——F—H—H 2346,700,905 239,382 1,818,818 2,058,200
Exercise of share options TR RE AR 19,857,000 1,605 56,729 58,334
Exercise of warrants 1T R AR & 72,000,000 5,883 32,948 38,831
Issue of shares BT D 10,056,372 816 65,291 66,107

At 31 December 2012 and R ZT—=F
=+

1 January 2013 +=-A=+—-H
R_T—=%F
—A—H 2,448,614,277 247,686 1,973,786 2,221,472
Exercise of share options TR IRRE (M7t
(note i) 50,455,200 3,996 191,680 195,676

Exercise of warrants (note i) {TIERIRIER (f/itii) 70,000,000 5613 31,436 37,049

Issue of shares (note ii) BITRAD (Wi 2 888,538 229 27,619 27,848

At 31 December 2013 RZF—=F

+tZA=+—H 2,571,958,015 257,524 2,224,521 2,482,045

Notes: HBist :

(i) The subscription rights attaching to 50,455,200 share (i) 50,455,2001% fE B% # BT BT 2 37 5 1
options were exercised, resulting in the issue of B 7T {F - B B F 7750,455,2008%
50,455,200 shares of HK$0.1 each for a total cash FREEO1E T2 R1G A2 H
consideration of HK$171,169,000 (equivalent to B 5171,169,000;% 7T (15 £ K A
RMB135,469,000). An amount of RMB60,207,000 was R #135,469,0000T) ° 4 8 A B #
transferred from the share option reserve to the share 60,207,000 KB R 1EJE7T1E 05 5 A7
premium account upon the exercise of the share options. PR HE (BB 1 T IR s (B R o
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ISSUED EQUITY (continued)

Notes: (continued)

(ii)

(iii)

70,000,000 shares of HK$0.1 each were issued for cash
at a subscription price of HK$0.66 per share pursuant
to the exercise of the Company’s warrants for a total
cash consideration of HK$46,200,000 (equivalent to
RMB37,049,000).

The Company issued 2,013,087 shares of the Company
to approximately RMB18,770,000 to
certain Haier franchise store owners who entered into

amounting

management services agreements with the Group and
achieved the prescribed performance targets. Further
details of the management services agreements are set
out in note 19 to the financial statements.

In addition, the Company issued 875,451 shares
amounting to approximately RMB9,078,000 to certain
non-controlling shareholders of the Group’s subsidiaries
who entered into incentive agreements with the Group
and achieved the prescribed performance targets.
Further details of the incentive agreements are set out in
note 30 to the financial statements.

Share options

Details of the Company’s share option scheme and the

share options issued under the scheme are included in

note 37 to the financial statements.

Warrants

At the end of the reporting period, the Company had

40,000,000 warrants outstanding. The exercise in full of

these warrants would, under the present capital structure
of the Company, result in the issue 40,000,000 additional
shares of HK$11.20 each.

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
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BB HERME ()

I

ERiTHR (&)
Mg < (#)

(ii) B ARRA]RREEFETE &
70,000,0004% % i [E] {H0. 1)& 7T . /% 17
B 1% 7 R0.66:8 7T .2 R fE 1B L\ B % &
77+ A3 2 £ 18 546,200,000/ 7T (15
ERAK37,049,0005T) °

(i) AR A ENEEGTT I EERE gl
EIETEXREAIBZE T AR L
BN #F772013,087R KA’ 2
BAIARE18,770,0007T ° HRIEE
FRTE e < — 2R G E R A 3R 2% T
719 °

WE - KR A E R E B 5T 7 S8 e
WEFIEEZE A IEZ A EEN B L
7.2 & TR AR R Z77875,45188 K
h LB BAIA K9 0780007 ° H
B 2EE e 2 i — 2 ISR R &
H1e£30 -

g

R

BRARRZBIRER 8 RRIBET 81 &7
BRE Z FREN M B HRRMEEST

-

g&l’

IR

R R E HI K + 22 5] §40,000,00017 i)
RITERIRIER - BEAQRRBRAELE
B BETEZERREE B RET
40,000,000% & % EI1E11.20/% 7T 2 B8 7
f& 1D °
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36.

37.

SHARES HELD FOR RESTRICTED SHARE
INCENTIVE SCHEME

During the year, the Company’s Restricted Share Incentive
Scheme acquired 801,000 shares of the Company of
HK$0.1 each through purchases on the open market at
an aggregate consideration of HK$9,936,000 (equivalent
to RMB7,863,000).

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company operates a share option scheme for the
purpose of providing incentives and rewards to the
eligible participants who contribute to the success of the
operations of the Group. Eligible participants of the share
option scheme include any employee, executive or officer
of the Group (including executive, non-executive and
independent non-executive directors of the Company)
and any supplier, consultant, agent, adviser, shareholder,
customer, partner, business associate who, in the opinion
of the board of directors of the Company (the “Board”),
has contributed to the Group. The Company’s current
share option scheme became effective on 8 June 2011
and, unless otherwise cancelled or amended, will remain
in force for 10 years from that date. The Company’s
current share option scheme and the previous share
option scheme terminated on 8 June 2011 are collectively
referred as the “Share Option Scheme”.

36.

37.

BERFERGBBTEFFE2RD

FR - AREZREERDRE T EE R
RAFRTIS AR E4%89,936,000/8 7T (48
F AR #7.863,0007T) W EE801,0000%
BREBE0 BT ZARRRMG -

fERESE

ARARFRM—IABRESE - HENOEH
B RBEER2ERE/AEEELT K
DELERL - BREAS A ERSRE
BREASEZEMEER TRABHER
AB (BRARRZHATT  ERITREBEYL
FHITER)  URARFAEFE ([EF
2)) IRBAERSEAREERERZ
EAfER - BA - REE - FAA K
R BEF BHEREBHEA - AQFZ
REBREFIBR _T——FANAR
R MR HITEHEKAERTSN - K h% B
REE10FRBR - ARRZIRITHEBME
ANERZT——FNANBRILEZ KA
BRES SIS BR8] -



37.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

The maximum number of shares in respect of which
options may be granted under the Share Option Scheme
is such number of shares, when aggregated with shares
subject to any other share option scheme(s) of the
Company, must not exceed 10% of the issued share
capital of the Company as at the date of adoption of
the Share Option Scheme. The maximum number of
shares issuable upon exercise of the options granted
under the Share Option Scheme and any other share
option scheme(s) of the Company (including exercised,
cancelled and outstanding options) to each eligible
participant in any 12-month period is limited to 1% of the
shares of the Company in issue as at the date of grant.
Any further grant of share options in excess of this 1%
limit shall be subject to the issue of a circular by the
Company (and if required, the holding company) and the
shareholders’ approval of the Company (and if required,
the approval of the shareholders of the holding company)
at a general meeting.

Share options granted to a director, chief executive or
substantial shareholder of the Company, or to any of
their respective associates, are subject to the approval
in advance by the independent non-executive directors
of the Company (and if required, the independent non-
executive directors of the holding company), excluding
the independent non-executive director(s) of the Company
and the holding company who is/are the grantee(s)
of the options. In addition, any share option granted
to a substantial shareholder or an independent non-
executive director of the Company, or to any of their
respective associates, in excess of 0.1% of the shares
of the Company in issue as at the date of grant or with
an aggregate value (based on the closing price of the
shares of the Company as at the date of grant) in excess
of RMB5 million, within any 12-month period, is subject to
the issue of a circular by the Company (and if required,
the holding company) and the shareholders’ approval
of the Company (and if required, the approval of the
shareholders of the holding company) in advance at a
general meeting.

Annual Report 2013 & £E3§

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

BB HERME ()

31 December 2013 —E—=F+=-HF=+—H

37.

BRETE (B

BRI AT &I AT e 3R ) 2 BB AR Pt %
Z IR 8RB A0k AR BT fa] H Ab BE AR AE 5T
B RZBRHEBE  &a TEEAR
BRETERMAEBAQARBEBITRA
10% - REM+ @A HEA - BREE
B MR B B AN A B 4 A L At B AR i T B 9%
oz BERE (BIEEITE - FHRERIT
F 2R BITEMAI LRSS ERKE
BERTZERRMHEE - UWREHEBR
ARIBETRM1%AR - HEFHIBE
Z1%REE 2 Bk - BIARRF (R (WE
FE)ERAR) BAHEBEEAREKXR
BHECRAARRE (R (MERE) £RA
Al ZBRER) U o

MARAZESE  BERITBABREER
REBESE 2T MHEAR L ERE -
ERVAEBSARRZBYIENITES
(R (NERE) BRARZEBILIFNITE
B)HE (FEBBRERARAZARAR
BRI N BB IEMITE BRI o Lo -
MR ER+ @A BRARARR 2 EER
R BUFATESARESAEAHE
ABRHZ BRERME R ZRG  BBREE
B HARRRIE #EITRMN0.1%EE (R
BEERAQBIRGZKMENE) BB
AR #¥5,000,0005t © BIARR (& (208
FE) ERAA) BRIEBEREELERR
RASHKARFBRE (R (MEFE) i
B AR ZBRER) HEHAE ©
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37.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

The offer of a grant of share options may be accepted
within 28 days from the date of the offer, upon payment
of a nominal consideration of RMB1 or HK$1 in total by
the grantee. The exercise period of the share options
granted is determinable by the board of directors, and
commences on a specified date and ends on a date
which is not later than 10 years from the date of grant of
the share options or the expiry date of the Share Option
Scheme, whichever is earlier.

The exercise price of the share options is determinable
by the board of directors, but may not be less than
the highest of (i) the closing price of the shares of the
Company as stated in the daily quotation sheet of the
Stock Exchange on the date of grant, which must be a
trading day; (ii) the average closing price of the shares
of the Company as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily
quotation sheets for the five trading days immediately
preceding the date of grant; and (iii) the nominal value
of the shares of the Company.

Share options do not confer rights on the holders to
dividends or to vote at shareholders’ meetings.

37.

BRETE (B

BB 2R n Rz B HEst28 A
NEARAXMNRBAREALXARE
TTHVBTRERN - CEREBREZTR
HHEFSET  ARECABRAGBER
R B RS TR T F 2 AR
REFFEIHM A (ARFEERE) BIE -

BREZITEEHESSETE  ETGEE
RTI=Fz&=%E : () ANRAROREK
HER (BARXSR) ABXHME AR
BRI UTHE : (iAR R R EE
RUERAMEERS AEBMRHMET B ®RE
RPN 2 FHWHE - R(ii)A R A
ZHEE °
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!
SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued) 37. BRESTE (&)
The following share options were outstanding under the AT RFEABERESEIIE T mARITEZE
Share Option Scheme during the year: i #E -
2013 2012
—E-=fF —E—_F
Weighted Weighted
average average
exercise price Number exercise price Number
HKS per share of options HKS$ per share of options
o IREF19
THEE 171EE
BRET BREZA BB AR EE R
At 1 January R—A—H 3.87 74,479,800 359 100,217,500
Granted during the year FAKE 12.16 950,000 - =
Cancelled/lapsed FREE KX
during the year 5.66 (3,651,600) 2.78 (5,880,700)
Exercised during the year FRTT] 3.39  (50,455,200) 2.75 (19,857,000)
)
At 31 December Rt-—A=+—H 5.07 21,323,000 3.87 74,479,800

The weighted average share price at the date of exercise
for share options exercised during the year was HK$15.02

per share (2012: HK$10.09).

-

RERNTEZBRERITES B 2 INEF
BB AT R15.028 T (ZFE— —4F
10.09/87T) °
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37. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

The exercise prices and exercise periods of the share

37. BREE (B
RBERR - MARITEBREZITEER

options outstanding as at the end of the reporting period TR ERA T -
are as follows:
2013 2012
—E-=F —T——F
Number of options  Exercise price* Exercise period  Number of options  Exercise price* Exercise period
BREZE fTEE: igid FERERR TfEE" 1708
HK$ per share HK$ per share
BRER BRET
- 1.70 18/09/2010- 11,192,000 1.70 18/09/2010-
17/09/2013 17/09/2013
—2-2F —T-FF
RA+TNEBZE NATNBE
—E-=F =
RATEH ALA++R
7,919,000 1.70 18/09/2010- 28,412,000 1.70 18/09/2010-
17/09/2014 17/09/2014
—2-2F —T-FF
RA+TNBZE NATNBE
—E2-mE —T-E
RLA+TEH ALA++R
4,258,000 4.82 18/05/2011- 16,095,800 4.82 18/05/2011-
17/05/2014 17/05/2014
—2—-F 5
EA+NEBZE AATN\BZE
—E-mE T
AA+TEH AAt++R
7,836,000 7.58 16/12/2012- 17,780,000 7.58 16/12/2012-
15/12/2014 15/12/2014
—E-——F —E-CfF
+=ZAtX<HZE TZRA+~HE
—E-mE —T-mE
+=At+EA +ZA+HA
360,000 8.67 16/06/2012- 1,000,000 8.67 16/06/2012-
15/12/2014 15/12/2014
—E-——F —E-CfF
ANATAAE NATARBZE
—E-MF —TmE
+=BAt+EA +TZA+HA
950,000 12.16 26/06/2014- - - -
25/06/2017
—2-mF -
ARAZtARAZE
—E-tF
AAZTEHA
21,323,000 74,479,800
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*

The exercise price of the share options is subject to
adjustment in the case of rights or bonus issues, or other

similar changes in the Company’s share capital.

*

FBIRIE 2 771 (8 A A & BT AR 2 3 7 TAT
AR AR AN 1 57 B 28 L b 3]
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37.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

The fair value of the share options granted during the year
were approximately RMB3,521,000 (RMB3.71 each), of
which the Group recognised a share option expense of
RMB1,076,000 during the year ended 31 December 2013.

During the year, the Group also recognised a share
option expense of RMB8,259,000 (2012: RMB25,139,000),
RMB1,883,000 (2012: RMB7,877,000) and RMB 1,737,000
(2012: RMB6,604,000) in respect of share options granted
during the years ended 31 December 2011, 31 December
2010 and 31 December 2009, respectively.

The fair value of equity-settled share options granted
during the year was estimated as at the date of grant,
taking into account the terms and conditions upon which
the options were granted.

The following table lists the inputs to the model used:
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37.

BRETE (B

FA- - FIREERECATFENRAR
#3,521,0007T (B IR E B A A K #3.71
L) ERASERHEE_ZT—=F1+=
A=+ —BLFERRZEBRERIA
FR#1,076,0007T °

FAN - AEESRBREE=ZS——F +
—A=+—8 - —Z2—ZTF+=-A=+
—BE_EEAFT+_A=1+—HIHF
ERECERERIABERERAIAR
#8,259,000t (Z T —=—F: AR
25,139,0007T) * A K %1,883,0007T (=
T ——4F: A\R®7877,0000t) & A
R®1,737,000C (ZE—Z=F: ARK
6,604,0007T) °

FARHABRAGE 2 BEREQTFERR

BB E - B IR R R
fERAF ©

TRIHAMARAZBAE -

2013
—E—=

Dividend yield (%) REE (%) 0.67

Historical volatility (%) FELIRE (%) 54.61

Risk-free interest rate (%) EERAE (%) 0.979

Contractual life of options (year) BERESHNFH (F) 4
Closing price of a share on the date ORI B 2 WM E

of grant (HK$ per share) (BRATT) 11.88

The expected volatility is determined based on the
historical volatility of the share price of the company.
The expected volatility reflects the assumption that the
historical volatility is indicative of future trends, which may
also not necessarily be the actual outcome.

TR OB D B A 2 AR (B 2 R S R R
T o TEETRIE R A S T B B R
SRR (B IF N E R AT
# o
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37.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

No other feature of the options granted was incorporated
into the measurement of fair value.

The 50,455,200 share options exercised during the year
resulted in the issue of 50,455,200 ordinary shares of
the Company and new share capital of HK$5,046,000
(equivalent to RMB3,996,000) and share premium of
HK$166,123,000 (equivalent to RMB131,473,000), as
further detailed in note 35 to the financial statements.

At the end of the reporting period, the Company had
21,323,000 share options outstanding under the Share
Option Scheme. The exercise in full of the outstanding
share options would, under the present capital structure of
the Company, result in the issue of 21,323,000 additional
ordinary shares of the Company and additional share
capital of HK$2,132,000 (equivalent to RMB1,665,000)
and share premium of HK$105,924,000 (equivalent to
RMB82,708,000) (before issue expenses).

Subsequent to the end of the reporting period, a total of
2,914,000, 2,554,200 and 4,110,000 share options with
the exercise prices of HK$1.70, HK$4.82 and HK$7.58
per share, respectively, were exercised.

At the date of approval of these financial statements,
the Company had 11,744,800 share options outstanding
under the Share Option Scheme, which represented
approximately 0.45% of the Company’s shares in issue
as at that date.

37.

BRETE (B
WEE MR EEE 2 FIEFARFELZ

e

RERTTE 250,455,200/ B A% A & B 2%
77 7K A 7]50,455,2000% 3 8 f% & # ig A
5,046,000/ 7t (48 5 7 A K 3,996,000
TT) KP4 B 166,123,0005 7T (FHER
AR #131,473,0007T) © FFIBEEHR I ®
FMIEESS ©

RMEBRR A"2aBERETET
21,323,00017 # 7K 17 3£ & Ax 4% » RIBE A
RABBRALERE  BHEHOFERRTE
2 B AR FE 1S 8 B8R A B 1721,323,000%
RN A AR K 0 A 782,132,000
7T (8= R A K #1,665,0000T) & % %
i 8105,924,0000%8 7T (18 & W A R &
82,708,0007T) (MFRZFITERAN) °

RERE B KR%E & 42,914,000 8 B
# - 2,554,20017 f % # 4,110,000 #&
f&#E (BRITEED B AR1.708 T  4.82
BT R 7.5877T) BETTE o

REERBHREMMERS  XRAAB
& # 5t 2 S 11,744,80017 18 AR 17 5 & AR
- HERARARZBERTRN 2K
0.45% -



38. RESERVES

(a)

Group

The amounts of the Group’s reserves and the
movements therein for the current and prior years
are presented in the consolidated statement of
changes in equity on page 116 to 117 of the
annual report.

The Group’s capital reduction reserve arose from
the reduction in the nominal value of each of the
issued shares of the Company from HK$0.10 to
HK$0.01 by the cancellation of paid-up capital
of HK$0.09 on each of the issued shares of the
Company effective from 8 March 2007.

The Group’s capital reserve originally represented
the difference between the credit arising from
the capital reduction of HK$1,657,866,000
(equivalent to RMB1,758,526,000) and the amount
transferred to eliminate the accumulated losses
of the Group of HK$1,196,370,000 (equivalent to
RMB1,186,521,000).

The capital redemption reserve arose from the
share repurchases in the previous year.

The share-based payment reserve arose from the
Group’s management services agreements with
certain Haier franchise store owners, as further
detailed in note 19 to the financial statements.
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38. f#f#

(a)

FEE

NEZRBEFENER Z FEH
HEEEEHFE SN FRFE116
EFNTEZREEREERK -

REBCRAEBFEEEEBRZ
T F=-AN\ABRBBRFHEAR
AEREETRO Z2EHERA
0.098 7T * BARRERE ZHITK
3 Z EE 0. 10/ T AR £0.0178
e

REBzZERNFEERBHERRKR
N E A& Z # BR1,657,866,0007%
7t (F8 2 K A R #1,758,526,000
JL) HER L IEARER R EE
1,196,370,000/8 7 (FHE RN AR
1,186,521,0007T) Z =% °

B N8 [T 138 45 e 00 A B AR B B 40
BIEL -

AN TS ER AP T 19 — AR AL -
U 2 HREEE AR EE
ETHBAMBEREBATLZER
AR5 195 ©

I

g

-
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38. RESERVES (continued)

(a)

Group (continued)

The share option reserve comprise the fair value
of share options granted which are yet to be
exercised, as further explained in the accounting
policy for share-based payments in note 2.4 to
the financial statements. The amount will either be
transferred to the share premium account when the
related options are exercised, or be transferred to
retained profits should the related options expire
or be forfeited.

The put option reserve arose from the Company’s
incentive agreements with certain non-controlling
shareholders of subsidiaries, as further detailed in
note 30 to the financial statements.

The warrant reserve related to the convertible
bonds issued in 2011, as further detailed in note
32 to the financial statements.

The non-controlling interests reserve arose from
changes in the ownership interests of subsidiaries,
without a loss of control.

Pursuant to the relevant PRC laws and regulations,
certain of the Group’s subsidiaries registered in
the PRC are required to transfer a portion of their
profits to reserve funds. These funds are non-
distributable in the form of cash dividends. When
determining the appropriations to these funds, the
net profits of these subsidiaries are determined in
accordance with the applicable financial rules and
regulations of the PRC.

38.

& (7)

(a)

TEH (&)

BREFEEREROERTEZ
Bz AFE - FRMBHREKRN
H2ABRMABRN RERZ R
SRR - HEREBREETE
ZEENBRERMNEER 548
FARE AR H M s W - RIS
RE A o

AN TS HR AR B FE 30 — RF A
R RERELA AR FENE
DA ZETIRERIRAT S 2 BB

e

AN A TS HR R P FE 324 — A RF AL -
AR AR T —F 8T
Z AR ES AR o

FEREEFEEEENB AR
EREZ 28 WEKEZS
1 o

RIBARBE P BDAGI ROAM - AEH
HETRAEEMRHERBERE
MG BRERFBES - ZFHE
EPAIARERE 2HADIK ©
BEERAZEESZ2ORR  §RIE
378 A 2 7 BB B 95 A8 Bl ROR AR TE v
FEHIER R ZAER o
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38. RESERVES (continued) 38. f#tE (&
(b) Company (b) ZAATH
Retained
Share Capital Exchange  Share-based Share profits/
premium  Contributed redemption fluctuation payment option  (accumulated Warrant
account surplus reserve reserve reserve reserve losses) reserve Total
R B4RE AERD WRERA BRE  REEH/ ARER
R YRR e i 2t 1 (B5TER) 1 £

Notes RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000
M ARETR  ARETR  ARBTR  ARBTR ARBTR  ARBTR  ARBTm  ARETm  ARETR

At 1 January 2012 R-2--£-8-A 1,818,818 646,996 184 (370,965) 70,000 59,943 (36,676) 59,700 2,248,000
Total comprehensive loss FREEBEEE

for the year - - - (23,001) - - (118.246) - (141,247)
Issue of shares ki % 154968 - - - (66,107) (14.217) . . 74644
Equity-setled share option WRAEE 2 BRE

anangements g7 37 - - - - - 39,620 - - 39,620
Transfer of share option RERERINSERE

reserve upon forfefture or BREREER

expiry of share options - - - - - (3,989) 3,989 - -
Proposed final 2012 dividend HE-E3-—5XHRS - (157.480) = = = = = = (157,480)
At 31 December 2012 and KZE-F

1 January 2013 TZA=+-Rk

“2-£-8-A 1,973,786 489,516 184 (393,966) 3,893 81,357 (150,933) 59,700 2,063,537

Total comprehensive loss FRZABELE

for the year . - . (71,456) . . (87.737) . (159,193)
Issue of shares L300 3 250,735 - - - (18,770) (60,207) - - 171,758
Management services arrangements EEREZH - - - - 34877 - - = 34877
Equity-settled share option WRAEE 2 BRE

arrangements e 37 - - - - - 12,95 - - 12,95
Transfer of share option RERERINSERE

reserve upon forfeiture or HEREREER

expiry of share options - - - - - (4,008) 4,008 - -
Final 2012 dividend declared ER-E-—5XHRE - (3.281) - - - - - - (3.281)
Proposed fnal 2013 dvidend ~~~ E=S—=ERHRE ] - (200,824) - - - - - - (200,824)
At 31 December 2013 K=%-=%+-f=1-A 2,224,521 285,411 184 (465,422) 20,000 30,097 (234,662) 59,700 1,919,829

RRBZBABBRPTWENE LD
AR A FEBAANRRSBEE
WEMERITROEEZEZR -
REERE-NAN-FRFADAE (K
BR]) SABRBRBEETERE

The Company’s contributed surplus represents
the excess of the fair value of the shares of the
subsidiaries acquired, over the nominal value of
the Company’s shares issued in exchange therefor.
Under the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as
amended), the contributed surplus is distributable —AN—FRER (BB kA

to shareholders subject to the Companies Act R ElZ A RHERINE R T 2 kT B

1981 of Bermuda (as amended) and bye-laws of R o 257
the Company.
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39.

BUSINESS COMBINATION

(i)

On 1 January 2013, the Group, through its
51%-owned subsidiary, Suzhou Goodaymart
Electric Appliance Co., Ltd., acquired 51%
interest in Changshu Suchang Electric Appliance
Sales Co., Ltd. (“Suchang Sales”) for a cash
consideration of RMB1,530,000, amount of which
had been paid in 2012. Suchang Sales is engaged
in the distribution and retail sales of home electric
appliances. The acquisition was made as part
of the Group’s strategy to expand its distribution
network.

The Group has elected to measure the non-
controlling interest in Suchang Sales at the
non-controlling interest’s proportionate share of
Suchang Sale’s identifiable net assets.

39.

EBEH

(i)

R-ZZT—=F—HA—HB A&E3
BEFEAS % 5 2 KB A B &R
RAIBERARAR - RESHKE
A R %1,530,0007T 4 B % 24 T &F
FERHEBARAR ([HEHED
Z51%tEsE BN T~ —Fx
RE HEHEREDHRLTE
T BRMBRASELRE D H
BERREZ — -

AEEDERRIFTRE S D HER
FIHE 2 A BRI B EFE 2 LB
BRERIHE 2 IR -
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39. BUSINESS COMBINATION (continued) 39. XBEHt (&)
(i) (continued) (i) (%)
The fair values of the identifiable assets and RUIE R - #EHE 2Pl #AIE
liabilities of Suchang Sales as at the acquisition EXABBEAFERT :

date were as follows:

Fair value
recognised
on acquisition
U B
BRZAFE
RMB’000
ARBFT
Trade receivables JFE U R K 341
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables  TEfIFRIA - 12 & N H 8 W BR X 10,906
Inventories & 967
Cash and bank balances & RIRITER 659
Trade payables e RRTK (9,792)
Other payables H fth FE A BR 5K (50)
T ’
Total identifiable net assets at fair value AERFEEN T EERE 3,031
Non-controlling interests R = (1,485)
1,646
Gain on bargain purchase =B E (16)
1,530
Satisfied by: ATRZIE B E
Prepayments TR IR 1,530
The fair values and gross contractual amounts of JE U BR 0 % E A e Uk BR R A U B B
trade receivables and other receivables as at the A FEERENBEBINABAR
date of acquisition amounted to RMB341,000 and #341,0007T & A K #10,056,000
RMB10,056,000, respectively, which are expected IT - FEHEA A UK [E] s BR AR o 259

to be collectible.
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39.

BUSINESS COMBINATION (continued) 39.

(i)

(continued) (i)

An analysis of the cash flows in respect of the
acquisition of Suchang Sales is as follows:

EBast (&)

(%)

HINEHRTHERE RS RED
o

RMB’000
AREFTT
Cash and bank balances acquired and BB & RIRTTAARRIA K
net inflow of cash and cash equivalents FAREEBCHEEREL
included in cash flows from investing activites ~ RE&MREFEHEBFRA 659

Since the acquisition, Suchang Sales contributed
RMB221,848,000 to the Group’s turnover and
RMB3,779,520 to the consolidated profit for the
year.

On 31 January 2013, the Group acquired a (ii)
business in relation to the provision of integrated
services of the transportation and installation of
home furniture for consumers on behalf of furniture
manufacturers/sellers. The acquisition was made
as part of the Group’s strategy to expand its
The purchase
consideration for the acquisition was in the form
of cash, with RMB6,500,000 paid in January 2013
and the remaining RMB6,500,000 recognised as a
contingent consideration to be paid on 10 January
2014 and 10 January 2015 upon the fulfillment of
certain conditions.

integrated channel services.

BURBELAZK - SR EHERAEE A
£ B 55k AR 221,848,000
ZeERTE N A RES,779,5207T 2

e o

RZZE—=F—A=+—H ' &
SEWE - EBEERERELEER
BT REARBREAEHRE
REERB2ER - RRWE R
SENEEEBRGIRBHERR
— o W BEREBEUNREFAX
- Hh A R #6,500,0007T B 7
—E—=F—A%N BREAREK
6,500,0007C B R B A KE -
BETRRGHEENER S —
mE—A+EER-Z—FHF— A+
HEZ A o
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39. BUSINESS COMBINATION (continued) 39. XEKEHf (&)
(i) (continued) @iy (&)
The fair values of the identifiable assets of the B 75 2 Al 3Bl & E R U B
acquired business as at the acquisition date were Bz AFEWET :
as follows:
Fair value
recognised
on acquisition
A UK BB R
BRZATE
RMB’000
AREFTT
Property, plant and equipment "M% - BB KR 710
Intangible assets — customer relationships BZEE —BPBAR 6,167
Total identifiable net assets of fair value AR FEEAN T EERE 6,877
Goodwill on acquisition Ue B 2 e 6,123
13,000
Satisfied by: ATFIERBE
Cash Re 6,500
Other payables H M FE R AR FR 6,500
13,000

201
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39. BUSINESS COMBINATION (continued) 39. XEKEHf (&)
(i)  (continued) @iy (&)
An analysis of the cash flows in respect of the HIWBEXBEA RS RED TN
acquisition of the business is as follows: T
RMB’000
AREFTT
Cash consideration paid and net outflow of ENBeRERTARE G2
cash and cash equivalent included in RenezHiekHeEE
cash flows from investing activities I8 B Fm 6,500
Since the acquisition, the acquired business BUEEDAZK - FTIEEETENERN A
contributed RMB16,449,000 to the Group’s NEBET R ARYA16,449,0007T 2
turnover and RMB2,739,000 to the consolidated R ARM2739,0007T 2 4R
profit for the year. Al e
Had the combination taken place at the beginning e FRETNET BIASE
of the year, the revenue and profit of the Group for FRKARZFNED B AAR
the year would have been RMB62,263,481,000 and #62,263,481,000C & A R ¥
RMB2,090,342,000, respectively. 2,090,342,0007T °
(i)  On 18 December 2013, the Group, through its (i) MZT—=F+TZAT/AB'&x&
100%-owned subsidiary, Hong Kong Bolang BB EEA100%E 2 2 M B A
Housewares Trading Company Limited (“Hong AAEBHAREEZBRAR ([&
Kong Bo Lang”), acquired 100% interest in Bloom BEIBAL) - LAIR € X {82,000,000
Trade Limited and its wholly-owned subsidiary BT (18 & X A K %#16,519,000
Designwelt Limited (collectively referred as ot) Y EEBloom Trade Limited®
“Bloom Trade Group”) for a cash consideration E2EWNB R AERERH
of EUR2,000,000 (equivalent to RMB16,519,000), # (E8) BRAF (#7 [Bloom
with EUR1,800,000 paid in 2013 and the remaining Trade%k E]) Z100%# &= ' B
EUR200,000 to be paid in 2014. Bloom Trade ®nZ T — = F ¥ 171,800,000
Group is engaged in the provision of consultation T WHRZE—NEZHHTH
service relating to home furniture. The acquisition 200,000F% 7T ° Bloom Tradefs
was made as part of the Group’s strategy to HEREBERA ZBERERE - 2
expand its distribution business through enriching REEARASEEREESEMES

262 products. MREDHEEBHREE 2 — -
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39. BUSINESS COMBINATION (continued) 39. XEKEHf (&)
(iiiy  (continued) iy (&)
The fair values of the identifiable assets and AUBEEHHY - Bloom Trade®E
liabilities of Bloom Trade Group as at the AHFRNEERBBEATENT :

acquisition date were as follows:

Fair value
recognised
on acquisition
FA L B s
BRZATE
RMB’000
AR TTT
Property, plant and equipment "M% - BB KR 88
Intangible assets — software BmIVEE — B 16,608
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables ~ TEfTFRIA - 12 & K H it fE W BR 5K 52
Cash and bank balances W& RRITER 32
Other payables H b FE 1 BRSK (261)
Total identifiable net assets at fair value AR FEEAN T EERE 16,519 "
Satisfied by: IATRFIIEREE -
Cash Be 14,764
Other payables H fth FE AT BR R 1,755
16,519
The fair values and gross contractual amounts H b pE U BE 2R A U BE B B 2 A F(E
of other receivables as at the date of acquisition RA&4mesE s A R52 0007 T8
amounted to RMB52,000, which are expected to HATRT U O] ki BRER o

be collectible.

263



(iiif)

At the end of the reporting period, neither the Group nor
the Company had any significant contingent liabilities.
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39. BUSINESS COMBINATION (continued)

(continued)

An analysis of the cash flows in respect of the
acquisition of the business is as follows:

EBast (&)

(%)

HIWBEXBEA RS RED TN
™

RMB’000

ARBTT

Cash consideration paid ERNBEeNKE (14,764)

Cash and bank balances acquired BRI & RIRTTAERR 32
Net outflow of cash and cash equivalent AAREEBCHESREL

included in cash flows from investing activites ~ RE&MREFEEBFRE (14,732)

Since the acquisition, Bloom Trade Group did not
generate any revenue and incurred operating loss
of RMB495,000 by 31 December 2013.

Had the combination taken place at the beginning
of the year, the revenue and profit of the Group for
the year would have been RMB62,267,678,000 and

RMB2,088,780,000, respectively.

40. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

B U B LAZE © Bloom Tradef=[E
EEETABRA IR=_2F—=
F+_A=Z+—HAELXARYE
495,0007T 2 #&& & 518 -

WMEHRENET BIAEE
FRARARGFED R BAR
#62,267,678,000 K& A R #
2,088,780,0007T °

HAREE

RBERR - ARER AR AGEEAE
RHAEE -
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41. OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS 41, REHEOZH
(a) As lessor (a) MEREAA
The Group leases its investment properties (note AEERBECERNLHGEIEE
16 to the financial statements) to Haier Affiliates Y (MmEMsE16) B T8
under operating lease arrangements, with leases RBB AR - mELHBAANT—
negotiated for terms ranging from one to five years. FERF o
At the end of the reporting period, the Group had R EER - NEBRER T3 E
total future minimum lease receivables under non- 2 HA 2 S 8E BUE 2 £8 & 7 49 82
cancellable operating leases with its tenants falling HEPARREWSENE®AE
due as follows: LU
Group
rEH
2013 2012
—E—=F —T—F
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTR ARETT

Within one year —FR 2,016 2,016
In the second to fifth years, inclusive E_EZRF

(BEEREMF) 1,008 3,024

3,024 5,040
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41, OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS 41, REWEDZH (&)
(continued)
(b) As lessee (b) fEBREBEA
The Group leases certain properties under AEERBEEHEOLTHERSET
operating lease arrangements. Leases for the Yz HAMECHBZEANT
properties are negotiated for terms ranging from —FEt+EF-

one to ten years.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group RB|EHR - ARERARRARE
and the Company had total future minimum lease RN HA R B H 2 R RE BUE 2 &
payments under non-cancellable operating leases EHOBRRENKEHES AR
falling due as follows: IR
Group Company
REH VNN
2013 2012 2013 2012

—B—=%F T4 —E—=F —ET—F
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%STR ARETT AR%STR AREKETET

Within one year —FRX 151,128 83,756 1,882 1,378

In the second to F_EFREF
fifth years, inclusive ~ (BIEEREME) 103,196 48,849 - _
After five years hF% 36,619 3,022 - =
290,943 135,627 1,882 1,378
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COMMITMENTS 42. &I
In addition to the operating lease commitments detailed B £ ST 7E41(b) P 5F il 48 & 78 40 & &
in note 41(b) above, the Group had the following N NEBPARE KRG A NRIE -
commitments at the end of the reporting period:
Group REE
2013 2012
—E—=fF —E——4F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%T AREEFTT
Authorised, but not contracted for: EHERRETA
Land and buildings T RIEF 20,766 179,008
Contracted, but not provided for: EEESIEE S
Property, plant and equipment Wz -~ BE R 258,342 106,883
279,108 285,891

At the end of the reporting period, the Company did not

have any significant commitments.

RBEHR - AR B WEEATEARASE

o
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43. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 43. BB IAESE

The carrying amounts of each of the categories of
financial instruments as at the end of the reporting period

are as follows:

Group
Financial assets

31 December 2013

RBEMFK SEMBIAZBEED
N

e L

HHEE

—2-=%+t=-A=t-H

Available-for-
Loans and sale financial

receivables assets Total

BERR AftHE
FE Ui BR X HREE #Em
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T AR¥T T AR¥T
Available-for-sale investments AHEERE = 2,925 2,925
Trade and bills receivables FEUER R R R 7,558,920 = 7,558,920
Other receivables (note 24) E b IR BR TR (H17E24) 440,450 = 440,450
Pledged deposits [BACE RSN 220,350 = 220,350
Cash and cash equivalents ReERREFEER 6,824,322 - 6,824,322
15,044,042 2,925 15,046,967

31 December 2012 —T——H#+-_H=+—H

Available-for-

Loans and  sale financial
receivables assets Total

ER R AfHtEE
JE U BR 3K WG EE 4azE
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBFIT ARBFIT ARBFIT
Available-for-sale investments AHHERE = 2,925 2,925
Trade and bills receivables MR R R =& 6,924.088 _ 6.924.088
Other receivables (note 24) H At fEULBR TR (HaE24) 431,014 = 431,014
Pledged deposits B HFH 61,804 = 61,804
Cash and cash equivalents ReRkREEMEEE 5,368,308 = 5,368,308
12,785,214 2,925 12,788,139
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BRI (8)
31 December 2013 —E—=F+=-HF=+—H

!
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 43. BB IAS¥E (&)
(continued)
The carrying amounts of each of the categories of RBEHR SEUHTAEZEREN
financial instruments as at the end of the reporting period T (&)
are as follows: (continued)
Group AEE
Financial liabilities g3 =Ri
2013 2012
—=E—= —T—F
Financial Financial
liabilities at liabilities at
amortised amortised
cost cost
R birg: i
A5 B BRI AR
ZEBBasE ZMBEE
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%T R AREFTT )
Trade and bills payables ERBR R R & 3,202,301 2,961,504 [
Other payables (note 27) H b RERBRRR (B2 27) 6,147,009 5,031,352
Interest-bearing borrowings FEEE 159,633 39,800
Due to a fellow subsidiary &R — 2R [A) Z Bt B A RIRKI8 15,000 -
Due to non-controlling shareholders FEAS IEFE AR AR R 3R 24,301 59,537
Convertible bonds AR E 716,835 699,643
10,265,079 8,791,836

I

The Group’s put option liabilities are carried at fair value
and the changes in fair value are recognised through the
put option reserve. The Group’s share-based payment
liabilities are determined with reference to the fair value
and the corresponding costs are recognised in the
statement of profit or loss.

ARSI 7 704 HR B YR A BB
AT (R BRI B SRR -
AREEZ ARG BERZ HREEES
EHAFEMEE - HIAEZRAR B
RAHER -
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43. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 43. BHEIESHE (&)
(continued)
Company PN
Financial assets BKEE
Loans and receivables
B R BB R
2013 2012
—E-= —FE——F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T AREEF T
Due from subsidiaries (note 20) FEUHI B R Rk (K7a£20) 430,076 249,671
Other receivables (note 24) HAth fEULIR SR (HfaE24) 23,424 14,911
Cash and cash equivalents ReMReFEER 939,028 1,065,406
1,392,528 1,329,988
Financial liabilities B%aE
Financial liabilities
at amortised cost
BREEAARTIR KA E
2013 2012
—E—= —E——4F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ T AREFTT
Other payables (note 27) HAERBRFR (H1aE27) 131,825 36,944
Due to subsidiaries (note 20) FETBT B R RIRIA (Ha£20) 68,456 80,574
Convertible bonds AR ES 716,835 699,643
917,116 817,161
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FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF 44,

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

BRI (8)
31 December 2013 —E—=F+=-HF=+—H

The carrying amounts and fair values of the Group’s and

the Company’s financial instruments, other than those

with carrying amounts that reasonably approximate to fair

values, are as follows:

MBTAZAFERAFESR

AEBERARBZHBTAZEEERA
FE(HEERAEEQAFESEEERIN

mF -

Annual Report 2013 & £E3§

Group AEE
Carrying amounts Fair values
IREE AFHE
2013 2012 2013 2012
—E—=F —ZET——-F ZZE-—= —E——fF
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AREBTRT ARBTT AR%®TR ARETrT
Financial liabilities BKEaE
Convertible bonds Al R E S
(note 32) (H15#32) 716,835 699,643 715,302 709,789
Put option liabilities Ron AR h
(note 30) (H1:£30) 328,000 428,270 328,000 428,270
Share-based payment VARR 1 A 2R 2 9 3R ’
liabilities (note 31) A& (f231) 14,429 — 14,429 _
Due to non-controlling JE AT FE 22 iR AR R KT8
shareholders (note 29) (H1a£29) 24,301 59,537 24,301 59,214
1,083,565 1,187,450 1,082,032 1,197,273
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44. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF 44. BT EZAFERAFEZEH (&)
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Company b YN
Carrying amounts Fair values
IREE AFE
2013 2012 2013 2012
—¥-=% T =%-= —F=F

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTRE ARBTT AR®TR ARETE

Financial assets BREE
Due from subsidiaries FEUS BB A FIFIR

(note 20) (HteF20) 430,076 249,671 406,967 236,255
Financial liabilities MBEE
Due to subsidiaries FE AT BB 1 R FIB

(note 20) (Htat20) 68,456 80,574 64,778 76,245
Convertible bonds AR (E 5

(note 32) (H1a32) 716,835 699,643 715,302 709,789

785,291 780,217 780,080 786,034

Management has assessed that the fair values of cash EEEETNE  BekRLFEEE B
and cash equivalents, pledged deposits, trade and bills HERER  BUREARER - HaEKE
receivables, other receivables, trade and bills payables, o BNRREER - RN R AE
other payables and amounts due to a fellow subsidiary N—HKEARMBRARKBZ A FERZE
approximate to their carrying amounts largely due to the TEZREERES  FTEEARZEIA
short term maturities of these instruments. RIEHIR R -
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44.

FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

The Group’s management is responsible for determining
the policies and procedures for the fair value
measurement of financial instruments. At each reporting
date, the management analyses the movements in the
values of financial instruments and determines the major
inputs applied in the valuation. The valuation process and
results are discussed with the audit committee twice a
year for interim and annual financial reporting.

The fair values of the financial assets and liabilities
are included at the amount at which the instrument
could be exchanged in a current transaction between
willing parties, other than in a forced or liquidation sale.
The following methods and assumptions were used to
estimate the fair values:

The fair values of the amounts due to non-controlling
shareholders and amounts due from and to subsidiaries
have been calculated by discounting the expected future
cash flows using rates currently available for instruments
on similar terms, credit risk and remaining maturities.

The fair value of the liability portion of the convertible
bonds is estimated by discounting the expected future
cash flows using an equivalent market interest rate for a
similar bond without a conversion option and warrants.

The fair value of put option liabilities and share-based
payment liabilities are measured based on valuation
techniques for which any inputs which have a significant
effect on the recorded fair value are not based on
observable market data.
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44.

BBTAZAFERAFESR (&)

AEBEEEAEEEM B TARFER
ENBREERF NEREAH BHEE
DB TANBELZS Y EEHETE
ANITE2H - HEAEIERGEEX
ZESBFETMANR  UELRER
FEAHRE

MBEERBBEZAFEDNREBIAR
RXPEHEBRMIEXBEIFRIFEN
BRATETRZMBFNEEAR T
TERBRITIIAR G ERFE

& A< S 42 BB B BR AR TR % B MK K% B AT Y BB
ARBEZATFEDEBERBEERR
B e Ko R R B B HAFR A ZR A 34 T ALER (1
ZTRRFRBHARRERENH -

AMBREFREFD IR FEIATER
RS BUERRRREEZRE
MISMERFARRKRSRERE -

LR ERARND AERZNKEE
ZRFEZEGEERDT (RHERLEQTFE
BEAFEZEMEHARIES L IR E
KMSEEGEL) & -
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44. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF 44.
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
The Group’s put option liabilities and share-based

payment liabilities are measured at fair value and are
categorised in Level 3 of the fair value measurements.

Below is a summary of significant unobservable inputs to
the valuation of financial instruments:

MBTAZAFERAFESR (&)

ASE 2 RE AR R ARD AR
HIRE BT EAFENE  LHRAES
BAFEHE -

7% T BB 2 BRI A8 R A ZUREE
M

Sensitivity the input to fair value
BABBHAVENSRE

Valuation Significant
techniques unobservable inputs Range
fE{E B Al EXTUBRBAYE ®E
Put option liabilities Monte Carlo Median volatility of 11.41% to
RLHEaE Simulation comparable 31.41%
St RER R companies 11.41%%
LN QA 2O 31.41%
UELEVE
Risk-free rate 3.14% to
ERBA= 5.14%
3.14%%
5.14%

Share-based payment Monte Carlo Median volatility of 32.8% to

liabilities Simulation comparable 52.8%
A AER 2 NREE S REER companies 32.8%%
52 AR A RN 52.8%
R IE A2
Risk-free rate 3.14% to
BRI X 5.14%
3.14%%
5.14%

Fair value hierarchy

The Group and the Company did not have any financial
assets measured at fair value as at 31 December 2013
and 2012.

10% increase (decrease) in the median volatility
of comparable companies would result
in decrease (increase) in fair value by
RMB1,000,000 (RMB2,000,000).

AL A RIHVR IR AL BUE A0 ORL) 10%
BEHRTERS (M) ARH1,000,0007
(AR%2,000,0007T) °

1% increase (decrease) in the risk-free rate
would result in decrease (increase) in fair
value by RMB4,000,000 (RMB4,000,000).

ERBAELM (RD) 1%HEHRTE
A () AR%4,000,0007
(AR #4,000,0007T) ©

10% increase (decrease) in the median
volatility of comparable companies would
result in decrease (increase) in fair value by
RMB4,000,000 (RMB2,000,000).

AT LA RIHR IR AL B A0 ORl) 10%
BEHRTERS (M) AR#4,000,0007
(AR%2,000,0007T) °

1% increase (decrease) in the risk-free rate
would result in decrease (increase) in fair
value by RMB3,000,000 (RMB3,000,000).

ERBAEEM (RD) 1%H SRR TE
HA () AR%3,000,0007
(AR #3,000,0007T) ©

DHESR

AREBRARNTN - E—=FR_T—
F4+ - A=+ B W EE[IZAFE
M S EEE ©

o | |
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BRI (8)
31 December 2013 —E—=F+=-HF=+—H

FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF 44. BB IBZAFERATFEER (&)
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Liabilities measured at fair value: BATFETENERSE :
Group REE
As at 31 December 2013 N—ZE—=%+_HA=+—H
Fair value measurement using
AFEHEER
Quoted
prices Significant Significant
in active observable unobservable
markets inputs inputs

R EXTHEE BATTEE
mHHRE LN ¢ BARE

(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
(B—%&) (B=%) (B=8) @t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®T R AR® T AR® TR AR® TR

Put option liabilities (note 30) %ﬁfﬁﬁﬂ%ﬁ% (H17£30) = - 328,000 328,000
Share-based payment DA fn REREZ
liabilities (note 31) NHEE (Hi231) - - 14,429 14,429
- - 342,429 342,429
As at 31 December 2012 R-_ZE——HF+_A=+—H
Fair value measurement using
AYEFEER
Quoted
prices Significant Significant
in active observable unobservable
markets inputs inputs
E IR BAUBE EATIUEE
5 RE A SR AR
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
(B—%&) (F=@) (B=&) st
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETT ARETTT ARETT
Put option liabilities (note 30) WA HIEARE (#:230) - = 428,270 428,270
During the year, there were no transfers of fair value FN - RTEAERENE —REZ R
measurements between Level 1 and Level 2 and no ZEEE . TEEAREHE=F (=% 275

transfers into or out of Level 3 (2012: Nil). ——F |
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44.

FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF 44,

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
Assets for which fair values are disclosed:
Company

As at 31 December 2013

BBTAZAFERAFESR (&)

ERBEAFENEE
ENNS
R=F—=%t=A=+—H

Fair value measurement using

AFEHBER
Quoted
prices Significant Significant
in active observable  unobservable
markets inputs inputs
TR EATHEE EATUEE
miHHE BAHE BWARE
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
(B—#) (B=8) (B=#) @zt
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT T AR®BT T ARBT T ARBT T
Due from subsidiaries i NI
(note 20) (Hizt20) - - 406,967 406,967
As at 31 December 2012 RZE——F+=ZA=+—H
Fair value measurement using
NYEFERRA
Quoted
prices Significant Significant
in active observable unobservable
markets inputs inputs
ki EAUBE SATUER
5 RE A SR AR
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
(B—%) (F=%) (B=&) st
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARET T ARET T ARETTT ARET T
Due from subsidiaries 3 NGIE
(note 20) (Kiz20) - = 236,255 236,255




44.

Annual Report 2013 & £E3§

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
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FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF 44. BB IEBEZAFERAFEER (&)
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Liabilities for which fair values are disclosed:

Group

As at 31 December 2013

ERERATENAR:
AEH

R=F—=f+=-RA=+—H

Fair value measurement using

AHEFERA
Quoted
prices Significant Significant
in active observable  unobservable
markets inputs inputs

R EXTEE EATUER
mHHRE LN ¢ BARE

(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
(B—%&) (B=%) (B=4) @t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®TR AR® TR AR® TR AR® TR

Convertible bonds (note 32) ARk &S (f7£32) = = 715,302 715,302
Due to non-controlling FEATSER IR IR R

shareholders (note 29) (Hrit29) = = 24,301 24,301

- - 739,603 739,603

As at 31 December 2012

RZE——F+=-_A=+—H

Fair value measurement using

AT EER
Quoted

prices Significant Significant
in active observable unobservable
markets inputs inputs

R EXTERE  EATTEER
miZHR(E BAZE BAZE

(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
(F—&) (B=&) (B=%&) st
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT

Convertible bonds (note 32)
Due to non-controlling
shareholders (note 29)

MR ES (A1:252)
JE < FEHR AR % R B
(B:£29)

= = 709,789 709,789

- - 59,214 59,214

= = 769,003 769,003
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44. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF 44.
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Liabilities for which fair values are disclosed:
(continued)

MBIEZAFERAFEER (&)
EREEATENERSE : (&)

Company NN
As at 31 December 2013 R-E—=%5+=-A=+—H

Fair value measurement using

278

ATEHRER
Quoted
prices Significant Significant
in active observable  unobservable
markets inputs inputs
b EATERE EAFUEER
TERE BARE BARE
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
(B—&) (B=&) (B=&) #st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T ARBT T ARBT T ARBT
Due to subsidiaries (note 20) ~ ENKBAR (A£20) - - 64,778 64,778
Convertible bonds (note 32) AR ES (ff32) = = 715,302 715,302
- - 780,080 780,080
As at 31 December 2012 RZE——F+HA=+—H
Fair value measurement using
NFHEEERRA
Quoted
prices Significant Significant
in active observable unobservable
markets inputs inputs
h R BAUBE EATIHE
M5 EwME BARE BWARE
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
(F—&) (B=#) (B=%) st
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTR ARETFT ARETFT ARBTT
Due to subsidiaries (note 20) [ERPB DR (41:220) - - 76,245 76,245
Convertible bonds (note 32) AaRES (#:32) - - 709,789 709,789
- - 786,034 786,034

During the year, there were no transfers of fair value
measurements between Level 1 and Level 2 and no
transfers into or out of Level 3 (2012: Nil).

FA - RFEAESRERE —REE &
ZHEEBE TEEAFIELFEF=HR(=F

—Z4F ) o



45.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES

The Group’s principal financial instruments comprise
interest-bearing borrowings, convertible bonds and cash
and short term deposits. The main purpose of these
financial instruments is to raise finance for the Group’s
operations. The Group has various other financial assets
and liabilities such as trade and bills receivables and
trade and bills payables, which arise directly from its
operations.

The main risks arising from the Group’s financial
instruments are foreign currency risk, credit risk and
liquidity risk. The board of directors reviews and agrees
policies for managing each of these risks and they are
summarised below.

Foreign currency risk

The Group has transactional currency exposures. These
exposures mainly arise from sales or purchases by
the Group’s operating units in Mainland China and in
Hong Kong in currencies other than the units’ functional
currency (i.e., RMB or HK dollars). The Group does not
enter into any hedging transactions in an effort to reduce
the Group’s exposure to foreign currency risk.

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity at the end
of the reporting period to a reasonably possible change
in the United States Dollar exchange rates with all other
variables held constant, of the Group’s profit before tax
(due to changes in the fair value of monetary assets
and liabilities). There is no significant impact on other
components of the Group’s equity.
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HRKREEEERBER
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SN LB
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KEARBETBEANMREL 2 EEEM
BN ER (BNAREHEBT) Ao
ERETHERBE - AREWEFTUE
fa] 3 0 52 5 DA B A 6= (B TED B 2 SN T

& o
N
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45. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 45. BIBEREEEERBE (£)

AND POLICIES (continued)
SNERE (&)

Foreign currency risk (continued)

Increase/ Increase/
(decrease) (decrease)
in exchange in profit
rates before tax
ExL#H BRBLADEF
(R ) #m,/ )
% RMB’000
ARETT
31 December 2013 “E-=F+-A=1+—H
If RMB strengthens against United States Dollar AR EETHE 5 (12,985)
If RMB weakens against United States Dollar MAREHLETRE (5) 12,985
31 December 2012 —T——F#+-A=+—H
If RMB strengthens against United States Dollar AR X ETIHE 5 (2,612)
If RMB weakens against United States Dollar WARY HETRE (5) 2612

FERR

AEBERSRAINGEERFZE=T#
IR5 - REBERAEEZBE - FIAREEA
TEPRETRIZEFHARARBEERZ
ERF o It AEETRHEEREKER
e - MASBEEERERRRY A&
exposure to bad debts is not significant. NG

Credit risk

The Group trades only with recognised and creditworthy
third parties. It is the Group’s policy that all customers
who wish to trade on credit terms are subject to credit
verification procedures. In addition, receivable balances

are monitored on an ongoing basis and the Group’s

AEEEMTHEE (BRREEREE
BHEE REMEYRIRR) ZEERRIIE
RHHUFROMELE  SARBRBERZ
FTHAZEHE -

The credit risk of the Group’s other financial assets,
which comprise cash and cash equivalents and other
receivables, arises from default of the counterparty, with
a maximum exposure equal to the carrying amounts of
these instruments.
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45.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (continued)

Credit risk (continued)

Since the Group trades only with recognised and
creditworthy third parties, there is no requirement for
collateral. Concentrations of credit risk are managed by
customer/counterparty and by geographical region. There
are no significant concentrations of credit risk within
the Group as the customer bases of the Group’s trade
receivables are widely dispersed in different sectors.

Further quantitative data in respect of the Group’s
exposure to credit risk arising from trade receivables are
disclosed in note 23 to the financial statements.

Liquidity risk

The Group monitors its risk to a shortage of funds using
a recurring liquidity planning tool. This tool considers the
maturity of both its financial instruments and financial
assets (e.qg., trade receivables) and projected cash flows
from operations.

The Group’s objective is to maintain a balance between
continuity of funding and flexibility through the use of
bank loans and other borrowings and convertible bonds.
It is the Group’s policy to renew its loan agreements with
Haier Finance or major local banks in Mainland China
upon the maturity of the Group’s short term bank loans
and other borrowings when funding is needed.
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45.

BEREREBRREE (&)

FERR (&)
HRAREEELRAMNEERINE=
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FERBRETREREF RXZHEFRR
i@@i& Eﬁ% R AR EEURR AKX
E DN T ET %Z%ﬁ%ﬁﬁ*ﬁ%lm
WEBREF ZEER

BRASEXRERKER 2 EERRE—
FECBIER - RMEMAR M E23WE

REBE @R

AEBEBRERAPDEDTE TALEEE
THERAR FRAIAZEEMBIAN
MBEE (PR ZBIHE KK
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AEEZBRRABERERRITERREM
EENRABRBESHEFES ZHEER
B e ZS%@ZBZ“%EZKE
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Liquidity risk (continued)

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

31 December 2013 —E—=%+=-_HA=+—H

undiscounted payments, is as follows:

45. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 45.
AND POLICIES (continued)

The maturity profile of the Group’s financial liabilities as at
the end of the reporting period, based on the contractual

BEREREBRREE (&)

RBESRR (&)

R|EHR - RO RO EIT 0 5E
 AEEMBRBEZIMBBRAOT

st
=
A

=F-=%t=A=t—H

On demand
or no fixed
terms of Within Beyond
repayment one year one year Total
RERR
BETEENY —£R —F% st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR AR¥TR AR%®TR AR%Txn
Trade and bills payables FEFBR R R 1 - 3,202,301 - 3,202,301
Other payables (note 27) HEMERR (Mat27) 6,147,009 - - 6,147,009
Interest-bearing borrowings SHEEE = 160,605 = 160,605
Due to a fellow subsidiary BN —REZRMERA
PIA - 15,450 - 15,450
Due to non-controlling FER FERR IR AR SR 5O
shareholders 25,217 - - 25,217
Put option liabilities RonHEaE = 22,400 305,600 328,000
Share-based payment PARR AR 3 BT 2 3K
liabilities =i = - 14,429 14,429
Convertible bonds AR &S = 24,994 874,309 899,303
6,172,226 3,425,750 1,194,338 10,792,314
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 45.
AND POLICIES (continued)

Liquidity risk (continued)

31 December 2012

BEREREBRREE (&)

REBESRER (&)
—E——_F+_-_A=+—H

On demand
or no fixed
terms of Within Beyond
repayment one year one year Total
R
EEE RN —£R —F1& fast
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARBTRT ARETT ARETR
Trade and bills payables ANE S S E S = 2,961,504 = 2,961,504
Other payables (note 27) HAb FERTBRTR (H1iE27) 5,031,352 = = 5,031,352
Interest-bearing borrowings FTEEE - 39,800 - 39,800
Due to non-controlling JE T PR AR R
shareholders A - - 59,537 59,537
Put option liabilities RonHEaE - 53,570 374,700 428,270
Convertible bonds AR ES - 25,734 925,909 951,643
5,031,352 3,080,608 1,360,146 9,472,106
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45. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 45,
AND POLICIES (continued)
Liquidity risk (continued)

The maturity profile of the Company’s financial liabilities
as at the end of the reporting period, based on the
contractual undiscounted payments, is as follows:

BEREREBRREE (&)

RBESRR (&)

RBEHR BRRE

\\\\\

I A 5RE

I $’ATH7W<E1TZ 'JBLQEII R
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2013 —E—=4F
On demand
or no fixed
terms of Within Beyond
repayment one year one year Total
EETEENH —FR —F% gt
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T R AR®T R AR%T R AR®T R
Other payables (note 27) H A FERTBRTR (A7iE27) 131,825 - - 131,825
Due to subsidiaries (note 20) FERTHTE A BIRIA
(Kis#20) - - 68,456 68,456
Convertible bonds ABRES = 24,994 874,309 899,303
131,825 24,994 942,765 1,099,584
2012 —ET—=fF
On demand
or no fixed
terms of Within Beyond
repayment one year one year Total
?ﬁlﬁi%ﬂﬂﬁ —FR —F 1% mEt
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARBTRT ARETRT ARETR
Other payables (note 27) Hib AR (Mat27) 36,944 = = 36,944
Due to subsidiaries (note 20) ~ ERNHIBARRIEA
(Kiz20) - 80,574 80,574
Convertible bonds AR E S — 25,734 925,909 951,643
36,944 25,734 1,006,483 1,069,161




45.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (continued)

Capital management

The primary objectives of the Group’s capital management
are to safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern and to maintain healthy capital ratios in order to
support its business and maximise shareholders’ value.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes
adjustments to it in light of changes in economic
conditions. To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the
Group may adjust the dividend payment to shareholders,
return capital to shareholders or issue new shares. The
Group is not subject to any externally imposed capital
requirements. No changes were made in the objectives,
policies or processes for managing capital during the
years ended 31 December 2013 and 31 December 2012.

The Group monitors working capital using a gearing ratio,
which is total debt divided by total equity. The Group’s
policy is to maintain the gearing ratio not exceeding
50%. Total debt includes interest-bearing borrowings,
amounts due to a fellow subsidiary and non-controlling
shareholders and convertible bonds. The gearing ratios
as at the end of the reporting periods were as follows:
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BEREREBRREE (&)

ErER
AEEEAERZTZARAERFREAE
BRBEEZRNREFBRERLE -
AR BTG M AR RS R &= R

AEBRBSERIEHEERAZRLE
ALERE o AU SAREEALRE AEE
AIREAE MR EIRS 2B ~ [MRREE
BASBEITHR o AEBETZERINEHE
MEAREKRFARE - BE_T—=F+_
A=+—HER=ZE—=—F+=-A=+—H
IFFEE BEEAEEBARE  WRHEF

AEEFEAEARBL X (AEBAER
s/ fE) BEREEEA - AEEZK
RABFERNBELERIBES0% ° B
REBRAERER BN —XERWNBR
BIFRIE ~ B SRR R BR K Al B
7 o RBEHR - EXABB/LERNT :

Group rEH

2013 2012

—Eg—= —F—=
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TT ARBTIT
Interest-bearing borrowings FREEE 159,633 39,800
Due to non-controlling shareholders JE{S SR IX A R SR8 24,301 59,537
Convertible bonds ARRES 716,835 699,643
Due to a fellow subsidiary &t — K B Z i B8 & Bl k1A 15,000 -
Total debt BE%BE 915,769 798,980
Total equity = BE 8,057,664 5,840,228
Gearing ratio BEREELX 11.37% 13.68%
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46.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

(a)

(b)

Subsequent to the end of the reporting period,
a total of 2,914,000, 2,554,200 and 4,110,000
share options with the exercise prices of HK$1.70,
HK$4.82 and HK$7.58 per share, respectively,
were exercised.

In November 2013, the Group entered into a
series of acquisition agreements (the “Acquisition
Agreements”) with Shanghai Boyol New Brothers
Logistics Company Limited (“Shanghai Boyol”) and
its founder, Mr. Fei Yajun (the “Founder”), pursuant
to which the Group agreed to acquire Shanghai
Boyol's 60% equity interest in Shanghai Boyol New
Brothers Supply Chain Management Company
Limited (“Shanghai Beiye Chain”) and acquire the
Founder’'s 100% equity interest in Boyol Logistics
Offshore Limited. According to the Acquisition
Agreements, all the businesses of Shanghai
Boyol and its subsidiaries will be transferred to
Shanghai Beiye Chain and its subsidiaries before
the completion of the acquisition transaction.

The consideration for the acquisition transaction
comprised of (i) a cash consideration of
RMB86,400,000,0f which RMB41,400,000 and
RMB35,000,000 were paid in December 2013 and
January 2014, respectively, and RMB10,000,000
remained unsettled as of the date of approval of
these financial statements, and (ii) a contingent
consideration payable in 2014 and 2015 which
is computed with reference to the amount of the
consolidated net profit and the earnings before
interest, tax, depreciation and amortisation (the
“EBITDA”) of Shanghai Beiye Chain during the
24-month period subsequent to the completion of
the acquisition transaction.

The acquisition transaction was completed on 24
January 2014.

46.

WMEHRBREE
(a) MIEHRE & 29140001

(b)

B8 % # - 2,554,200 B8 I% # &
4,110,000t B IR E B BT E -
BRATEE D B A1.708 7T © 4.82/8
JTR7.588 T °

RN_E—=F+—H AEEHEL
BRAEHLEYRBERAF (T L
BAE]D REAIMABTELE
([8IHF A D) 8T — R 51| U088 17 &
(IZEW B Bt - A&H
REBALBEER LBRERL
FHEREEFRAR ([ LBRZE
HEHE ) M60%M # & 8l AR
Boyol Logistics Offshore Limited
BV100%M% # - 1R & % F W B 1%
@ LBEERAMBATNEE
EBHNEER S TXATEET L
BEHEHEELENBAR -

KERXGREBEHRERKEA
R #86,400,0007T (K - A R #&
41,400,000 & A R #35,000,000
TEDRR=ZE—=F+=-AK
ZE—MFE-—ALZf RARK
10,000,0007T 7 #t /& 7% 5 81 7% 3R
FOBBMDAREZA) - R AR
B(ERZZE—NFR_ZT—RF
S BlSREN2E LgEEHR
FE SIS X 5 ek 12 2418 A W AY
BRAE - BIE - TEREHEAF
(TEBITDA]) ##&) -

WEZXSER_T—NF—A -+
PaE e °



46.

47.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD
(continued)

(c)

On 6 December 2013, the Group and the Alibaba
Group agreed on a strategic collaboration through
the Strategic Investments Agreements to further
develop the Group’s logistics business carried
out by Qingdao Haier Logistics Co., Ltd. (“Haier
Logistics”),
Company. In particular, according to the Share

a wholly-owned subsidiary of the

Subscription Agreement, the Company agreed
to issue to Alibaba Group 52,389,996 ordinary
shares of the Company (representing 2.04% of
the entire issued share capital of the Company
as at 6 December 2013) at a subscription price
of HK$18.413 per share, and according to the
Convertible and Exchangeable Bond Agreement,
the Company agreed to issue a convertible and
exchangeable bond (“CEB”) to Alibaba Group, with
the principal amount of HK$1,316,036,039. The
CEB is interest-bearing at 1.5% per annum and is
due to maturity on the third anniversary date of the
issue date of the CEB. The CEB is exchangeable
into 24.1% economic interest in Haier Logistics or
convertible into ordinary shares of the Company at
a conversion price of HK$19.334 per share.

Subsequent to the end of the reporting period, on
20 March 2014, the requirements of the Strategic
Investments Agreements were fulfilled and the
deal was completed. An aggregate number of
52,389,996 ordinary shares of the Company, in the
amount of HK$964,656,996.35, and the CEB in an
aggregate principal amount of HK$1,316,036,039,
were issued to Alibaba Group accordingly.

APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The financial statements were approved and authorised

for issue by the board of directors on 25 March 2014.
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46.

47.

BEHKREER (F)

(c)

R=ZF—=F+=_A~HB ~5H
HAF B B R E R 2 8 BB 1R
B TEHEEAE  LE—F
BERAARNNFZENBAAESE
BYyRAERAR (DE@EMR]) %
ECAREB2YRES - BER
MREHZ ARFREUNER
18413 B THREERMEEE S
B 277N A 552,389,996 % I 38 A%
B =ZFE—=F+=_ABARA
2 EE BHITIRAL2.04%) - 1R
BRIk RO EBRESHR - A
AAGEELRERM 2EEEEE
1178 & #8 %8 /51,316,036,03978 T
B AIIANR R AT e E S ([ AT &
ARG S ]) o AR R AT B E
FIREB15%T8 » KA KA
ENEAETRBER=AFEH
FIHR o AJHRAR K A EE A (5 5 Al 854
BN EBYIR241%8) B2 iRk
MBS R19.334 B L EH R AR A A
@A o

RMEPRERRE RZT—OF
ZA-t+H BEELEHRER
EREEKRK UXRFHETK - &
It AR FE [P EEEEE T
& 452,389,996k AR (25 A
964,656,996.35/85 L) KA HEAE
%8 51,316,036,03978 7T &9 A #2 &
RAERES o

MBmR2AE

BBRREXN_-_F-—OF=A_+HAK
EEgHERIRETIE -
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Five Year Financial Summary

EFEBEHE

A summary of the results and of the assets, liabilities and non-
controlling interests of the Group for the last five financial years

is set out below.

ATEINAEEZBERABAMBRFERE &
E - RENFERERHE -

Year ended 31 December

BE+-A=t+-RHLEE

2013 2012 2011 2010 2009
—E-=F% —T—ZF —T——F —T-%F ZTTHE
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000
ARETR AR®ETT ARETTT ARETFT ARBTT
(Restated) (Restated) (Restated)
(Z31) (Z31) (Z31)
RESULTS ES |
REVENUE BA 62,263,162 55,615,047 50,089,857  36,948537 14,850,292
Cost of sales HERAR (53,125,613)  (46,673,866)  (42,582,594)  (32,103,100)  (11,538,319)
Gross profit EH 9,137,549 8,941,181 7,507,263 4,845,437 3,311,973
Other income and gains Hfp AR Mz 203,942 106,250 99,423 74,744 48,768
Selling and distribution costs %ﬁ%&%ﬁ%ﬁ% (4,403,956)  (4,569,519)  (4,157,305)  (2,546,846) (1,987,942
Administrative expenses IBER (2,221,437)  (2,152,495)  (1,572,964) (923,109) (694,870)
Other expenses and losses _ng%m RE#R (9,924) (16,651) (60) (1,082) (12,634)
Finance costs REKA (68,334) (64,504) (22,492) (6,277) (7,980)
Share of profits and losses of FEfE SR
jointly-controlled entities ERER = - = 5318 3,783
PROFIT BEFORE TAX BRBLADE R 2,637,840 2,244,262 1,853,865 1,448,185 661,098
Income tax expense FEHAX (547,527) (537,285) (386,942) (430,096) (149,065)
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR FRRF 2,090,313 1,706,977 1,466,923 1,018,089 512,033
Attributable to: AT & R
Owners of the Company KRAIRE 2,036,882 1,695,122 1,407,458 975,048 455,902
Non-controlling interests 32 G T 53,431 11,855 59,465 43,041 56,130
2,090,313 1,706,977 1,466,923 1,018,089 512,032
ASSETS, LIABILITIES AND EE B8R
NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS FERER
TOTAL ASSETS BEAE 21,881,163 18,213,266 14,355,605 9,971,089 6,496,560
TOTAL LIABILITIES afEaE (13,823,499)  (12,373,038)  (10,049,804)  (7,136,781)  (4,688,441)
88 NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS FERER (336,636) (300,502) (280,416) (228,459) (157,359)
7,721,028 5,539,726 4,025,385 2,605,849 1,650,760
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